
 
 

August 19, 2024                                                                           - 1 -                                                                               12:38 PM 

A G E N D A  •  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August 19, 2024 6:00 PM           Council Chamber 

  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the 
City Council Chamber to participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk or General 
Services Director at (559) 324-2060 (TTY – 711).  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council Chamber. 
 
The Clovis City Council meetings are open to the public at the physical address listed above. There 
are numerous ways to participate in the City Council meetings: you are able to attend in person; you 
may submit written comments as described below; and you may view the meeting which is webcast 
and accessed at www.cityofclovis.com/agendas. 
 

Written Comments 
 

 Members of the public are encouraged to submit written comments at: 
www.cityofclovis.com/agendas at least two (2) hours before the meeting (4:00 p.m.).  You 
will be prompted to provide:  

 

 Council Meeting Date 
 Item Number 
 Name 
 Email 
 Comment  

 

 Please submit a separate form for each item you are commenting on. 
 

 A copy of your written comment will be provided to the City Council noting the item number.  
If you wish to make a verbal comment, please see instructions below. 

 

 Please be aware that any written comments received that do not specify a particular agenda 
item will be marked for the general public comment portion of the agenda. 

 
 If a written comment is received after 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting, efforts will be 

made to provide the comment to the City Council during the meeting.  However, staff cannot 
guarantee that written comments received after 4:00 p.m. will be provided to City Council 
during the meeting.  All written comments received prior to the end of the meeting will be 
made part of the record of proceedings. 

 

Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2060 
www.cityofclovis.com 

1

http://www.cityofclovis.com/agendas
http://www.cityofclovis.com/agendas
http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/


August 19, 2024                                                                           - 2 -                                                                               12:38 PM 

CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION PROHIBITIONS AND MANDATORY DISCLOSURE - Pursuant to 
Government Code section 84308, a Councilmember shall not accept, solicit, or direct a campaign 
contribution of more than $250 from any party or their agent, or from any participant or their agent, 
while a proceeding involving a license, permit, contract, or other entitlement for use is pending before 
the City or for 12 months after a final decision is rendered in that proceeding. Any Councilmember 
who has received a campaign contribution of more than $250 within the preceding 12 months from 
a party or their agent, or from a participant or their agent, must disclose that fact on the record of the 
proceeding and shall not make, participate in making, or in any way attempt to use their official 
position to influence the decision.  

Pursuant to Government Code section 84308(e), any party to a covered proceeding before the City 
Council is required to disclose on the record of the proceeding any campaign contribution, including 
aggregated contributions, of more than $250 made within the preceding 12 months by the party or 
their agent to any Councilmember. The disclosure shall be made as required by Government Code 
Section 84308(e)(1) and 2 CCR Section 18438.8. No party or their agent, and no participant or their 
agent, shall make a campaign contribution of more than $250 to any Councilmember during the 
covered proceeding or for 12 months after a final decision is made in that proceeding. The foregoing 
statements do not constitute legal advice, and parties and participants are urged to consult with their 
own legal counsel regarding the applicable requirements of the law.   

CALL TO ORDER 

FLAG SALUTE - Councilmember Basgall 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 

1. Presentation of Proclamation to Transit Employees Juan Lomeli and Dayana 
Contreras for Outstanding Service. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS - This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the City 
Council on any matter within the City Council’s jurisdiction that is not listed on the Agenda.  In order 
for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 3 minutes or less, or 10 minutes per 
topic.  Anyone wishing to be placed on the Agenda for a specific topic should contact the City 
Manager’s office and submit correspondence at least 10 days before the desired date of appearance. 

CONSENT CALENDAR - Items considered routine in nature are to be placed upon the Consent 
Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as one item unless a 
Councilmember requests individual consideration.  A Councilmember’s vote in favor of the Consent 
Calendar is considered and recorded as a separate affirmative vote in favor of each action 
listed.  Motions in favor of adoption of the Consent Calendar are deemed to include a motion to 
waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution on the Consent Calendar.  For adoption of 
ordinances, only those that have received a unanimous vote upon introduction are considered 
Consent items. 

2. Administration - Approval - Minutes from the August 12, 2024, Council Meeting. 
3. Finance – Receive and File – Investment Report for the Month of March 2024. 
4. Finance – Receive and File – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of March 2024. 
5. Finance – Receive and File – Investment Report for the Month of April 2024. 
6. Finance – Receive and File – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of April 2024. 

2



August 19, 2024                                                                           - 3 -                                                                               12:38 PM 

7. General Services – Approval – Res. 24-___, Authorizing the City Manager to execute 
the agreement with the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) for the 
Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant FY2024-25 in the amount of $172,500 to 
fund the Clovis Transit Strategic Operations Plan; and Approval – Res. 24-___, to 
amend the FY2024-25 budget of the Transit budget to reflect the receipt of $152,714 
from the Caltrans grant and the allocation of $19,786 from the Local Transit Fund (LTF) 
for the local match requirement. 

8. General Services – Approval – Res. 24-____, Renewing Medical Plan Options for 
Eligible Retirees and Restating the Eligibility Requirements for Participation in the Plan 
for the 2025 Plan Year. 

9. General Services - Approval – Approve the first amendment to the Emcor Services 
Agreement for the Maintenance of Heating, Ventilation and Air-Conditioning 
Equipment; and Authorize the City Manager to execute the First Amendment 
Agreement contract extension with Emcor Services to include a 5% increase for a total 
annual proposed cost of $237,966.82.  

10. Police - Approval - Res. 24-___, Authorizing the Police Chief and the Police 
Department to execute the 2024-2025 Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
Alcohol Policing Partnership grant agreement; and Approval - Amend the Police 
Department budget to reflect the award of $71,400.00. 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS - Administrative Items are matters on the regular City Council Agenda 
other than Public Hearings. 

11. Consider Approval – Authorize Staff to Proceed with a Proposition 218 Public Hearing 
and Majority Protest Vote to Implement a Water Meter Installation Fee to Unmetered 
Parcels in Tarpey Village. 
 
Staff: Kevin Tuttle, Supervising Civil Engineer 
Recommendation: Approve  
 

12. Consider Approval - A request to approve the Behymer-Sunnyside Southwest 
Reorganization annexation agreement and to authorize the City Manager and City 
Attorney to make minor modifications to the agreement as necessary. 
 
Staff: Lily Cha, Senior Planner 
Recommendation: Approve  

PUBLIC HEARINGS - A public hearing is an open consideration within a regular or special meeting 
of the City Council, for which special notice has been given and may be required.  When a public 
hearing is continued, noticing of the adjourned item is required as per Government Code 54955.1. 

13. Consider items associated with approximately 333 acres of land located adjacent to 
the north side of Highway 168 from Armstrong Avenue to Owens Mountain Parkway; 
otherwise known as the City of Clovis Research and Technology Park. Various 
property owners; City of Clovis, applicant. 

a. Consider Approval - Res. 24-___, GPA2021-007, A request to amend the General 
Plan to correctly designate the Research and Technology Park boundary in Focus Area 
6, incorporate amendments allowing campus-affiliated housing within the Research 

3



August 19, 2024                                                                           - 4 -                                                                               12:38 PM 

and Technology Park and include the existing P-C-C and P-F zone districts as 
consistent zone districts within the MU-BC land use designation; and  

b. Consider Introduction - Ord. 24-___, OA2021-004, A request to amend the Clovis 
Development Code as a cleanup action to further define the MU-BC land use 
designation to allow for certain ancillary campus-affiliated housing uses in the R-T zone 
district, add development standards for the campus-affiliated housing uses and 
establish an R-T overlay zone district; and 

c. Consider Introduction - Ord. 24-___, R2021-010, A request to rezone approximately 
63 properties inconsistently zoned within the designated Research and Technology 
Park plan area from the R-A, R-1-AH, R-1-7500, R-1-8500 and C-P zone districts to 
the R-T zone district or R-T overlay zone district; and 

d. Consider Approval – Res. 24-___, A request to amend the Clovis Research and 
Technology Architectural Guidelines to add development and design standards for 
campus-affiliated housing consistent with the General Plan and Development Code. 

Staff: McKencie Perez, Senior Planner 
Recommendation: Approve  

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

CLOSED SESSION - A “closed door” (not public) City Council meeting, allowed by State law, for 
consideration of pending legal matters and certain matters related to personnel and real estate 
transactions. 

14. Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION  
Case Name: City of Clovis v. Tyco Fire Products LP, U.S. District Court, District of 
South Carolina; Case No. 2:24-cv-02321-RMG  
 

15. Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)  
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION  
Case Name: City of Clovis v. BASF Corporation, U.S. District Court, District of South 
Carolina; Case No. 2:24-cv-0317-RMG 
 

16. Government Code Section 54957 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT/EMPLOYMENT 
Title: City Manager 

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION AND REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

4



August 19, 2024                                                                           - 5 -                                                                               12:38 PM 

FUTURE MEETINGS 

Regular City Council Meetings are held at 6:00 P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following are 
future meeting dates: 

Sept. 3, 2024 (Tue.) 
Sept. 9, 2024 (Mon.) 
Sept. 16, 2024 (Mon.) 
Oct. 7, 2024 (Mon.) 
Oct. 14, 2024 (Mon.) 
Oct. 21, 2024 (Mon.) 

 

5



6

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

  CLOVIS CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 
August 12, 2024       6:00 P.M.         Council Chamber 
 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Pro Tem Mouanoutoua at 6:06 
Flag Salute led by Councilmember Pearce 
 
Roll Call: Present: Councilmembers, Basgall, Bessinger, Mouanoutoua, Pearce 

Absent: Mayor Ashbeck 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS – 6:08 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Mouanoutoua took a moment of silence to honor the memory of Kaiden Bailey, a 
resident of Clovis, and also a Buchanan High student, Sandro Lazo.   

 

William Lazo, resident, raised concerns about the recent passing of his son Sandro Lazo and 
requested a stop sign be placed at Fowler and Perrin Avenue.  

 

Mr. Travino, resident, addressed concerns related to road safety and spoke in support for a stop 
sign at Fowler and Perrin Avenue.  

 

CONSENT CALENDAR – 6:16 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bessinger, seconded by Councilmember Basgall, that the items with 
the exception of item 4, on the Consent Calendar be approved. Motion carried 4-0-1 with Mayor 
Ashbeck absent 
 
1. Administration - Approval - Minutes from the August 5, 2024, Council Meeting. 
2. Public Utilities – Approval – Waive Formal Bidding Requirements and Authorize the 

Purchase of a Custom Crane Truck Body from Douglass Truck Bodies, Inc., for 
$162,725.88, Including Tax and Installation. 

3. Public Utilities – Approval – Waive Formal Bidding Requirements and Authorize the 
Purchase of a Bomb Disposal Truck from Braun Northwest for $462,874.23 and a Bomb 
Disposal Trailer from Hurd’s Custom Machinery for $77,794.08 Using the HGAC 
Purchasing Contract. 

 
ITEM PULLED FOR DISCUSSION 
 
6:17 CONSENT ITEM 4 - PUBLIC UTILITIES – APPROVAL – FINAL ACCEPTANCE FOR CIP 

23-16, GOULD CANAL TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS, WITH A FINAL CONTRACT COST OF 
$164,589.03. 

 
 The above item was pulled by Councilmember Bessinger to express his gratitude to staff. 

Upon call, there was no public comment.  
 

7

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Motion for approval by Councilmember Bessinger, seconded by Councilmember Basgall. Motion 
carried 4-0-1 with Mayor Ashbeck absent 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – 6:19 

 
6:19 ITEM 5 - CONSIDER APPROVAL - RES. 24-86, CUP2024-003 APPEAL. A REQUEST TO 

CONSIDER AN APPEAL OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION'S APPROVAL OF 
CUP2024-003 FOR AN 18-BED CONGREGATE CARE FACILITY FOR THE 
PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 2901 AND 2939 ARMSTRONG AVENUE. CHERYL 
NELSON, OWNER; ARK CONGREGATE LIVING – FRESNO, LLC, APPLICANT, AND 
ORLANDO RAMIREZ, REPRESENTATIVE. 

 

 Tom Judd, resident, addressed concerned with the elementary school nearby and spoke 
in opposition.  

 

 Steve Henry, resident, requested a reduction in beds and spoke in opposition. 

  

 Miroslav Lazovich, resident, spoke in opposition. 

  

 Michael, resident, requested a smaller sized facility and spoke in opposition. 

 

 John Burson, resident, addressed concerns with additional traffic, the size of the facility, 
and spoke in opposition. 

 

 Jeni-Ann Kren, resident, spoke in support. 

 

Kirsten Creig, resident, addressed concerns with the size of the facility and spoke in 
opposition. 

 

Will Keller, resident, addressed concerns with the size of the facility, future use, and spoke 
in opposition.  

 

Orlando Ramriez, applicant, addressed comments and concern surrounding the facility. 

  

Motion by Councilmember Bessinger, seconded by Councilmember Basgall to uphold the 
Planning Commission’s approval Conditional Use Permit 2024-003, subject to the 
conditions of approval listed as Attachment 1A. Motion carried 4-0-1 with Mayor Ashbeck 
absent. 

 

 

 

 

 

8

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS – 7:33 
 

7:33 ITEM 6 - CONSIDER APPROVAL – DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATE AND 
ALTERNATE FOR THE LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES’ ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
AND BUSINESS MEETING ON OCTOBER 16-18, 2024.  

 

 Upon call, there was no public comment.  

  

Motion for Mayor Ashbeck to be designated as the voting delegate with Mayor Pro Tem 
Mouanoutoua as the alternate by Councilmember Pearce, seconded by Councilmember. 
Motion carried 4-0-1 with Mayor Ashbeck absent 
 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS – 7:35 
 
It was consensus of the City Council to place an item on a future agenda to discuss moving Council 
meetings from Monday nights to Tuesday nights in 2025. 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS – 7:37 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

Mayor Pro Tem Mouanoutoua adjourned the meeting of the Council to August 19, 2024  
 

Meeting adjourned:  7:38 p.m. 
 
 

______________________________  ________________________________ 
Mayor      City Clerk 

9

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Finance Department 

DATE: August 19, 2024 

SUBJECT: Finance – Receive and File – Investment Report for the Month of March 
2024. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Distribution of Investments 
2. Monthly Investment Transactions 
3. Certificates of Deposit 
4. Municipal Securities 
5. Corporate Securities 
6. Graph of March 31, 2024 Treasury Rates 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Attached is the Investment Report for the month of March 2024.  Shown in Attachment 1 is the 
distribution of investments which lists all the individual securities owned by the City with the book 
and market values. Book value is the actual price paid for the investment.  Market value is the 
amount that the investment is worth if sold in the open market. The market value (which 
fluctuates daily) that is used in the report is as of the last working day of the month.  Attachment 
2 reflects the monthly investment transactions for the month of March 2024.  Attachment 3 lists 
the certificates of deposit. Attachment 4 lists the municipal securities. Attachment 5 lists the 
corporate securities.  Attachment 6 is a graph of Treasury rates on March 31, 2024. 
 
The investment of the City’s funds is performed in accordance with the adopted Investment 
Policy.  Funds are invested with the following objectives in mind: 
 
1. Assets are invested in adherence with the safeguards and diversity of a prudent investor. 
 
2. The portfolio is invested in a manner consistent with the primary emphasis on preservation 
of the principal, while attaining a high rate of return consistent with this guideline. Trading of 
securities for the sole purpose of realizing trading profits is prohibited. 
 
3. Sufficient liquidity is maintained to provide a source for anticipated financial obligations as 
they become due.   
 

10

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



4. Investments may be made, consistent with the Investment Policy Guidelines, in fixed 
income securities maturing in three years or less and can be extended to five years with the City 
Manager’s approval. 
 
The Finance Department invests the City’s assets with an expectation of achieving a total rate 
of return at a level that exceeds the annualized rate of return on short-term government 
guaranteed or insured obligations (90-day Treasury bills) and to assure that the principal is 
preserved with minimal risk of depreciation or loss.  In periods of rising interest rates, the City of 
Clovis portfolio return may be less than that of the annualized 90-day Treasury bill.  In periods 
of decreasing interest rates, the City of Clovis portfolio return may be greater than the annualized 
90-day Treasury bill.  The current 90-day Treasury bill rate (annualized) is 5.34%.  The rate of 
return for the City of Clovis portfolio is 3.49%.  The goal for the City of Clovis investment return 
is 120% of the 90-day Treasury bill rate.  The current rate of return is 65% of the Treasury bill 
rate. 
 
The Finance Department began investing in corporate securities in February to provide 
additional diversification and yield to the portfolio. 3 corporate securities totaling $6,000,000 
were purchased this month at an aggregate yield of 4.59%, which is roughly 38 basis points 
higher than current yields on 5-year Treasury bonds.  
 
In accordance with the Investment Policy, the investment period on each investment is up to 
three years and can be extended to five years with the City Manager’s approval.  As of March 
2024, the average investment life of the City’s investment portfolio is 2.02 years. 
 
Current Investment Environment and Philosophy 
During the month of March 2024, the federal funds rate remained at 5.25%-5.50%. On March 
31, 2024, the Treasury yield curve decreased from 3-month to 10-year notes. 
 
Certificates of Deposit (CD’s) 
The City purchases both negotiable and non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit (CD’s). Although 
negotiable CD’s can be traded, it is the City’s policy to buy and hold all CD’s. Negotiable CD’s 
are held by U.S. Bank, a third party custodian. Non-negotiable CD’s are held in the City’s safe. 
 
Purchases and Maturities 
• 0 government securities were purchased.  
• 4 government securities totaling $14,000,000 matured.  
• 5 certificates of deposit totaling $1,250,000 were purchased. 
• 2 certificates of deposit totaling $500,000 matured. 
• 2 municipal securities totaling $1,270,000 were purchased. 
• 0 municipal securities were called or matured. 
• 3 corporate securities totaling $6,000,000 were purchased. 
• 0 corporate securities were called or matured. 
Market Environment 
• During March the federal funds rate remained at 5.25%-5.50%. 
• On March 31, the yield curve decreased from 3-month to 10-year notes. See Attachment 
6, Graph of Treasury Rates on March 31, 2024. 

11

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey Blanks, Deputy Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH  

 

12

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



STATED
DAYS TO 

MATURITY
NET BOOK MARKET YIELD TO INTEREST INVEST MATURITY FROM

COST VALUE VALUE * MATURITY RATE DATE DATE 3/31/2024

GOV'T SECURITIES

FHLB 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,954,950 0.350% 0.350% 06/07/21 06/07/24 68
FHLB 941,770 991,539 989,370 4.500% 0.700% 11/17/22 06/24/24 85
FHLB 4,969,000 4,993,108 4,872,400 1.274% 1.050% 01/20/22 11/15/24 229
FHLB 1,595,506 1,685,682 1,674,952 4.515% 0.500% 11/16/22 12/30/24 274
FNMA 1,857,400 1,933,157 1,918,580 4.415% 0.500% 03/23/23 02/24/25 330
FNMA 930,300 967,276 958,630 4.338% 0.520% 03/23/23 02/25/25 331
FHLB 932,200 968,066 960,150 4.328% 0.625% 03/23/23 02/27/25 333
FHLB 3,980,000 3,993,906 3,879,600 1.922% 1.750% 02/28/22 02/28/25 334
FHLB 4,000,000 4,000,000 3,916,200 2.750% 2.750% 04/25/22 04/25/25 390
FAMCMTN 3,947,600 3,980,786 3,791,200 1.121% 0.750% 12/16/21 07/28/25 484
FHLB 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,912,300 3.600% 3.600% 08/30/22 08/28/25 515
FAMCMTN 4,948,500 4,980,990 4,710,800 0.869% 0.600% 10/14/21 09/08/25 526
FHLB 871,150 899,603 882,674 3.886% 0.500% 04/26/23 11/25/25 604
FHLB 4,963,000 4,984,394 4,630,550 0.750% 0.580% 09/08/21 02/11/26 682
FHLB 3,922,000 3,964,592 3,711,680 1.229% 0.750% 12/16/21 02/24/26 695
FHLB 2,751,000 2,827,986 2,776,680 3.916% 0.790% 05/17/23 03/16/26 715
FFCB 4,967,500 4,983,642 4,556,750 1.075% 0.940% 10/14/21 09/28/26 911
FHLB 3,649,200 3,791,339 3,663,560 3.342% 1.150% 06/29/22 10/28/26 941
FHLB 5,988,000 5,993,639 5,510,880 1.291% 1.250% 11/24/21 11/24/26 968
FHLB 5,127,757 5,070,460 4,698,200 1.580% 2.125% 01/20/22 12/11/26 985
FHLB 4,043,250 4,215,370 4,052,366 3.397% 1.020% 06/29/22 02/24/27 1,060
FHLB 4,550,000 4,711,259 4,529,079 3.173% 1.020% 08/17/22 02/24/27 1,060
FHLB 3,695,200 3,819,465 3,765,362 2.564% 0.900% 03/31/22 02/26/27 1,062
FHLB 6,072,400 5,250,826 5,176,447 3.737% 0.900% 01/19/23 02/26/27 1,062
FHLB 5,247,000 6,284,516 6,195,495 4.329% 0.900% 02/16/23 02/26/27 1,062
FHLB 5,050,770 5,456,366 5,144,820 3.971% 1.000% 12/14/22 02/26/27 1,062
FHLB 4,000,000 4,000,000 3,760,600 2.375% 2.375% 03/08/22 03/08/27 1,072
FFCB 5,160,000 5,334,825 5,212,320 3.996% 0.830% 03/23/23 02/22/28 1,423
FHLB 355,160 357,344 351,676 4.123% 1.125% 01/18/24 02/25/28 1,426
FFCB 2,123,750 2,167,002 2,176,775 4.812% 1.000% 09/27/23 03/02/28 1,432
FHLB 1,893,209 1,929,375 1,961,232 5.018% 1.000% 10/18/23 03/10/28 1,440
FHLB 3,124,500 3,101,864 3,012,840 3.553% 4.500% 05/17/23 03/10/28 1,440
FFCB 626,780 630,285 617,799 4.121% 1.370% 01/18/04 03/22/28 1,452
FFCB 6,102,000 6,083,008 5,892,780 3.501% 3.875% 04/26/23 04/25/28 1,486
FFCB 5,354,250 5,378,159 5,301,340 4.349% 3.740% 06/14/23 04/27/28 1,488
FFCB 2,955,000 2,961,549 2,963,700 4.814% 4.470% 07/12/23 06/22/28 1,544
FFCB 2,641,500 2,663,436 2,612,970 4.130% 1.230% 12/20/23 07/13/28 1,565
FHLMC 853,500 865,196 866,290 4.601% 1.100% 11/15/23 07/27/28 1,579
FNMA 848,800 860,865 864,330 4.613% 1.000% 11/15/23 07/28/28 1,580
FHLB 882,500 889,596 874,160 4.117% 1.300% 12/20/23 08/04/28 1,587
FHLB 2,981,700 2,983,390 3,058,050 4.892% 4.750% 10/18/23 09/08/28 1,622
FHLMC 842,300 854,303 856,020 4.614% 1.000% 11/15/23 10/19/28 1,663

SECURITIES TOTAL 139,745,451$   141,808,163$       137,216,556$       

LAIF 56,706,769$         56,706,769$         

Municipal Issuance 58,580,128$         57,423,800$         

Corporate Securities 11,864,832$         11,826,980$         

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 15,510,055$         15,510,055$         

TOTAL CD'S 31,245,000$         30,985,978$         

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 315,714,947$       309,670,138$       

* Market values for securities obtained from US Bank.

City of Clovis
Distribution of Investments

As of March 31, 2024

ATTACHMENT 1
13

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



Activity Maturity
Institution Description Activity Amount Market Value Rate Date Date

Cisco Sys Inc Corp Purchase 2,000,000 2,020,000 4.850% 03/21/24 02/26/29

Merck Co Inc Corp Purchase 2,000,000 1,898,000 3.400% 03/21/24 03/07/29

Blackrock Funding Inc Corp Purchase 2,000,000 2,010,000 4.700% 03/21/24 03/14/29

Alameda Cnty CA Mun Iss. Purchase 540,000 520,560 3.519% 03/21/24 08/01/28

Long Beach CA Cmnty Mun Iss. Purchase 730,000 667,950 2.337% 03/21/24 08/01/28

CFBank Fairlawn CD Purchase 250,000 250,000 4.450% 03/05/24 03/05/27

Haven Svgs Bk CD Purchase 250,000 250,000 4.500% 03/06/24 03/08/27

Univest Natl Bk CD Purchase 250,000 250,000 4.600% 03/13/24 03/15/27

First Natl Bk CD Purchase 250,000 250,000 4.600% 03/19/24 03/19/27

Nicolet Natl Bk CD Purchase 250,000 250,000 4.600% 03/22/24 03/22/27

FFCB Gov. Sec. Maturity 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.250% 03/01/24 03/01/24

FFCB Gov. Sec. Maturity 2,000,000 1,999,246 3.625% 03/08/24 03/08/24

FHLB Gov. Sec. Maturity 5,000,000 4,999,761 3.250% 03/08/24 03/08/24

FFCB Gov. Sec. Maturity 2,000,000 1,999,928 0.300% 03/18/24 03/18/24

Transportation Alliance CD Maturity 250,000 250,000 0.250% 03/12/24 03/12/24

Preferred Bk LA CD Maturity 250,000 250,000 0.250% 03/25/24 03/25/24

PORTFOLIO DATA

Current Month (03/24)

Book Market

CD'S 31,245,000$         30,985,978$         

Gov't Securities* 141,808,163 137,216,556

Municipal Securities 58,580,128 57,423,800

Corporate Securities 11,864,832 11,826,980

LAIF 56,706,769 56,706,769

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 15,510,055 15,510,055

TOTAL 315,714,947$       309,670,138$       

Prior Month (02/24) Three Months Previous (12/23)

Book Market Book Market

CD'S 30,495,000$         30,328,869$         CD'S 28,995,000$         28,689,096$         

Gov't Securities* 155,350,042 150,873,470 Gov't Securities* 154,368,102 150,412,489

Municipal Securities 57,130,672           55,970,997           Municipal Securities 55,334,718 54,350,950

Corporate Securities 5,935,200             5,887,560             Corporate Securities -                        -                        

LAIF 56,706,769 56,706,769 LAIF 56,142,817 56,142,817

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 13,082,312 13,082,312 Sweep Account (Union Bank) 9,575,028 9,575,028

TOTAL 318,699,995$       312,849,977$       TOTAL 304,415,665$       299,170,380$       

Six Months Previous (09/23) One Year Previous (03/23)

Book Market Book Market

CD'S 26,995,000$         26,265,805$         CD'S 23,495,000$         22,921,197$         

Gov't Securities* 143,006,374 135,435,648 Gov't Securities* 119,265,591 114,207,766

Municipal Securities 55,366,986 53,208,549 Municipal Securities 56,870,000 52,675,462

Corporate Securities -                        -                        Corporate Securities -                        -                        

LAIF 55,589,725 55,589,725 LAIF 75,000,000 75,000,000

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 12,584,965 12,584,965 Sweep Account (Union Bank) 30,827,750 30,827,750

TOTAL 293,543,050$       283,084,692$       TOTAL 305,458,341$       295,632,175$       

*Adjusted Quarterly for Premium/Discount Amortization

As of March 31, 2024

Monthly Investment Transactions
City of Clovis

ATTACHMENT 2
14

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 
Negotiable CDs   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 03/31/24 FREQUENCY

Bankunited Natl Assn 245,000 244,870.15 0.450% 03/31/21 04/01/24 1 QUARTERLY
Greenstate Credit Union 250,000 247,305.00 0.450% 06/16/21 06/17/24 78 QUARTERLY
Eaglemark Savings Bank 250,000 246,900.00 0.400% 06/30/21 06/28/24 89 QUARTERLY
Texas Exchange Bk 250,000 246,600.00 0.500% 07/09/21 07/09/24 100 QUARTERLY
BMW Bk North Amer 250,000 245,965.00 0.550% 07/30/21 07/30/24 121 QUARTERLY
Toyota Finl Svgs 250,000 244,775.00 0.650% 09/09/21 09/09/24 162 QUARTERLY
State Bk India 250,000 244,532.50 0.650% 09/17/21 09/17/24 170 QUARTERLY
Ubs Bank Usa 250,000 242,937.50 0.750% 11/17/21 11/18/24 232 QUARTERLY
Webbank Salt Lake City 250,000 242,690.00 0.750% 11/29/21 11/29/24 243 QUARTERLY
Medallion Bank Salt Lake City 250,000 242,302.50 0.900% 12/20/21 12/20/24 264 QUARTERLY
Beal Bank 250,000 241,815.00 0.950% 01/19/22 01/15/25 290 QUARTERLY
Mountian Amer Fed 250,000 246,180.00 3.450% 08/31/22 02/28/25 334 QUARTERLY
Barclays Bk 250,000 242,082.50 1.700% 03/09/22 03/10/25 344 QUARTERLY
Goldman Sachs Bk 250,000 241,967.50 1.650% 03/09/22 03/10/25 344 QUARTERLY
Safra National Bk 250,000 242,530.00 2.000% 03/23/22 03/24/25 358 QUARTERLY
Pentagon Federal Cr Un 250,000 242,507.50 2.000% 03/28/22 03/28/25 362 QUARTERLY
Beal Bank 250,000 242,960.00 2.200% 04/06/22 04/02/25 367 QUARTERLY
JP Morgan Chase 250,000 243,565.00 2.500% 04/08/22 04/08/25 373 QUARTERLY
First Natl Bank 250,000 242,750.00 2.200% 04/12/22 04/11/25 376 QUARTERLY
One Community Bank 250,000 243,800.00 2.700% 04/29/22 04/29/25 394 QUARTERLY
Americu Credit Union 250,000 243,970.00 2.800% 05/02/22 05/02/25 397 QUARTERLY
Synchrony Bank Retail 250,000 244,592.50 3.100% 05/20/22 05/20/25 415 QUARTERLY
Connexus Credit Union 250,000 244,240.00 3.000% 05/26/22 05/27/25 422 QUARTERLY
Bmo Harris Bank 250,000 244,427.50 3.150% 06/17/22 06/17/25 443 QUARTERLY
Saco Biddeford 250,000 243,542.50 2.850% 06/17/22 06/17/25 443 QUARTERLY
Baxter Credit Union 250,000 245,110.00 3.400% 06/28/22 06/30/25 456 QUARTERLY
Capital One Bank 250,000 244,925.00 3.350% 06/29/22 06/30/25 456 QUARTERLY
American First Cr Un 250,000 244,455.00 3.250% 07/15/22 07/15/25 471 QUARTERLY
Trustone Financial Cr Un 250,000 244,402.50 3.250% 07/19/22 07/21/25 477 QUARTERLY
American Natl Bank 250,000 243,852.50 3.100% 07/27/22 07/28/25 484 QUARTERLY
TCM Bank 250,000 244,690.00 3.350% 07/28/22 07/28/25 484 QUARTERLY
Generations Bank 250,000 244,792.50 3.400% 08/03/22 08/04/25 491 QUARTERLY
Direct Fed Credit 250,000 244,512.50 3.500% 08/17/22 08/18/25 505 QUARTERLY
Resource One Credit 250,000 244,342.50 3.300% 08/17/22 08/18/25 505 QUARTERLY
Connext Credit 250,000 244,940.00 3.500% 08/31/22 08/29/25 516 QUARTERLY
Skyone Fed Credit 250,000 245,285.00 3.600% 08/30/22 09/02/25 520 QUARTERLY
Credit Union of Texas 250,000 245,185.00 3.600% 09/14/22 09/15/25 533 QUARTERLY
Forbright Bank 250,000 244,790.00 3.500% 09/16/22 09/16/25 534 QUARTERLY
Ally Bank Sandy Utah 250,000 245,125.00 4.050% 09/29/22 09/19/25 537 QUARTERLY
Alabama Credit Union 250,000 246,530.00 3.600% 09/20/22 09/22/25 540 QUARTERLY
Kemba Finl Credit Union 250,000 246,692.50 4.000% 09/21/22 09/22/25 540 QUARTERLY
Farmers Merchants 250,000 245,657.50 3.750% 09/28/22 09/29/25 547 QUARTERLY
Jefferson Finl FCU 250,000 247,105.00 4.150% 09/29/22 09/29/25 547 QUARTERLY
Dort Finl Credit Union 250,000 246,562.50 4.000% 09/30/22 09/30/25 548 QUARTERLY
First National Bank 250,000 245,627.50 3.625% 09/30/22 09/30/25 548 QUARTERLY
Numerica Credit Union 250,000 247,620.00 4.200% 09/30/22 09/30/25 548 QUARTERLY
Vystar Credit Union 250,000 247,765.00 4.350% 09/30/22 09/30/25 548 QUARTERLY
1st Financial Bank 250,000 247,005.00 4.150% 10/13/22 10/14/25 562 QUARTERLY
Bell Bank Fargo 250,000 247,005.00 4.150% 10/13/22 10/14/25 562 QUARTERLY
Pacific Alliance 250,000 247,190.00 4.200% 10/14/22 10/14/25 562 QUARTERLY
Great Southern Bank 250,000 248,300.00 4.500% 10/20/22 10/20/25 568 QUARTERLY
American Bank 250,000 247,690.00 4.350% 10/21/22 10/21/25 569 QUARTERLY
Queensborough Natl Bank 250,000 247,360.00 4.100% 10/21/22 10/21/25 569 QUARTERLY
Public Alliance Cr Un 250,000 248,300.00 4.500% 10/25/22 10/27/25 575 QUARTERLY
First Citizens Bank 250,000 248,990.00 4.700% 10/28/22 10/28/25 576 QUARTERLY
LCA Bank Corp 250,000 247,865.00 4.400% 10/28/22 10/28/25 576 QUARTERLY
Sharonview Fed Cr Un 250,000 249,980.00 4.850% 10/31/22 10/31/25 579 QUARTERLY
United Heritage Cr Un 250,000 249,287.50 4.700% 11/04/22 11/04/25 583 QUARTERLY
Capital One Natl Assn 250,000 249,940.00 4.900% 11/16/22 11/17/25 596 QUARTERLY
Morgan Stanley Bank 250,000 249,990.00 5.000% 11/18/22 11/18/25 597 QUARTERLY
Spokane Teachers Cr Un 250,000 250,310.00 5.000% 11/23/22 11/23/25 602 QUARTERLY
Morgan Stanley Private 250,000 249,230.00 4.750% 12/09/22 12/09/25 618 QUARTERLY
Community Bank Topeka 250,000 247,475.00 4.300% 12/14/22 12/15/25 624 QUARTERLY
Austin Telco Fed 250,000 250,157.50 4.950% 12/16/22 12/16/25 625 QUARTERLY
Rogue Credit Union 250,000 250,000.00 5.100% 12/23/22 12/23/25 632 QUARTERLY
Alliant Credit Union 250,000 250,847.50 5.100% 12/30/22 12/30/25 639 QUARTERLY

City of Clovis
Certificates of Deposit
As of March 31, 2024

ATTACHMENT 3
15

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 
Negotiable CDs   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 03/31/24 FREQUENCY

City of Clovis
Certificates of Deposit
As of March 31, 2024

First Technology Fed Cr Un 250,000 251,057.50 5.150% 06/30/23 12/30/25 639 MONTHLY
Liberty First Cr Un 250,000 248,540.00 4.550% 01/17/23 01/19/26 659 QUARTERLY
Capital Educators Fed Cr 250,000 248,542.50 4.550% 01/19/23 01/20/26 660 QUARTERLY
Manufacturers Traders 250,000 247,737.50 4.250% 01/31/23 01/23/26 663 QUARTERLY
City Natl Bank 250,000 247,297.50 4.350% 01/25/23 01/26/26 666 QUARTERLY
Coastlife Cr Un 250,000 248,990.00 4.650% 02/13/23 02/13/26 684 QUARTERLY
Achieve Finl Cr Un 250,000 248,997.50 4.650% 02/17/23 02/17/26 688 QUARTERLY
California Cr Un Glendale 250,000 248,297.50 4.500% 02/23/23 02/23/26 694 QUARTERLY
Truliant Fed Cr Un 250,000 248,847.50 4.600% 02/28/23 02/27/26 698 QUARTERLY
Pioneer Fed Cr Un Mtn Home 250,000 248,847.50 4.600% 02/28/23 03/02/26 701 QUARTERLY
Tradition Cap Bankk 250,000 248,557.50 4.600% 03/03/23 03/03/26 702 MONTHLY
Alaska Fed Cr 250,000 249,432.50 4.650% 03/05/23 03/09/26 708 MONTHLY
Mid Carolina Credit 250,000 250,620.00 4.600% 03/13/23 03/13/26 712 MONTHLY
Blue Ridge Bank 250,000 250,567.50 4.500% 03/16/23 03/16/26 715 MONTHLY
Northwest Bank 250,000 250,682.50 4.600% 03/17/23 03/17/26 716 MONTHLY
Valleystar Credit Union 250,000 250,695.00 4.600% 03/20/23 03/20/26 719 MONTHLY
First Community Bank 250,000 250,395.00 4.500% 03/22/23 03/23/26 722 MONTHLY
Technology Credit Union 250,000 250,727.50 4.650% 03/23/23 03/23/26 722 MONTHLY
Cibc Bank 250,000 250,367.50 4.650% 03/24/23 03/24/26 723 MONTHLY
Signature Bank 250,000 250,710.00 4.500% 03/24/23 03/24/26 723 MONTHLY
Point West Credit Union 250,000 250,767.50 5.000% 04/12/23 04/13/26 743 MONTHLY
Flagstar Bank 250,000 250,825.00 4.650% 03/30/23 04/24/26 754 MONTHLY
Utah Cmnty Credit Union 250,000 248,895.00 4.600% 04/26/23 04/27/26 757 MONTHLY
Cross River Bank 250,000 249,115.00 4.650% 05/19/23 05/19/26 779 MONTHLY
Raiz FCU 250,000 249,937.50 4.650% 05/24/23 05/26/26 786 MONTHLY
Usalliance FCU 250,000 249,422.50 4.700% 05/26/23 05/26/26 786 MONTHLY
Chartway Fed Cr Un 250,000 250,497.50 4.900% 06/09/23 06/09/26 800 MONTHLY
Customers Bank 250,000 249,452.50 4.700% 06/14/23 06/15/26 806 MONTHLY
Lafayette Fed Cr Un 250,000 250,812.50 4.950% 12/13/23 06/15/26 806 QUARTERLY
Latino Cmnty Cr Un 250,000 250,602.50 4.900% 06/27/23 06/29/26 820 MONTHLY
Leaders Cr Un 250,000 251,142.50 5.000% 06/30/23 06/30/26 821 MONTHLY
Farmers Insurance 250,000 251,202.50 5.000% 07/21/23 07/21/26 842 MONTHLY
Maine Svgs FCU 250,000 251,202.50 5.000% 07/21/23 07/21/26 842 MONTHLY
Popular Bank New York 250,000 250,572.50 4.850% 09/06/23 09/04/26 887 QUARTERLY
Freedom Northwest Cr Un 250,000 253,550.00 5.350% 09/19/23 09/18/26 901 QUARTERLY
Amex National Bank 250,000 251,505.00 5.000% 09/20/23 09/21/26 904 QUARTERLY
First Gty Bank 250,000 252,205.00 5.100% 10/13/23 10/13/26 926 MONTHLY
Bridgewater Bank 250,000 252,325.00 5.100% 11/03/23 11/03/26 947 MONTHLY
Taylorsville Svgs Bk 250,000 252,325.00 5.100% 11/03/23 11/03/26 947 MONTHLY
Mountain Comm Bk 250,000 248,780.00 4.500% 12/20/23 12/21/26 995 QUARTERLY
American Bk Freedom 250,000 248,712.50 4.500% 12/22/23 12/22/26 996 QUARTERLY
Rockland Fed Cr Un 250,000 249,422.50 4.600% 12/22/23 12/22/26 996 QUARTERLY
Hughes Fed Cr Un 250,000 248,247.50 4.400% 01/29/24 01/29/27 1,034 QUARTERLY
MVB Bk Inc Fairmont 250,000 247,290.00 4.250% 01/31/24 01/29/27 1,034 QUARTERLY
Farmers & Merchants Tr Co 250,000 246,592.50 4.150% 01/30/24 02/01/27 1,037 QUARTERLY
Oregon Cmnty Cr Un 250,000 247,580.00 4.300% 02/09/24 02/09/27 1,045 MONTHLY
Valley Natl Bk 250,000 248,702.50 4.450% 02/21/24 02/22/27 1,058 MONTHLY
CFBank Fairlawn 250,000 248,645.00 4.450% 03/05/24 03/05/27 1,069 QUARTERLY
Haven Svgs Bk 250,000 248,930.00 4.500% 03/06/24 03/08/27 1,072 QUARTERLY
Univest Natl Bk 250,000 249,655.00 4.600% 03/13/24 03/15/27 1,079 QUARTERLY
First Natl Bk 250,000 249,722.50 4.600% 03/19/24 03/19/27 1,083 QUARTERLY
Nicolet Natl Bk 250,000 249,735.00 4.600% 03/22/24 03/22/27 1,086 QUARTERLY
People Bank Co 250,000 251,195.00 4.650% 03/30/23 03/30/27 1,094 MONTHLY
Carroll County 250,000 251,457.50 4.650% 03/30/23 03/30/28 1,460 MONTHLY
Discover Bank 250,000 250,095.00 4.350% 04/26/23 04/24/28 1,485 MONTHLY
TTCU Fed Cr Un 250,000 256,620.00 5.000% 07/26/23 07/26/28 1,578 MONTHLY
Wells Fargo Natl Bk 250,000 257,720.00 5.050% 11/14/23 11/14/28 1,689 MONTHLY
Consumers Fed Cr Un 250,000 257,207.50 5.000% 11/16/23 11/16/28 1,691 MONTHLY
Amerasia Bk 250,000 246,702.50 4.000% 02/15/24 02/15/29 1,782 MONTHLY

Negotiable CD TOTAL 31,245,000$  30,985,978$       

CD TOTAL 31,245,000$  30,985,978$       

ATTACHMENT 3
16

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 
Municipal Securities   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 03/31/24 FREQUENCY

San Diego CA Convention Ref Bond 1,448,934 1,447,738 1.527% 08/18/22 04/15/24 15 QUARTERLY

Santa Ana College Ref Bond 439,491 433,176 0.644% 12/17/21 08/01/24 123 QUARTERLY

University CA Rev Bond 990,308 978,050 4.350% 09/15/22 05/15/25 410 QUARTERLY

Antelope Valley CA Ref Bond 739,545 719,183 1.767% 05/12/22 08/01/25 488 QUARTERLY

Chabot Las Positas Cmnty Clg Bond 1,451,383 1,411,984 0.880% 04/29/22 08/01/25 488 QUARTERLY

Foothill De Anza Bond 799,931 792,574 0.906% 03/24/23 08/01/25 488 QUARTERLY

San Dieguito High School Ref Bond 965,368 958,180 1.661% 10/13/22 08/01/25 488 QUARTERLY

Santa Ana CCD Ref Bond 242,323 236,478 0.744% 05/12/22 08/01/25 488 QUARTERLY

Orange County Water Dist Ref Bond 872,945 866,565 2.095% 10/13/22 08/15/25 502 QUARTERLY

San Jose CA Txble Ser B 2,292,961 2,274,977 2.450% 10/13/22 09/01/25 519 QUARTERLY

Los Angeles CA USD Ref Bond 1,004,867 927,070 1.455% 11/15/21 07/01/26 822 QUARTERLY

Chabot Las Positas Cmnty Clg CA 3,347,966 3,227,369 1.080% 07/27/22 08/01/26 853 QUARTERLY

Chaffey CA High School Ref Bond 1,528,788 1,490,334 2.475% 06/30/22 08/01/26 853 QUARTERLY

Huntington Beach HS Dist Ref Bond 3,179,180 3,049,028 1.208% 04/29/22 08/01/26 853 QUARTERLY

Placentia Yorba USD Ref Bond 1,064,120 1,022,987 1.070% 05/31/22 08/01/26 853 QUARTERLY

San Diego CA Cmnty Ref Bond 461,621 445,767 2.299% 04/29/22 08/01/26 853 QUARTERLY

San Ramon Valley CA USD Ref Bond 2,125,000 1,961,991 1.147% 11/03/21 08/01/26 853 QUARTERLY

Sonoma Cnty Jr College Ref Bond 1,952,465 1,901,240 2.447% 06/30/22 08/01/26 853 QUARTERLY

San Diego CA Pub Facs Ref Bond 1,563,647 1,509,495 1.812% 08/18/22 10/15/26 928 QUARTERLY

CA ST Univ Rev Ref Bond 2,303,561 2,288,100 1.142% 02/17/23 11/01/26 945 QUARTERLY

El Dorado CA Irr Dist Ref Bond 1,120,290 1,078,709 1.687% 08/18/22 03/01/27 1,065 QUARTERLY

Rancho Santiago Cmnty Clg 301,694 298,924 1.106% 11/17/22 03/01/27 1,065 QUARTERLY

University Gen Rev Bond 2,169,923 2,160,929 1.316% 10/13/22 05/15/27 1,140 QUARTERLY

El Monte Ca Ref Bond 547,051 542,316 1.326% 03/24/23 06/01/27 1,157 QUARTERLY

Los Angeles CA Dept Wtr Ref Bond 2,089,395 2,046,240 5.516% 04/27/23 07/01/27 1,187 QUARTERLY

Colton CA Jt Uni Sch 967,716 961,166 1.603% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

Contra Costa Ref Bond 834,262 816,842 2.163% 09/15/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

Corona Norco Ref Bond 229,672 231,983 2.297% 09/28/23 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

Foothill De Anza CCD 493,714 490,622 1.473% 12/15/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

Fremont CA Uni Sch Dist 1,089,548 985,710 1.113% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

Fremont CA USD Ref Bond 999,029 1,052,494 2.000% 05/31/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

Marin CA Cmnty Clg Dist 322,336 322,917 3.330% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

Mount San Antonio Cmnty Clg 255,055 255,206 1.139% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

Mount San Antonio Ref Bond 377,803 377,395 2.329% 10/13/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

Saddleback VY Uni Ref Bond 2,915,799 2,806,440 2.400% 08/10/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

San Diego CA Com CD 556,853 552,057 2.407% 12/15/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

San Ramon Valley Ref Bond 1,329,601 1,300,268 3.415% 09/15/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

Santa Monica Cmnty Clg Ref Bond 986,117 969,540 3.050% 09/15/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

Sierra CA Cmnty Clg Dist 417,891 417,584 1.129% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

William Hart CA Un High 179,440 179,306 1.174% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,218 QUARTERLY

San Jose CA Txble Ser B 856,165 854,536 2.600% 10/13/22 09/01/27 1,249 QUARTERLY

Soquel Creek Cnty Ref Bond 492,220 485,170 1.445% 05/18/23 03/01/28 1,431 QUARTERLY

Gardena Calif Pension Oblig 907,937 923,840 2.663% 10/19/23 04/01/28 1,462 QUARTERLY

Beverly Hills Ref Bond 567,596 556,501 1.514% 06/15/23 06/01/28 1,523 QUARTERLY

California Health FACS 716,393 727,191 3.378% 11/16/23 06/01/28 1,523 QUARTERLY

Alameda Cnty Calif 520,560 520,090 3.519% 03/21/24 08/01/28 1,584 QUARTERLY

Desert CA Cmnty College 911,330 908,150 2.023% 01/19/24 08/01/28 1,584 QUARTERLY

Long Beach Calif Cmnty 667,950 669,191 2.337% 03/21/24 08/01/28 1,584 QUARTERLY

Redondo Beach Ref Bond 582,526 596,140 1.430% 09/28/23 08/01/28 1,584 QUARTERLY

San Ramon Valley CA Uni 1,619,635 1,624,423 1.670% 07/13/23 08/01/28 1,584 QUARTERLY

Santa Ana College Impt 1,312,083 1,315,605 1.320% 07/13/23 08/01/28 1,584 QUARTERLY

Santa Clarita CA Cmnty 893,348 884,730 1.563% 01/19/24 08/01/28 1,584 QUARTERLY

William Hart CA High 887,193 881,320 1.429% 12/21/23 08/01/28 1,584 QUARTERLY

Yosemite Calif Cmnty Clg 687,604 687,983 2.210% 12/21/23 08/01/28 1,584 QUARTERLY

Mun. Securities TOTAL 58,580,128$ 57,423,800$  

Municipal Securities TOTAL 58,580,128$ 57,423,800$  

City of Clovis
Municipal Securities
As of March 31, 2024

ATTACHMENT 4
17

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 
Municipal Securities   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 03/31/24 FREQUENCY

Duke Energy Carolinas 1,949,904 1,933,440 3.950% 02/16/24 11/15/28 1,690 QUARTERLY

Toyota MTR Cr Corp 1,992,197 1,987,760 4.650% 02/16/24 01/05/29 1,741 QUARTERLY

Procter & Gamble Co 1,994,731 1,995,880 4.350% 02/16/24 01/29/29 1,765 QUARTERLY

Cisco Sys Inc 2,020,000 2,014,760 4.850% 03/21/24 02/26/29 1,793 QUARTERLY

Merck Co Inc 1,898,000 1,893,820 3.400% 03/21/24 03/07/29 1,802 QUARTERLY

Blackrock Funding Inc 2,010,000 2,001,320 4.700% 03/21/24 03/14/29 1,809 QUARTERLY

Mun. Securities TOTAL 11,864,832$  11,826,980$      

Municipal Securities TOTAL 11,864,832$  11,826,980$      

City of Clovis
Corporate Securities
As of March 31, 2024

ATTACHMENT 5

18

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 

Treasury Rates as of March 31, 2024

3 month Treasury bill 5.46
6 month Treasury bill 5.38
2 Yr Treasury note 4.59
3 Yr Treasury note 4.40
5 Yr Treasury note 4.21
10 Yr Treasury note 4.20

CITY OF CLOVIS
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

MARCH 31, 2024 TREASURY RATES

As indicated in the above graph, treasuries decrease from 3-month to 10-year notes.

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

3 month
Treasury bill

6 month
Treasury bill

2 Yr Treasury
note

3 Yr Treasury
note

5 Yr Treasury
note

10 Yr
Treasury note

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 R

A
T

E
S

TREASURIES

TREASURY RATES ON MARCH 31, 2024

ATTACHMENT 6
19

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Finance Department 

DATE: August 19, 2024 

SUBJECT: Finance – Receive and File – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of March 
2024. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Summary of Cash Balances 
2. Summary of Investment Activity 
3. Investments with Original Maturities Exceeding One Year 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Attached for the Council’s information is the Treasurer’s Report for the month ended March 31, 
2024. 
 
Pursuant to Section 41004 of the Government Code of the State of California, the City Treasurer 
is required to submit a monthly report of all receipts, disbursements, and fund balances.  
Attachment 1 provides a summary of the beginning balance, total receipts, total disbursements, 
ending balance for all funds, and a listing, by fund, of all month end fund balances.  Attachment 
2 summarizes the investment activity for the month and distribution, by type of investment, held 
by the City.  Attachment 3 lists all investments with original maturities exceeding one year as of 
the month ended March 31, 2024. 
 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey Blanks, Deputy Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH  

 

20

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



Previous Balance 2,344,815.05$               
Deposits 39,853,726.55
Disbursements (38,317,826.01)

Current  Balance 3,880,715.59$               

FUNDS BALANCE
100      General Fund 11,141,853.82$             
201      Local Transportation 20,616,051.61
202      Parking and Business Improvements 264,182.34
203      Off Highway Use 74,130.37
204      Community Facilities District 2020-1 244,393.06
205      Senior Citizen Memorial Trust 59,378.05
207      Landscape Assessment District 7,471,975.52
208      Blackhorse III (95-1) Assessment District 15,560.01
209      Blackhorse III (95-1) Assessment District 2 35,765.64
275      HCD Block Grant Fund 357,800.25
301      Park & Recreation Acquisition 7,578,305.54
305      Refuse Equipment Reserve 2,450,143.48
310      Special Street Deposit Fund 50,492,150.67
314      Housing Successor Agency 384,447.37
402      1976 Fire Bond Redemption 25,475.23
404      1976 Sewer Bond Redemption Fund 428,261.38
501      Community Sanitation Fund 16,156,034.20
502      Sewer Service Fund 35,739,799.71
504      Sewer Capital Projects-Users 275,277.17
506      Sewer Capital Projects-Developer 5,351,452.78
507      Water Service Fund 45,693,562.93
508      Water Capital Projects-Users 6,215,718.51
509      Water Capital Projects-Developer 8,649,912.75
515      Transit Fund 1,386,099.97
540      Planning & Development Services 16,476,803.68
601      Property & Liability Insurance 412,415.35
602      Fleet Maintenance 24,798,527.75
603      Employee Benefit Fund 14,801,799.41
604      General Government Services 28,869,980.15
605      Facilities Maintenance 4,068,521.34
606      Information Technology 6,748,509.05
701      Curb & Gutter Fund 169,211.53
703      Payroll Tax & Withholding Fund 1,492,624.21
712      Temperance/Barstow Assmt Dist (98-1) 79,817.74
713      Shepherd/Temperance Assmt Dist (2000-1) 5,919.58
715      Supp Law Enforcement Serv 369,911.34
716      Asset Forfeiture 368,664.18
720      Measure A-Public Safety Facility Tax 2,035.22
736      SA Admin Trust Fund 1,421.40
741      SA Debt Service Trust Fund (179,369.82)
747      Housing Successor Trust Fund 1,137.98

SUBTOTALS 319,595,662.45$           

999      Invested Funds (315,714,946.86)

TOTAL 3,880,715.59$               

Statement of Cash Balances

As of March 31, 2024

City of Clovis

ATTACHMENT 1
21

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



Balance of Investments Previous Month End 318,699,994.95$                 

Time Certificates of Deposit Transactions

Investments 1,250,000.00
Withdrawals (500,000.00)

Total CD Changes 750,000.00

Other Changes

Government Securities (13,541,879.00)

Local Agency Investment Fund 0.00

Municipal Securities 1,449,456.00

Corporate Securities 5,929,632.00

Sweep Account 2,427,742.91

Total Other Changes (3,735,048.09)

Balance of Investments Current Month End 315,714,946.86$                 

Insured CD's 31,245,000.00

Government Securities 141,808,163.35

Corporation Securities 11,864,832.00

Local Agency Investment Fund 56,706,769.08

Municipal Securities 58,580,127.55

Sweep Account 15,510,054.88

Investment Total 315,714,946.86$                 

As of March 31, 2024

City of Clovis
Summary of Investment Activity
For the month of March 31, 2024

City of Clovis
Distribution of Investments

ATTACHMENT 2
22

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



Investment

Balance At Stated

Institution Face Value Amortized Cost Maturity Rate

FHLB 5,000,000.00 5,000,000 6/7/2024 0.350%

FHLB 1,000,000.00 991,539 6/24/2024 0.700%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,993,108 11/15/2024 1.050%

FHLB 1,735,000.00 1,685,682 12/30/2024 0.500%

FNMA 2,000,000.00 1,933,157 2/24/2025 0.500%

FNMA 1,000,000.00 967,276 2/25/2025 0.520%

FHLB 1,000,000.00 968,066 2/27/2025 0.625%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,993,906 2/28/2025 1.750%

FAMCMTN 4,000,000.00 4,000,000 4/25/2025 2.750%

FAMCMTN 4,000,000.00 3,980,786 7/28/2025 0.750%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 5,000,000 8/28/2025 3.600%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,980,990 9/8/2025 0.600%

FHLB 980,000.00 899,603 11/25/2025 0.500%

FFCB 5,000,000.00 4,984,394 2/11/2026 0.580%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,964,592 2/24/2026 0.750%

FHLB 3,000,000.00 2,827,986 3/16/2026 0.790%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,983,642 9/28/2026 0.940%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,791,339 10/28/2026 1.150%

FHLB 6,000,000.00 5,993,639 11/24/2026 1.250%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 5,070,460 12/11/2026 2.125%

FHLB 4,500,000.00 4,215,370 2/24/2027 1.020%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,711,259 2/24/2027 1.020%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,819,465 2/26/2027 0.900%

FHLB 6,800,000.00 5,250,826 2/26/2027 0.900%

FHLB 5,700,000.00 6,284,516 2/26/2027 0.900%

FHLB 6,000,000.00 5,456,366 2/26/2027 1.000%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 4,000,000 3/8/2027 2.375%

FHLB 6,000,000.00 5,334,825 2/22/2028 0.830%

FHLB 400,000.00 357,344 2/25/2028 1.125%

FFCB 2,500,000.00 2,167,002 3/2/2028 1.000%

FHLB 3,000,000.00 3,101,864 3/10/2028 4.500%

FFCB 2,245,000.00 1,929,375 3/10/2028 1.000%

FFCB 700,000.00 630,285 3/22/2028 1.370%

FFCB 6,000,000.00 6,083,008 4/25/2028 3.875%

FFCB 5,500,000.00 5,378,159 4/27/2028 3.740%

FFCB 3,000,000.00 2,961,549 6/22/2028 4.470%

FFCB 3,000,000.00 2,663,436 7/13/2028 1.230%

FHLMC 1,000,000.00 865,196 7/27/2028 1.100%

FNMA 1,000,000.00 860,865 7/28/2028 1.000%

FHLB 1,000,000.00 889,596 8/4/2028 1.300%

FFCB 3,000,000.00 2,983,390 9/8/2028 4.750%
FHLMC 1,000,000.00 854,303 10/19/2028 1.000%

Government Maturities Exceeding One Year
As of March 31, 2024

City of Clovis

ATTACHMENT 3
23

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



Investment

Balance At Stated

Institution Face Value Amortized Cost Maturity Rate

San Diego Conv Ctr Expansion 1,450,000.00 1,448,934.00 4/15/2024 1.527%

Sana Ana College Improv Dist 440,000.00 439,491.00 8/1/2024 0.644%

UC General Revenue Bonds 1,000,000.00 990,308.00 5/15/2025 3.050%

Antelope Valley Comm Coll 750,000.00 739,544.50 8/1/2025 1.767%

Chabot Las Positas Comm Coll 1,490,000.00 1,451,383.00 8/1/2025 0.880%

Foothill De Anza Ref Bds 2021B 835,000.00 799,930.50 8/1/2025 0.906%

San Dieguito USD GO Bonds 1,000,000.00 965,368.00 8/1/2025 1.661%

Santa Ana Coll Improv Dist 250,000.00 242,322.50 8/1/2025 0.744%

Orange County Water Dist 900,000.00 872,945.00 8/15/2025 2.095%

San Jose Ca Taxable Series B 2,355,000.00 2,292,960.50 9/1/2025 2.450%

LA CUSD GO Bonds 1,000,000.00 1,004,867.00 7/1/2026 1.455%

Chabot Las Positas Comm Coll 3,505,000.00 3,347,966.00 8/1/2026 1.080%

Chaffey Joint Union HS 1,565,000.00 1,528,787.50 8/1/2026 2.475%

Huntington Beach Union HS 3,305,000.00 3,179,180.00 8/1/2026 1.208%

Placentia Yorba Linda USD 1,110,000.00 1,064,120.00 8/1/2026 1.070%

San Diego Comm Coll Dist 470,000.00 461,621.00 8/1/2026 2.299%

San Ramon Valley CUSD 2,125,000.00 2,125,000.00 8/1/2026 1.147%

Sonoma County Jr Coll Dist 2,000,000.00 1,952,465.00 8/1/2026 2.447%

San Diego Pub Facilities Dist 1,625,000.00 1,563,647.00 10/15/2026 1.812%

California St Univ Taxable 2021B 2,500,000.00 2,303,561.00 11/1/2026 1.142%

El Dorado Irrigation Dist 1,175,000.00 1,120,290.00 3/1/2027 1.687%

Rancho Santiago CC Ref 2020 335,000.00 301,693.50 3/1/2027 1.106%

UC Taxable Gen Bds 2020 B 2,385,000.00 2,169,922.50 5/15/2027 1.316%

El Monte HSD Taxable Ref 2021 600,000.00 547,051.00 6/1/2027 1.326%

LA Dept Wtr Pwr Rev Bonds 2010C 2,000,000.00 2,089,395.00 7/1/2027 5.516%

Colton CA USD Ref Bonds 2020 1,060,000.00 967,716.00 8/1/2027 1.603%

Contra Costa Comm College Dist 880,000.00 834,262.00 8/1/2027 2.163%

Corona Norco USD Ref Bond 2019 250,000.00 229,672.00 8/1/2027 2.297%

Foothill De Anza CC Taxable 2021 540,000.00 493,714.00 8/1/2027 1.473%

Fremont USD Alameda County 1,100,000.00 1,089,548.00 8/1/2027 1.113%

Fremont USD Taxable Ref 2021 1,140,000.00 999,029.00 8/1/2027 2.000%

Marin County Comm Coll 2016 335,000.00 322,335.80 8/1/2027 3.330%

Mount San Antonio CC 2021 285,000.00 255,055.00 8/1/2027 1.139%

Mount San Antonio Comm Coll 405,000.00 377,802.75 8/1/2027 2.329%

Saddleback Valley USD 3,000,000.00 2,915,799.00 8/1/2027 2.400%

San Diego CCD Taxable 2019 590,000.00 556,853.00 8/1/2027 2.407%

San Ramon Valley CUSD 1,435,000.00 1,329,601.00 8/1/2027 1.440%

Santa Monica Comm College Dist 1,000,000.00 986,117.00 8/1/2027 3.415%

Sierra CA CCD 2021A Ref 465,000.00 417,890.50 8/1/2027 1.129%

William Hart USD 2020 Ref 200,000.00 179,440.00 8/1/2027 1.174%

San Jose Ca Taxable Series B 910,000.00 856,165.00 9/1/2027 2.600%
Soquel Creek Wtr Ref 2020 545,000.00 492,219.50 3/1/2028 1.445%

Gardena Calif Pension Obligation 1,000,000.00 907,937.00 4/1/2028 2.663%

Beverly Hills Taxable Ref 2020B 635,000.00 567,595.50 6/1/2028 1.514%

California Health Facs Fing Au 760,000.00 716,393.00 6/1/2028 3.378%

Alameda Cnty Calif 540,000.00 520,560.00 8/1/2028 3.519%

Desert CA Cmnty College 1,000,000.00 911,330.00 8/1/2028 2.023%

Long Beach Calif Cmnty 730,000.00 667,950.00 8/1/2028 2.337%

Redondo Beach CA Uni Bond 2018 675,000.00 582,526.00 8/1/2028 1.430%

San Ramon Valley CA 1,820,000.00 1,619,635.00 8/1/2028 1.670%

Santa Ana College Impt 1,500,000.00 1,312,083.00 8/1/2028 1.320%

Santa Clarita Calif Cmnty 1,000,000.00 893,348.00 8/1/2028 1.563%
William Hart High 1,000,000.00 887,193.00 8/1/2028 1.429%

Yosemite Calif Cmnty College 750,000.00 687,604.00 8/1/2028 2.210%

City of Clovis
Municipal Maturities Exceeding One Year

As of March 31, 2024

ATTACHMENT 3
24

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



Investment

Balance At Stated

Institution Face Value Amortized Cost Maturity Rate

Duke Energy Carolinas LLC 2,000,000.00 1,949,904.00 11/15/2028 3.950%

Toyota MTR Cr Corp 2,000,000.00 1,992,197.00 1/5/2029 4.350%

Procter & Gamble Co 2,000,000.00 1,994,731.00 1/29/2029 4.650%

Cisco Sys Inc. 2,000,000.00 2,020,000.00 2/26/2029 4.850%

Merck Co Inc. 2,000,000.00 1,898,000.00 3/7/2029 3.400%

Blackrock Fund Inc. 2,000,000.00 2,010,000.00 3/14/2029 4.700%

City of Clovis
Corporate Maturities Exceeding One Year

As of March 31, 2024

ATTACHMENT 3
25

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Finance Department 

DATE: August 19, 2024 

SUBJECT: Finance – Receive and File – Investment Report for the Month of April 
2024. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Distribution of Investments 
2. Monthly Investment Transactions 
3. Certificates of Deposit 
4. Municipal Securities 
5. Corporate Securities 
6. Graph of April 30, 2024 Treasury Rates 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Attached is the Investment Report for the month of April 2024.  Shown in Attachment 1 is the 
distribution of investments which lists all the individual securities owned by the City with the book 
and market values. Book value is the actual price paid for the investment.  Market value is the 
amount that the investment is worth if sold in the open market. The market value (which 
fluctuates daily) that is used in the report is as of the last working day of the month.  Attachment 
2 reflects the monthly investment transactions for the month of April 2024.  Attachment 3 lists 
the certificates of deposit. Attachment 4 lists the municipal securities. Attachment 5 lists the 
corporate securities.  Attachment 6 is a graph of Treasury rates on April 30, 2024. 
 
The investment of the City’s funds is performed in accordance with the adopted Investment 
Policy.  Funds are invested with the following objectives in mind: 
 
1. Assets are invested in adherence with the safeguards and diversity of a prudent investor. 
 
2. The portfolio is invested in a manner consistent with the primary emphasis on preservation 
of the principal, while attaining a high rate of return consistent with this guideline. Trading of 
securities for the sole purpose of realizing trading profits is prohibited. 
 
3. Sufficient liquidity is maintained to provide a source for anticipated financial obligations as 
they become due.   
 

26

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



4. Investments may be made, consistent with the Investment Policy Guidelines, in fixed 
income securities maturing in three years or less and can be extended to five years with the City 
Manager’s approval. 
 
The Finance Department invests the City’s assets with an expectation of achieving a total rate 
of return at a level that exceeds the annualized rate of return on short-term government 
guaranteed or insured obligations (90-day Treasury bills) and to assure that the principal is 
preserved with minimal risk of depreciation or loss.  In periods of rising interest rates, the City of 
Clovis portfolio return may be less than that of the annualized 90-day Treasury bill.  In periods 
of decreasing interest rates, the City of Clovis portfolio return may be greater than the annualized 
90-day Treasury bill.  The current 90-day Treasury bill rate (annualized) is 5.39%.  The rate of 
return for the City of Clovis portfolio is 3.59%.  The goal for the City of Clovis investment return 
is 120% of the 90-day Treasury bill rate.  The current rate of return is 67% of the Treasury bill 
rate. 
 
The Finance Department began investing in corporate securities in February to provide 
additional diversification and yield to the portfolio. 3 corporate securities totaling $6,000,000 
were purchased this month at an aggregate yield of 5.02%, which is roughly 30 basis points 
higher than current yields on 5-year Treasury bonds.  
 
In accordance with the Investment Policy, the investment period on each investment is up to 
three years and can be extended to five years with the City Manager’s approval.  As of April 
2024, the average investment life of the City’s investment portfolio is 1.97 years. 
 
Current Investment Environment and Philosophy 
During the month of April 2024, the federal funds rate remained at 5.25%-5.50%. On April 30, 
2024, the Treasury yield curve decreased from 3-month to 10-year notes. 
 
Certificates of Deposit (CD’s) 
The City purchases both negotiable and non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit (CD’s). Although 
negotiable CD’s can be traded, it is the City’s policy to buy and hold all CD’s. Negotiable CD’s 
are held by U.S. Bank, a third party custodian. Non-negotiable CD’s are held in the City’s safe. 
 
Purchases and Maturities 
• 0 government securities were purchased.  
• 0 government securities were called matured.  
• 1 certificate of deposit totaling $250,000 was purchased. 
• 1 certificates of deposit totaling $245,000 matured. 
• 0 municipal securities were purchased. 
• 1 municipal security totaling $1,450,000 matured. 
• 3 corporate securities totaling $6,000,000 were purchased. 
• 0 corporate securities were called or matured. 
Market Environment 
• During April the federal funds rate remained at 5.25%-5.50%. 
• On April 30, the yield curve decreased from 3-month to 10-year notes. See Attachment 6, 
Graph of Treasury Rates on April 30, 2024. 

27

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey Blanks, Deputy Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH  

 

28

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



STATED
DAYS TO 

MATURITY
NET BOOK MARKET YIELD TO INTEREST INVEST MATURITY FROM

COST VALUE VALUE * MATURITY RATE DATE DATE 4/30/2024

GOV'T SECURITIES

FHLB 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,974,550 0.350% 0.350% 06/07/21 06/07/24 38
FHLB 941,770 991,539 993,280 4.500% 0.700% 11/17/22 06/24/24 55
FHLB 4,969,000 4,993,108 4,890,500 1.274% 1.050% 01/20/22 11/15/24 199
FHLB 1,595,506 1,685,682 1,681,770 4.515% 0.500% 11/16/22 12/30/24 244
FNMA 1,857,400 1,933,157 1,923,600 4.415% 0.500% 03/23/23 02/24/25 300
FNMA 930,300 967,276 962,190 4.338% 0.520% 03/23/23 02/25/25 301
FHLB 932,200 968,066 962,770 4.328% 0.625% 03/23/23 02/27/25 303
FHLB 3,980,000 3,993,906 3,886,360 1.922% 1.750% 02/28/22 02/28/25 304
FHLB 4,000,000 4,000,000 3,904,120 2.750% 2.750% 04/25/22 04/25/25 360
FAMCMTN 3,947,600 3,980,786 3,791,200 1.121% 0.750% 12/16/21 07/28/25 454
FHLB 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,898,500 3.600% 3.600% 08/30/22 08/28/25 485
FAMCMTN 4,948,500 4,980,990 4,707,650 0.869% 0.600% 10/14/21 09/08/25 496
FHLB 871,150 899,603 882,303 3.886% 0.500% 04/26/23 11/25/25 574
FHLB 4,963,000 4,984,394 4,613,450 0.750% 0.580% 09/08/21 02/11/26 652
FHLB 3,922,000 3,964,592 3,696,480 1.229% 0.750% 12/16/21 02/24/26 665
FHLB 2,751,000 2,827,986 2,764,200 3.916% 0.790% 05/17/23 03/16/26 685
FFCB 4,967,500 4,983,642 4,530,100 1.075% 0.940% 10/14/21 09/28/26 881
FHLB 3,649,200 3,791,339 3,626,000 3.342% 1.150% 06/29/22 10/28/26 911
FHLB 5,988,000 5,993,639 5,438,520 1.291% 1.250% 11/24/21 11/24/26 938
FHLB 5,127,757 5,070,460 4,652,950 1.580% 2.125% 01/20/22 12/11/26 955
FHLB 4,043,250 4,215,370 4,022,084 3.397% 1.020% 06/29/22 02/24/27 1,030
FHLB 4,550,000 4,711,259 4,495,236 3.173% 1.020% 08/17/22 02/24/27 1,030
FHLB 3,695,200 3,819,465 3,713,292 2.564% 0.900% 03/31/22 02/26/27 1,032
FHLB 6,072,400 5,250,826 5,104,864 3.737% 0.900% 01/19/23 02/26/27 1,032
FHLB 5,247,000 6,284,516 6,109,820 4.329% 0.900% 02/16/23 02/26/27 1,032
FHLB 5,050,770 5,456,366 5,109,081 3.971% 1.000% 12/14/22 02/26/27 1,032
FHLB 4,000,000 4,000,000 3,720,880 2.375% 2.375% 03/08/22 03/08/27 1,042
FFCB 5,160,000 5,334,825 5,161,080 3.996% 0.830% 03/23/23 02/22/28 1,393
FHLB 355,160 357,344 347,228 4.123% 1.125% 01/18/24 02/25/28 1,396
FFCB 2,123,750 2,167,002 2,162,850 4.812% 1.000% 09/27/23 03/02/28 1,402
FHLB 1,893,209 1,929,375 1,936,110 5.018% 1.000% 10/18/23 03/10/28 1,410
FHLB 3,124,500 3,101,864 2,975,880 3.553% 4.500% 05/17/23 03/10/28 1,410
FFCB 626,780 630,285 613,438 4.121% 1.370% 01/18/04 03/22/28 1,422
FFCB 6,102,000 6,083,008 5,797,080 3.501% 3.875% 04/26/23 04/25/28 1,456
FFCB 5,354,250 5,378,159 5,231,325 4.349% 3.740% 06/14/23 04/27/28 1,458
FFCB 2,955,000 2,961,549 2,940,540 4.814% 4.470% 07/12/23 06/22/28 1,514
FFCB 2,641,500 2,663,436 2,581,350 4.130% 1.230% 12/20/23 07/13/28 1,535
FHLMC 853,500 865,196 854,370 4.601% 1.100% 11/15/23 07/27/28 1,549
FNMA 848,800 860,865 850,500 4.613% 1.000% 11/15/23 07/28/28 1,550
FHLB 882,500 889,596 861,090 4.117% 1.300% 12/20/23 08/04/28 1,557
FHLB 2,981,700 2,983,390 2,997,840 4.892% 4.750% 10/18/23 09/08/28 1,592
FHLMC 842,300 854,303 843,380 4.614% 1.000% 11/15/23 10/19/28 1,633

SECURITIES TOTAL 139,745,451$   141,808,163$       136,209,812$       

LAIF 57,312,667$         57,312,667$         

Municipal Issuance 57,130,663$         55,458,187$         

Corporate Securities 17,808,832$         17,497,960$         

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 30,042,818$         30,042,818$         

TOTAL CD'S 31,250,000$         30,936,420$         

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 335,353,143$       327,457,864$       

* Market values for securities obtained from US Bank.

City of Clovis
Distribution of Investments

As of April 30, 2024

ATTACHMENT 1
29

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



Activity Maturity
Institution Description Activity Amount Market Value Rate Date Date

Astrazeneca Finance LLC Corp Purchase 2,000,000 1,982,000 4.850% 04/19/24 02/26/29

Home Depot Inc Corp Purchase 2,000,000 1,992,000 4.900% 04/19/24 04/15/29

United Health Group Corp Purchase 2,000,000 1,970,000 4.700% 04/19/24 04/15/29

United FID Bank CD Purchase 250,000 250,000 4.600% 04/12/24 04/12/27

San Diego CA Cnvtn Mun Iss. Maturity 1,450,000 1,450,000 1.527% 04/15/24 04/15/24

Bank United Natl Assn CD Maturity 245,000 245,000 0.450% 04/01/24 04/01/24

PORTFOLIO DATA

Current Month (04/24)

Book Market

CD'S 31,250,000$        30,936,420$        

Gov't Securities* 141,808,163 136,209,812

Municipal Securities 57,130,663 55,458,187

Corporate Securities 17,808,832 17,497,960

LAIF 57,312,667 57,312,667

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 30,042,818 30,042,818

TOTAL 335,353,143$      327,457,864$      

Prior Month (03/24) Three Months Previous (01/24)

Book Market Book Market

CD'S 31,245,000$        30,985,978$        CD'S 29,745,000$        29,646,249$        

Gov't Securities* 141,808,163 137,216,556 Gov't Securities* 155,350,042 151,735,277

Municipal Securities 58,580,128          57,423,800          Municipal Securities 57,130,672 56,405,113

Corporate Securities 11,864,832          11,826,980          Corporate Securities -                       -                       

LAIF 56,706,769 56,706,769 LAIF 56,706,769 56,706,769

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 15,510,055 15,510,055 Sweep Account (Union Bank) 27,174,496 27,174,496

TOTAL 315,714,947$      309,670,138$      TOTAL 326,106,979$      321,667,904$      

Six Months Previous (10/23) One Year Previous (04/23)

Book Market Book Market

CD'S 27,245,000$        26,545,011$        CD'S 23,495,000$        22,922,645$        

Gov't Securities* 147,880,942 140,544,390 Gov't Securities* 126,238,741 121,131,050

Municipal Securities 56,265,639 54,033,514 Municipal Securities 58,870,000 55,008,657

Corporate Securities -                       -                       Corporate Securities -                       -                       

LAIF 56,142,817 56,142,817 LAIF 75,000,000 75,000,000

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 13,554,212 13,554,212 Sweep Account (Union Bank) 30,757,183 30,757,183

TOTAL 301,088,610$      290,819,944$      TOTAL 314,360,924$      304,819,535$      

*Adjusted Quarterly for Premium/Discount Amortization

As of April 30, 2024

Monthly Investment Transactions
City of Clovis

ATTACHMENT 2
30

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 
Negotiable CDs   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 04/30/24 FREQUENCY

Greenstate Credit Union 250,000 248,425.00 0.450% 06/16/21 06/17/24 48 QUARTERLY
Eaglemark Savings Bank 250,000 248,017.50 0.400% 06/30/21 06/28/24 59 QUARTERLY
Texas Exchange Bk 250,000 247,700.00 0.500% 07/09/21 07/09/24 70 QUARTERLY
BMW Bk North Amer 250,000 247,005.00 0.550% 07/30/21 07/30/24 91 QUARTERLY
Toyota Finl Svgs 250,000 245,767.50 0.650% 09/09/21 09/09/24 132 QUARTERLY
State Bk India 250,000 245,520.00 0.650% 09/17/21 09/17/24 140 QUARTERLY
Ubs Bank Usa 250,000 243,837.50 0.750% 11/17/21 11/18/24 202 QUARTERLY
Webbank Salt Lake City 250,000 243,565.00 0.750% 11/29/21 11/29/24 213 QUARTERLY
Medallion Bank Salt Lake City 250,000 243,127.50 0.900% 12/20/21 12/20/24 234 QUARTERLY
Beal Bank 250,000 242,572.50 0.950% 01/19/22 01/15/25 260 QUARTERLY
Mountian Amer Fed 250,000 246,360.00 3.450% 08/31/22 02/28/25 304 QUARTERLY
Barclays Bk 250,000 242,600.00 1.700% 03/09/22 03/10/25 314 QUARTERLY
Goldman Sachs Bk 250,000 242,497.50 1.650% 03/09/22 03/10/25 314 QUARTERLY
Safra National Bk 250,000 242,962.50 2.000% 03/23/22 03/24/25 328 QUARTERLY
Pentagon Federal Cr Un 250,000 242,925.00 2.000% 03/28/22 03/28/25 332 QUARTERLY
Beal Bank 250,000 243,292.50 2.200% 04/06/22 04/02/25 337 QUARTERLY
JP Morgan Chase 250,000 243,840.00 2.500% 04/08/22 04/08/25 343 QUARTERLY
First Natl Bank 250,000 243,162.50 2.200% 04/12/22 04/11/25 346 QUARTERLY
One Community Bank 250,000 244,055.00 2.700% 04/29/22 04/29/25 364 QUARTERLY
Americu Credit Union 250,000 244,257.50 2.800% 05/02/22 05/02/25 367 QUARTERLY
Synchrony Bank Retail 250,000 244,775.00 3.100% 05/20/22 05/20/25 385 QUARTERLY
Connexus Credit Union 250,000 244,452.50 3.000% 05/26/22 05/27/25 392 QUARTERLY
Bmo Harris Bank 250,000 244,580.00 3.150% 06/17/22 06/17/25 413 QUARTERLY
Saco Biddeford 250,000 243,757.50 2.850% 06/17/22 06/17/25 413 QUARTERLY
Baxter Credit Union 250,000 245,157.50 3.400% 06/28/22 06/30/25 426 QUARTERLY
Capital One Bank 250,000 244,997.50 3.350% 06/29/22 06/30/25 426 QUARTERLY
American First Cr Un 250,000 244,550.00 3.250% 07/15/22 07/15/25 441 QUARTERLY
Trustone Financial Cr Un 250,000 244,487.50 3.250% 07/19/22 07/21/25 447 QUARTERLY
American Natl Bank 250,000 243,960.00 3.100% 07/27/22 07/28/25 454 QUARTERLY
TCM Bank 250,000 244,710.00 3.350% 07/28/22 07/28/25 454 QUARTERLY
Generations Bank 250,000 244,827.50 3.400% 08/03/22 08/04/25 461 QUARTERLY
Direct Fed Credit 250,000 244,535.00 3.500% 08/17/22 08/18/25 475 QUARTERLY
Resource One Credit 250,000 244,377.50 3.300% 08/17/22 08/18/25 475 QUARTERLY
Connext Credit 250,000 244,917.50 3.500% 08/31/22 08/29/25 486 QUARTERLY
Skyone Fed Credit 250,000 245,200.00 3.600% 08/30/22 09/02/25 490 QUARTERLY
Credit Union of Texas 250,000 245,082.50 3.600% 09/14/22 09/15/25 503 QUARTERLY
Forbright Bank 250,000 244,737.50 3.500% 09/16/22 09/16/25 504 QUARTERLY
Ally Bank Sandy Utah 250,000 245,045.00 4.050% 09/29/22 09/19/25 507 QUARTERLY
Alabama Credit Union 250,000 246,365.00 3.600% 09/20/22 09/22/25 510 QUARTERLY
Kemba Finl Credit Union 250,000 246,392.50 4.000% 09/21/22 09/22/25 510 QUARTERLY
Farmers Merchants 250,000 245,500.00 3.750% 09/28/22 09/29/25 517 QUARTERLY
Jefferson Finl FCU 250,000 246,865.00 4.150% 09/29/22 09/29/25 517 QUARTERLY
Dort Finl Credit Union 250,000 246,350.00 4.000% 09/30/22 09/30/25 518 QUARTERLY
First National Bank 250,000 245,470.00 3.625% 09/30/22 09/30/25 518 QUARTERLY
Numerica Credit Union 250,000 247,345.00 4.200% 09/30/22 09/30/25 518 QUARTERLY
Vystar Credit Union 250,000 247,517.50 4.350% 09/30/22 09/30/25 518 QUARTERLY
1st Financial Bank 250,000 246,775.00 4.150% 10/13/22 10/14/25 532 QUARTERLY
Bell Bank Fargo 250,000 246,775.00 4.150% 10/13/22 10/14/25 532 QUARTERLY
Pacific Alliance 250,000 246,947.50 4.200% 10/14/22 10/14/25 532 QUARTERLY
Great Southern Bank 250,000 247,985.00 4.500% 10/20/22 10/20/25 538 QUARTERLY
American Bank 250,000 247,372.50 4.350% 10/21/22 10/21/25 539 QUARTERLY
Queensborough Natl Bank 250,000 247,097.50 4.100% 10/21/22 10/21/25 539 QUARTERLY
Public Alliance Cr Un 250,000 247,975.00 4.500% 10/25/22 10/27/25 545 QUARTERLY
First Citizens Bank 250,000 248,597.50 4.700% 10/28/22 10/28/25 546 QUARTERLY
LCA Bank Corp 250,000 247,532.50 4.400% 10/28/22 10/28/25 546 QUARTERLY
Sharonview Fed Cr Un 250,000 249,770.00 4.850% 10/31/22 10/31/25 549 QUARTERLY
United Heritage Cr Un 250,000 248,897.50 4.700% 11/04/22 11/04/25 553 QUARTERLY
Capital One Natl Assn 250,000 249,480.00 4.900% 11/16/22 11/17/25 566 QUARTERLY
Morgan Stanley Bank 250,000 249,792.50 5.000% 11/18/22 11/18/25 567 QUARTERLY
Spokane Teachers Cr Un 250,000 249,835.00 5.000% 11/23/22 11/23/25 572 QUARTERLY
Morgan Stanley Private 250,000 248,760.00 4.750% 12/09/22 12/09/25 588 QUARTERLY
Community Bank Topeka 250,000 247,110.00 4.300% 12/14/22 12/15/25 594 QUARTERLY
Austin Telco Fed 250,000 249,657.50 4.950% 12/16/22 12/16/25 595 QUARTERLY
Rogue Credit Union 250,000 250,010.00 5.100% 12/23/22 12/23/25 602 QUARTERLY
Alliant Credit Union 250,000 250,257.50 5.100% 12/30/22 12/30/25 609 QUARTERLY
First Technology Fed Cr Un 250,000 250,455.00 5.150% 06/30/23 12/30/25 609 MONTHLY

City of Clovis
Certificates of Deposit

As of April 30, 2024

ATTACHMENT 3
31

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 
Negotiable CDs   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 04/30/24 FREQUENCY

City of Clovis
Certificates of Deposit

As of April 30, 2024

Liberty First Cr Un 250,000 248,062.50 4.550% 01/17/23 01/19/26 629 QUARTERLY
Capital Educators Fed Cr 250,000 248,062.50 4.550% 01/19/23 01/20/26 630 QUARTERLY
Manufacturers Traders 250,000 247,260.00 4.250% 01/31/23 01/23/26 633 QUARTERLY
City Natl Bank 250,000 246,827.50 4.350% 01/25/23 01/26/26 636 QUARTERLY
Coastlife Cr Un 250,000 248,445.00 4.650% 02/13/23 02/13/26 654 QUARTERLY
Achieve Finl Cr Un 250,000 248,445.00 4.650% 02/17/23 02/17/26 658 QUARTERLY
California Cr Un Glendale 250,000 247,730.00 4.500% 02/23/23 02/23/26 664 QUARTERLY
Truliant Fed Cr Un 250,000 248,252.50 4.600% 02/28/23 02/27/26 668 QUARTERLY
Pioneer Fed Cr Un Mtn Home 250,000 248,247.50 4.600% 02/28/23 03/02/26 671 QUARTERLY
Tradition Cap Bankk 250,000 247,997.50 4.600% 03/03/23 03/03/26 672 MONTHLY
Alaska Fed Cr 250,000 248,820.00 4.650% 03/05/23 03/09/26 678 MONTHLY
Mid Carolina Credit 250,000 249,947.50 4.600% 03/13/23 03/13/26 682 MONTHLY
Blue Ridge Bank 250,000 249,847.50 4.500% 03/16/23 03/16/26 685 MONTHLY
Northwest Bank 250,000 250,002.50 4.600% 03/17/23 03/17/26 686 MONTHLY
Valleystar Credit Union 250,000 250,007.50 4.600% 03/20/23 03/20/26 689 MONTHLY
First Community Bank 250,000 249,672.50 4.500% 03/22/23 03/23/26 692 MONTHLY
Technology Credit Union 250,000 250,037.50 4.650% 03/23/23 03/23/26 692 MONTHLY
Cibc Bank 250,000 249,642.50 4.650% 03/24/23 03/24/26 693 MONTHLY
Signature Bank 250,000 250,017.50 4.500% 03/24/23 03/24/26 693 MONTHLY
Point West Credit Union 250,000 250,012.50 5.000% 04/12/23 04/13/26 713 MONTHLY
Flagstar Bank 250,000 249,975.00 4.650% 03/30/23 04/24/26 724 MONTHLY
Utah Cmnty Credit Union 250,000 248,230.00 4.600% 04/26/23 04/27/26 727 MONTHLY
Cross River Bank 250,000 248,395.00 4.650% 05/19/23 05/19/26 749 MONTHLY
Raiz FCU 250,000 249,195.00 4.650% 05/24/23 05/26/26 756 MONTHLY
Usalliance FCU 250,000 248,702.50 4.700% 05/26/23 05/26/26 756 MONTHLY
Chartway Fed Cr Un 250,000 249,720.00 4.900% 06/09/23 06/09/26 770 MONTHLY
Customers Bank 250,000 248,687.50 4.700% 06/14/23 06/15/26 776 MONTHLY
Lafayette Fed Cr Un 250,000 250,017.50 4.950% 12/13/23 06/15/26 776 QUARTERLY
Latino Cmnty Cr Un 250,000 249,802.50 4.900% 06/27/23 06/29/26 790 MONTHLY
Leaders Cr Un 250,000 250,287.50 5.000% 06/30/23 06/30/26 791 MONTHLY
Farmers Insurance 250,000 250,357.50 5.000% 07/21/23 07/21/26 812 MONTHLY
Maine Svgs FCU 250,000 250,357.50 5.000% 07/21/23 07/21/26 812 MONTHLY
Popular Bank New York 250,000 249,677.50 4.850% 09/06/23 09/04/26 857 QUARTERLY
Freedom Northwest Cr Un 250,000 252,567.50 5.350% 09/19/23 09/18/26 871 QUARTERLY
Amex National Bank 250,000 250,552.50 5.000% 09/20/23 09/21/26 874 QUARTERLY
First Gty Bank 250,000 251,245.00 5.100% 10/13/23 10/13/26 896 MONTHLY
Bridgewater Bank 250,000 251,342.50 5.100% 11/03/23 11/03/26 917 MONTHLY
Taylorsville Svgs Bk 250,000 251,342.50 5.100% 11/03/23 11/03/26 917 MONTHLY
Mountain Comm Bk 250,000 247,870.00 4.500% 12/20/23 12/21/26 965 QUARTERLY
American Bk Freedom 250,000 247,780.00 4.500% 12/22/23 12/22/26 966 QUARTERLY
Rockland Fed Cr Un 250,000 248,490.00 4.600% 12/22/23 12/22/26 966 QUARTERLY
Hughes Fed Cr Un 250,000 247,317.50 4.400% 01/29/24 01/29/27 1,004 QUARTERLY
MVB Bk Inc Fairmont 250,000 246,327.50 4.250% 01/31/24 01/29/27 1,004 QUARTERLY
Farmers & Merchants Tr Co 250,000 245,710.00 4.150% 01/30/24 02/01/27 1,007 QUARTERLY
Oregon Cmnty Cr Un 250,000 246,657.50 4.300% 02/09/24 02/09/27 1,015 MONTHLY
Valley Natl Bk 250,000 247,707.50 4.450% 02/21/24 02/22/27 1,028 MONTHLY
CFBank Fairlawn 250,000 247,662.50 4.450% 03/05/24 03/05/27 1,039 QUARTERLY
Haven Svgs Bk 250,000 247,902.50 4.500% 03/06/24 03/08/27 1,042 QUARTERLY
Univest Natl Bk 250,000 248,630.00 4.600% 03/13/24 03/15/27 1,049 QUARTERLY
First Natl Bk 250,000 248,695.00 4.600% 03/19/24 03/19/27 1,053 QUARTERLY
Nicolet Natl Bk 250,000 248,702.50 4.600% 03/22/24 03/22/27 1,056 QUARTERLY
People Bank Co 250,000 250,112.50 4.650% 03/30/23 03/30/27 1,064 MONTHLY
United FID Bank FSB 250,000 248,762.50 4.600% 04/12/24 04/12/27 1,077 QUARTERLY
Carroll County 250,000 248,517.50 4.650% 03/30/23 03/30/28 1,430 MONTHLY
Discover Bank 250,000 247,177.50 4.350% 04/26/23 04/24/28 1,455 MONTHLY
TTCU Fed Cr Un 250,000 253,520.00 5.000% 07/26/23 07/26/28 1,548 MONTHLY
Wells Fargo Natl Bk 250,000 254,600.00 5.050% 11/14/23 11/14/28 1,659 MONTHLY
Consumers Fed Cr Un 250,000 254,100.00 5.000% 11/16/23 11/16/28 1,661 MONTHLY
Amerasia Bk 250,000 243,857.50 4.000% 02/15/24 02/15/29 1,752 MONTHLY

Negotiable CD TOTAL 31,250,000$  30,936,420$       

CD TOTAL 31,250,000$  30,936,420$       

ATTACHMENT 3
32

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 
Municipal Securities   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 04/30/24 FREQUENCY

Santa Ana College Ref Bond 439,491 434,676 0.644% 12/17/21 08/01/24 93 QUARTERLY

University CA Rev Bond 990,308 977,380 4.350% 09/15/22 05/15/25 380 QUARTERLY

Antelope Valley CA Ref Bond 740,080 718,778 1.767% 05/12/22 08/01/25 458 QUARTERLY

Chabot Las Positas Cmnty Clg Bond 1,451,383 1,412,237 0.880% 04/29/22 08/01/25 458 QUARTERLY

Foothill De Anza Bond 799,931 792,640 0.906% 03/24/23 08/01/25 458 QUARTERLY

San Dieguito High School Ref Bond 965,368 957,680 1.661% 10/13/22 08/01/25 458 QUARTERLY

Santa Ana CCD Ref Bond 242,323 236,548 0.744% 05/12/22 08/01/25 458 QUARTERLY

Orange County Water Dist Ref Bond 872,945 865,629 2.095% 10/13/22 08/15/25 472 QUARTERLY

San Jose CA Txble Ser B 2,292,961 2,271,421 2.450% 10/13/22 09/01/25 489 QUARTERLY

Los Angeles CA USD Ref Bond 1,004,867 921,990 1.455% 11/15/21 07/01/26 792 QUARTERLY

Chabot Las Positas Cmnty Clg CA 3,347,966 3,208,652 1.080% 07/27/22 08/01/26 823 QUARTERLY

Chaffey CA High School Ref Bond 1,528,788 1,478,769 2.475% 06/30/22 08/01/26 823 QUARTERLY

Huntington Beach HS Dist Ref Bond 3,179,180 3,031,148 1.208% 04/29/22 08/01/26 823 QUARTERLY

Placentia Yorba USD Ref Bond 1,064,120 1,017,026 1.070% 05/31/22 08/01/26 823 QUARTERLY

San Diego CA Cmnty Ref Bond 461,621 442,557 2.299% 04/29/22 08/01/26 823 QUARTERLY

San Ramon Valley CA USD Ref Bond 2,125,000 1,950,431 1.147% 11/03/21 08/01/26 823 QUARTERLY

Sonoma Cnty Jr College Ref Bond 1,952,465 1,888,220 2.447% 06/30/22 08/01/26 823 QUARTERLY

San Diego CA Pub Facs Ref Bond 1,563,647 1,499,095 1.812% 08/18/22 10/15/26 898 QUARTERLY

CA ST Univ Rev Ref Bond 2,303,561 2,273,250 1.142% 02/17/23 11/01/26 915 QUARTERLY

El Dorado CA Irr Dist Ref Bond 1,120,290 1,069,086 1.687% 08/18/22 03/01/27 1,035 QUARTERLY

Rancho Santiago Cmnty Clg 301,694 295,393 1.106% 11/17/22 03/01/27 1,035 QUARTERLY

University Gen Rev Bond 2,169,923 2,135,434 1.316% 10/13/22 05/15/27 1,110 QUARTERLY

El Monte Ca Ref Bond 547,051 536,592 1.326% 03/24/23 06/01/27 1,127 QUARTERLY

Los Angeles CA Dept Wtr Ref Bond 2,089,395 2,018,780 5.516% 04/27/23 07/01/27 1,157 QUARTERLY

Colton CA Jt Uni Sch 967,716 950,014 1.603% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

Contra Costa Ref Bond 834,262 806,969 2.163% 09/15/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

Corona Norco Ref Bond 229,672 229,540 2.297% 09/28/23 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

Foothill De Anza CCD 493,714 484,893 1.473% 12/15/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

Fremont CA Uni Sch Dist 1,089,548 974,479 1.113% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

Fremont CA USD Ref Bond 999,029 1,039,885 2.000% 05/31/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

Marin CA Cmnty Clg Dist 322,336 318,786 3.330% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

Mount San Antonio Cmnty Clg 255,055 252,305 1.139% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

Mount San Antonio Ref Bond 377,803 372,811 2.329% 10/13/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

Saddleback VY Uni Ref Bond 2,915,799 2,772,090 2.400% 08/10/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

San Diego CA Com CD 556,853 544,965 2.407% 12/15/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

San Ramon Valley Ref Bond 1,329,601 1,285,157 3.415% 09/15/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

Santa Monica Cmnty Clg Ref Bond 986,117 957,010 3.050% 09/15/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

Sierra CA Cmnty Clg Dist 417,891 412,799 1.129% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

William Hart CA Un High 179,440 177,262 1.174% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,188 QUARTERLY

San Jose CA Txble Ser B 856,165 843,625 2.600% 10/13/22 09/01/27 1,219 QUARTERLY

Soquel Creek Cnty Ref Bond 492,220 478,030 1.445% 05/18/23 03/01/28 1,401 QUARTERLY

Gardena Calif Pension Oblig 907,937 909,420 2.663% 10/19/23 04/01/28 1,432 QUARTERLY

Beverly Hills Ref Bond 567,596 547,884 1.514% 06/15/23 06/01/28 1,493 QUARTERLY

California Health FACS 716,393 715,084 3.378% 11/16/23 06/01/28 1,493 QUARTERLY

Alameda Cnty Calif 520,560 510,937 3.519% 03/21/24 08/01/28 1,554 QUARTERLY

Desert CA Cmnty College 911,330 892,750 2.023% 01/19/24 08/01/28 1,554 QUARTERLY

Long Beach Calif Cmnty 667,950 657,796 2.337% 03/21/24 08/01/28 1,554 QUARTERLY

Redondo Beach Ref Bond 582,526 586,231 1.430% 09/28/23 08/01/28 1,554 QUARTERLY

San Ramon Valley CA Uni 1,619,635 1,597,214 1.670% 07/13/23 08/01/28 1,554 QUARTERLY

Santa Ana College Impt 1,312,083 1,293,870 1.320% 07/13/23 08/01/28 1,554 QUARTERLY

Santa Clarita CA Cmnty 893,348 870,030 1.563% 01/19/24 08/01/28 1,554 QUARTERLY

William Hart CA High 887,193 866,710 1.429% 12/21/23 08/01/28 1,554 QUARTERLY

Yosemite Calif Cmnty Clg 686,538 676,230 2.210% 12/21/23 08/01/28 1,554 QUARTERLY

Mun. Securities TOTAL 57,130,663$ 55,458,187$  

Municipal Securities TOTAL 57,130,663$ 55,458,187$  

City of Clovis
Municipal Securities
As of April 30, 2024

ATTACHMENT 4
33

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 
Municipal Securities   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 04/30/24 FREQUENCY

Duke Energy Carolinas 1,949,904 1,892,980 3.950% 02/16/24 11/15/28 1,660 QUARTERLY

Toyota MTR Cr Corp 1,992,197 1,953,500 4.650% 02/16/24 01/05/29 1,711 QUARTERLY

Procter & Gamble Co 1,994,731 1,954,800 4.350% 02/16/24 01/29/29 1,735 QUARTERLY

AstraZeneca Finance LLC 1,982,000 1,969,300 4.850% 04/19/24 02/26/29 1,763 QUARTERLY

Cisco Sys Inc 2,020,000 1,975,040 4.850% 03/21/24 02/26/29 1,763 QUARTERLY

Merck Co Inc 1,898,000 1,855,000 3.400% 03/21/24 03/07/29 1,772 QUARTERLY

Blackrock Funding Inc 2,010,000 1,961,880 4.700% 03/21/24 03/14/29 1,779 QUARTERLY

Home Depot Inc 1,992,000 1,979,220 4.900% 04/19/24 04/15/29 1,811 QUARTERLY

United Health Group 1,970,000 1,956,240 4.700% 04/19/24 04/15/29 1,811 QUARTERLY

Mun. Securities TOTAL 17,808,832$  17,497,960$      

Municipal Securities TOTAL 17,808,832$  17,497,960$      

City of Clovis
Corporate Securities
As of April 30, 2024

ATTACHMENT 5

34

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

Treasury Rates as of April 30, 2024

3 month Treasury bill 5.46
6 month Treasury bill 5.44
2 Yr Treasury note 5.04
3 Yr Treasury note 4.87
5 Yr Treasury note 4.72
10 Yr Treasury note 4.69

CITY OF CLOVIS
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

APRIL 30, 2024 TREASURY RATES

As indicated in the above graph, treasuries decrease from 3-month to 10-year notes.

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

3 month
Treasury bill

6 month
Treasury bill

2 Yr Treasury
note

3 Yr Treasury
note

5 Yr Treasury
note

10 Yr
Treasury note

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 R

A
T

E
S

TREASURIES

TREASURY RATES ON APRIL 30, 2024

ATTACHMENT 6
35

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Finance Department 

DATE: August 19, 2024 

SUBJECT: Finance – Receive and File – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of April 
2024. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Summary of Cash Balances 
2. Summary of Investment Activity 
3. Investments with Original Maturities Exceeding One Year 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Attached for the Council’s information is the Treasurer’s Report for the month ended April 30, 
2024. 
 
Pursuant to Section 41004 of the Government Code of the State of California, the City Treasurer 
is required to submit a monthly report of all receipts, disbursements, and fund balances.  
Attachment 1 provides a summary of the beginning balance, total receipts, total disbursements, 
ending balance for all funds, and a listing, by fund, of all month end fund balances.  Attachment 
2 summarizes the investment activity for the month and distribution, by type of investment, held 
by the City.  Attachment 3 lists all investments with original maturities exceeding one year as of 
the month ended April 30, 2024. 
 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey Blanks, Deputy Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH 

 

36

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



Previous Balance 3,880,715.59$               
Deposits 45,176,967.39
Disbursements (44,151,329.82)

Current  Balance 4,906,353.16$               

FUNDS BALANCE
100      General Fund 16,056,190.42$             
201      Local Transportation 21,274,874.81
202      Parking and Business Improvements 271,296.87
203      Off Highway Use 74,380.93
204      Community Facilities District 2020-1 244,556.59
205      Senior Citizen Memorial Trust 61,079.79
207      Landscape Assessment District 7,054,038.60
208      Blackhorse III (95-1) Assessment District 15,601.49
209      Blackhorse III (95-1) Assessment District 2 35,872.21
275      HCD Block Grant Fund 359,466.67
301      Park & Recreation Acquisition 7,542,886.06
305      Refuse Equipment Reserve 2,484,690.41
310      Special Street Deposit Fund 51,254,550.70
314      Housing Successor Agency 1,319,926.42
402      1976 Fire Bond Redemption 25,475.23
404      1976 Sewer Bond Redemption Fund 429,736.73
501      Community Sanitation Fund 16,466,301.85
502      Sewer Service Fund 36,221,656.19
504      Sewer Capital Projects-Users 287,943.81
506      Sewer Capital Projects-Developer 5,589,750.85
507      Water Service Fund 46,336,706.83
508      Water Capital Projects-Users 6,230,922.37
509      Water Capital Projects-Developer 8,936,306.93
515      Transit Fund 9,856,497.43
540      Planning & Development Services 16,944,560.08
601      Property & Liability Insurance 892,099.65
602      Fleet Maintenance 25,442,374.42
603      Employee Benefit Fund 16,202,866.44
604      General Government Services 29,210,229.50
605      Facilities Maintenance 4,254,565.75
606      Information Technology 6,526,002.73
701      Curb & Gutter Fund 169,788.81
703      Payroll Tax & Withholding Fund 1,542,779.87
712      Temperance/Barstow Assmt Dist (98-1) 80,088.35
713      Shepherd/Temperance Assmt Dist (2000-1) 5,930.92
715      Supp Law Enforcement Serv 371,020.58
716      Asset Forfeiture 373,450.66
720      Measure A-Public Safety Facility Tax 2,056.43
736      SA Admin Trust Fund 1,421.40
741      SA Debt Service Trust Fund (191,587.38)
747      Housing Successor Trust Fund 1,137.98

SUBTOTALS 340,259,496.38$           

999      Invested Funds (335,353,143.22)

TOTAL 4,906,353.16$               

Statement of Cash Balances

As of April 30, 2024

City of Clovis

ATTACHMENT 1
37

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



Balance of Investments Previous Month End 315,714,946.86$  

Time Certificates of Deposit Transactions

Investments 250,000.00
Withdrawals (245,000.00)

Total CD Changes 5,000.00

Other Changes

Government Securities 0.00

Local Agency Investment Fund 605,897.83

Municipal Securities (1,449,465.00)

Corporate Securities 5,944,000.00

Sweep Account 14,532,763.53

Total Other Changes 19,633,196.36

Balance of Investments Current Month End 335,353,143.22$  

Insured CD's 31,250,000.00

Government Securities 141,808,163.35

Corporation Securities 17,808,832.00

Local Agency Investment Fund 57,312,666.91

Municipal Securities 57,130,662.55

Sweep Account 30,042,818.41

Investment Total 335,353,143.22$  

For the month of April 30, 2024

City of Clovis
Distribution of Investments

As of April 30, 2024

City of Clovis
Summary of Investment Activity

ATTACHMENT 2
38

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



Investment

Balance At Stated

Institution Face Value Amortized Cost Maturity Rate

FHLB 5,000,000.00 5,000,000 6/7/2024 0.350%

FHLB 1,000,000.00 991,539 6/24/2024 0.700%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,993,108 11/15/2024 1.050%

FHLB 1,735,000.00 1,685,682 12/30/2024 0.500%

FNMA 2,000,000.00 1,933,157 2/24/2025 0.500%

FNMA 1,000,000.00 967,276 2/25/2025 0.520%

FHLB 1,000,000.00 968,066 2/27/2025 0.625%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,993,906 2/28/2025 1.750%

FAMCMTN 4,000,000.00 4,000,000 4/25/2025 2.750%

FAMCMTN 4,000,000.00 3,980,786 7/28/2025 0.750%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 5,000,000 8/28/2025 3.600%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,980,990 9/8/2025 0.600%

FHLB 980,000.00 899,603 11/25/2025 0.500%

FFCB 5,000,000.00 4,984,394 2/11/2026 0.580%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,964,592 2/24/2026 0.750%

FHLB 3,000,000.00 2,827,986 3/16/2026 0.790%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,983,642 9/28/2026 0.940%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,791,339 10/28/2026 1.150%

FHLB 6,000,000.00 5,993,639 11/24/2026 1.250%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 5,070,460 12/11/2026 2.125%

FHLB 4,500,000.00 4,215,370 2/24/2027 1.020%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,711,259 2/24/2027 1.020%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,819,465 2/26/2027 0.900%

FHLB 6,800,000.00 5,250,826 2/26/2027 0.900%

FHLB 5,700,000.00 6,284,516 2/26/2027 0.900%

FHLB 6,000,000.00 5,456,366 2/26/2027 1.000%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 4,000,000 3/8/2027 2.375%

FHLB 6,000,000.00 5,334,825 2/22/2028 0.830%

FHLB 400,000.00 357,344 2/25/2028 1.125%

FFCB 2,500,000.00 2,167,002 3/2/2028 1.000%

FHLB 3,000,000.00 3,101,864 3/10/2028 4.500%

FFCB 2,245,000.00 1,929,375 3/10/2028 1.000%

FFCB 700,000.00 630,285 3/22/2028 1.370%

FFCB 6,000,000.00 6,083,008 4/25/2028 3.875%

FFCB 5,500,000.00 5,378,159 4/27/2028 3.740%

FFCB 3,000,000.00 2,961,549 6/22/2028 4.470%

FFCB 3,000,000.00 2,663,436 7/13/2028 1.230%

FHLMC 1,000,000.00 865,196 7/27/2028 1.100%

FNMA 1,000,000.00 860,865 7/28/2028 1.000%

FHLB 1,000,000.00 889,596 8/4/2028 1.300%

FFCB 3,000,000.00 2,983,390 9/8/2028 4.750%
FHLMC 1,000,000.00 854,303 10/19/2028 1.000%

As of April 30, 2024

City of Clovis
Government Maturities Exceeding One Year

ATTACHMENT 3
39

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



Investment

Balance At Stated

Institution Face Value Amortized Cost Maturity Rate

Sana Ana College Improv Dist 440,000.00 439,491.00 8/1/2024 0.644%

UC General Revenue Bonds 1,000,000.00 990,308.00 5/15/2025 3.050%

Antelope Valley Comm Coll 750,000.00 740,079.50 8/1/2025 1.767%

Chabot Las Positas Comm Coll 1,490,000.00 1,451,383.00 8/1/2025 0.880%

Foothill De Anza Ref Bds 2021B 835,000.00 799,930.50 8/1/2025 0.906%

San Dieguito USD GO Bonds 1,000,000.00 965,368.00 8/1/2025 1.661%

Santa Ana Coll Improv Dist 250,000.00 242,322.50 8/1/2025 0.744%

Orange County Water Dist 900,000.00 872,945.00 8/15/2025 2.095%

San Jose Ca Taxable Series B 2,355,000.00 2,292,960.50 9/1/2025 2.450%

LA CUSD GO Bonds 1,000,000.00 1,004,867.00 7/1/2026 1.455%

Chabot Las Positas Comm Coll 3,505,000.00 3,347,966.00 8/1/2026 1.080%

Chaffey Joint Union HS 1,565,000.00 1,528,787.50 8/1/2026 2.475%

Huntington Beach Union HS 3,305,000.00 3,179,180.00 8/1/2026 1.208%

Placentia Yorba Linda USD 1,110,000.00 1,064,120.00 8/1/2026 1.070%

San Diego Comm Coll Dist 470,000.00 461,621.00 8/1/2026 2.299%

San Ramon Valley CUSD 2,125,000.00 2,125,000.00 8/1/2026 1.147%

Sonoma County Jr Coll Dist 2,000,000.00 1,952,465.00 8/1/2026 2.447%

San Diego Pub Facilities Dist 1,625,000.00 1,563,647.00 10/15/2026 1.812%

California St Univ Taxable 2021B 2,500,000.00 2,303,561.00 11/1/2026 1.142%

El Dorado Irrigation Dist 1,175,000.00 1,120,290.00 3/1/2027 1.687%

Rancho Santiago CC Ref 2020 335,000.00 301,693.50 3/1/2027 1.106%

UC Taxable Gen Bds 2020 B 2,385,000.00 2,169,922.50 5/15/2027 1.316%

El Monte HSD Taxable Ref 2021 600,000.00 547,051.00 6/1/2027 1.326%

LA Dept Wtr Pwr Rev Bonds 2010C 2,000,000.00 2,089,395.00 7/1/2027 5.516%

Colton CA USD Ref Bonds 2020 1,060,000.00 967,716.00 8/1/2027 1.603%

Contra Costa Comm College Dist 880,000.00 834,262.00 8/1/2027 2.163%

Corona Norco USD Ref Bond 2019 250,000.00 229,672.00 8/1/2027 2.297%

Foothill De Anza CC Taxable 2021 540,000.00 493,714.00 8/1/2027 1.473%

Fremont USD Alameda County 1,100,000.00 1,089,548.00 8/1/2027 1.113%

Fremont USD Taxable Ref 2021 1,140,000.00 999,029.00 8/1/2027 2.000%

Marin County Comm Coll 2016 335,000.00 322,335.80 8/1/2027 3.330%

Mount San Antonio CC 2021 285,000.00 255,055.00 8/1/2027 1.139%

Mount San Antonio Comm Coll 405,000.00 377,802.75 8/1/2027 2.329%

Saddleback Valley USD 3,000,000.00 2,915,799.00 8/1/2027 2.400%

San Diego CCD Taxable 2019 590,000.00 556,853.00 8/1/2027 2.407%

San Ramon Valley CUSD 1,435,000.00 1,329,601.00 8/1/2027 1.440%

Santa Monica Comm College Dist 1,000,000.00 986,117.00 8/1/2027 3.415%

Sierra CA CCD 2021A Ref 465,000.00 417,890.50 8/1/2027 1.129%

William Hart USD 2020 Ref 200,000.00 179,440.00 8/1/2027 1.174%

San Jose Ca Taxable Series B 910,000.00 856,165.00 9/1/2027 2.600%

Soquel Creek Wtr Ref 2020 545,000.00 492,219.50 3/1/2028 1.445%
Gardena Calif Pension Obligation 1,000,000.00 907,937.00 4/1/2028 2.663%

Beverly Hills Taxable Ref 2020B 635,000.00 567,595.50 6/1/2028 1.514%

California Health Facs Fing Au 760,000.00 716,393.00 6/1/2028 3.378%

Alameda Cnty Calif 540,000.00 520,560.00 8/1/2028 3.519%

Desert CA Cmnty College 1,000,000.00 911,330.00 8/1/2028 2.023%

Long Beach Calif Cmnty 730,000.00 667,950.00 8/1/2028 2.337%

Redondo Beach CA Uni Bond 2018 675,000.00 582,526.00 8/1/2028 1.430%

San Ramon Valley CA 1,820,000.00 1,619,635.00 8/1/2028 1.670%

Santa Ana College Impt 1,500,000.00 1,312,083.00 8/1/2028 1.320%

Santa Clarita Calif Cmnty 1,000,000.00 893,348.00 8/1/2028 1.563%

William Hart High 1,000,000.00 887,193.00 8/1/2028 1.429%
Yosemite Calif Cmnty College 750,000.00 686,538.00 8/1/2028 2.210%

As of April 30, 2024

City of Clovis
Municipal Maturities Exceeding One Year

ATTACHMENT 3
40

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



Investment

Balance At Stated

Institution Face Value Amortized Cost Maturity Rate

Duke Energy Carolinas LLC 2,000,000.00 1,949,904.00 11/15/2028 3.950%

Toyota MTR Cr Corp 2,000,000.00 1,992,197.00 1/5/2029 4.350%

Procter & Gamble Co 2,000,000.00 1,994,731.00 1/29/2029 4.650%

Astrazeneca Finance LLC 2,000,000.00 1,982,000.00 2/26/2029 4.850%

Cisco Sys Inc. 2,000,000.00 2,020,000.00 2/26/2029 4.850%

Merck Co Inc. 2,000,000.00 1,898,000.00 3/7/2029 3.400%

Blackrock Fund Inc. 2,000,000.00 2,010,000.00 3/14/2029 4.700%

Home Depot Inc. 2,000,000.00 1,992,000.00 4/15/2029 4.900%

United Health Group 2,000,000.00 1,970,000.00 4/15/2029 4.700%

As of April 30, 2024

City of Clovis
Corporate Maturities Exceeding One Year

ATTACHMENT 3
41

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services 

DATE: August 19, 2024 

SUBJECT: General Services – Approval – Res. 24-___, Authorizing the City 
Manager to execute the agreement with the California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) for the Sustainable Transportation Planning 
Grant FY2024-25 in the amount of $172,500 to fund the Clovis Transit 
Strategic Operations Plan; and Approval – Res. 24-___, to amend the 
FY2024-25 budget of the Transit budget to reflect the receipt of $152,714 
from the Caltrans grant and the allocation of $19,786 from the Local 
Transit Fund (LTF) for the local match requirement. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 24-___, Authorization 
2. Resolution 24-___, Budget Amendment  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute the 
agreement with the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) for the Sustainable 
Transportation Planning Grant FY2024-25 in the amount of $172,500 to fund the Clovis Transit 
Strategic Operations Plan; and approve a resolution to amend the FY2024-25 budget of the 
General Services Department to reflect the receipt of $152,714 from the Caltrans grant and the 
allocation of $19,786 from the Local Transit Fund (LTF) for the local match requirement. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The transportation industry has undergone significant transformation in the past five years, 
driven by the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, new regulations including the California Air 
Resources Board’s (CARB) Innovative Clean Transit (ICT) initiative, advancements in 
technology, local policy shifts, and emerging state and federal funding opportunities. To adapt 
to these changes and steer the City’s Transit Division effectively, a strategic operations plan is 
essential. The City has successfully applied for and received the Caltrans Sustainable 
Transportation Planning Grant FY2024-25, which will finance the development of the Clovis 
Transit Strategic Operations Plan. This comprehensive plan will serve as a dynamic framework, 
continuously evolving to meet current and future needs, and will be presented to the City Council 
upon completion. 
 
 
 

42

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



BACKGROUND 
The Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant Program was established to align with the 
California Department of Transportation’s (Caltrans) mission of ensuring a safe and efficient 
transportation network that serves all residents while protecting the environment. State-funded 
Sustainable Communities grants aim to implement Regional Transportation Plans (RTPs) to 
achieve California's greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction targets of 40% and 80% below 1990 levels 
by 2030 and 2050, respectively. Senate Bill 1 (SB 1) allocates $25 million annually for 
Sustainable Communities Grants, prioritizing projects with a transportation focus that enhance 
the multi-modal transportation system. 
 
The City of Clovis applied for the Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant FY2024-25, 
proposing the Clovis Transit Strategic Operations Plan Project. This initiative aims to establish 
a clear vision, direction, and roadmap to achieve strategic goals, define performance metrics, 
and guide the evolution of a multi-modal transportation system. Project objectives include: 
 

 Development of the Clovis Transit Strategic Operations Plan. 

 Integration of an innovative, equitable, safe, and multi-modal transportation system. 

 Promotion of sustainable communities, supporting Caltrans’ mission and regional plans. 

 Engagement of stakeholders and communities to address local concerns. 

 Formation of partnerships to implement the plan and enhance regional air quality. 
 

The City has been awarded $152,714 from Caltrans’ Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant 
FY2024-25, which covers 88.53% of the project costs. The grant includes a local match 
requirement of 11.47%, and the City will utilize the LTF to meet this requirement. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The total project cost is $172,500. Of this amount, $152,714 will be funded through the Caltrans 
Sustainable Communities Grant Program. The remaining $19,786 will be funded through the 
Local Transit Fund. A budget amendment reflecting these allocations has been included. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Caltrans requires a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute all agreements and 
documentation associated with this grant. This authorization ensures compliance with grant 
requirements and facilitates the Clovis Transit Strategic Operations Plan, thereby advancing the 
City's goals for sustainable transportation and community development. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The City Manager will execute the Caltrans RGA agreement and associated documents, which 
will be submitted to Caltrans for approval. Upon approval, City staff will commence the project. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
Prepared by: Susanna Herrera, Management Analyst 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH  

43

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 24-___ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS  

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AGREEMENTS WITH THE 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (CALTRANS) FOR THE 

SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING GRANT FY2024-25 APPLICATION 
FOR THE CITY OF CLOVIS STRATEGIC OPERATIONS PLAN  

 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Clovis is eligible to receive federal and/or state funding for 

certain transportation planning related plans, through the California Department of 

Transportation; and 
 

WHEREAS, a Restricted Grant Agreement is needed to be executed with the 
California Department of Transportation before such funds can be reimbursed through 
the Transportation Planning Grant Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Clovis wishes to delegate authorization to execute these 

agreements and any amendments thereto. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Clovis, to authorize the City 

Manager, or designee, to execute all Restricted Grant Agreements and any amendments 
thereto with the California Department of Transportation. 
 
  

*   *  *  *    * 

 
The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Clovis held on August 19, 2024, by the following vote, to wit: 
 
 
AYES:   
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
DATED:  August 19, 2024 
 
 
________________________   ___________________________ 
         Mayor               City Clerk 
 
 

44

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



  

  
  
 ATTACHMENT 2 

 
RESOLUTION 24- 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS  
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY2024-25 GENERAL SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT BUDGET 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the FY2024-25 city budget on June 10, 2024; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, additional funding for transit became available throughout the year; and 
 
WHEREAS, these revenues and expenditures were not included in the original 

adopted budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the additional funds are intended for the transit fund. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis hereby approves the 

budget amendment as shown in the “Summary of Expenditures/Revenues by 
Department” and “Summary of Expenditures/Revenues by Fund” as Attachment A. 
 

*   *  *  *    * 

 
The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the 

City Council of the City of Clovis held on August 19, 2024, by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
DATED: August 19, 2024 

 
 

 ______________________________  ______________________________ 
       Mayor         City Clerk 

 

45

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



  

  
  
 ATTACHMENT A  

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT 
 
DEPARTMENT – GENERAL SERVICES 
 
 Transit Fund - 34800-68160    $172,500 
 TOTAL DEPARTMENT     $172,500 
 
TOTAL ALL DEPARTMENTS     $172,500 
 

 
SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND 

 
 Transit Fund - 34800-68160    $172,500 

TOTAL TRANSIT FUND     $172,500 
 
 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
  

SUMMARY OF REVENUES BY DEPARTMENT 
 
DEPARTMENT – GENERAL SERVICES 
 
  
 STP Grant – Account 34800-45046 $152.714 

LTF Fund – Account 34800-45061 $19,786 
 TOTAL DEPARTMENT $172,500 
     
   

SUMMARY OF REVENUES BY FUND 
 
 STP Grant – Account 34800-45046 $152,714 

LTF Fund – Account 34800-45061 $19,786 
 TOTAL TRANSIT FUND $172,500 
 
 
 
 
 

 

46

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services 

DATE: August 19, 2024 

SUBJECT: General Services – Approval – Res. 24-____, Renewing Medical Plan 
Options for Eligible Retirees and Restating the Eligibility Requirements 
for Participation in the Plan for the 2025 Plan Year. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution Retiree Medical 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
For City Council to approve a resolution renewing the City’s Retiree Medical Plan options for 
eligible retirees and restating eligibility requirements for participation in the plan. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
For many years, the City has sponsored a group retiree medical plan for retirees who meet 
certain eligibility requirements. Approval of the attached resolution renews the retiree medical 
plan for the 2025 plan year. 
 
BACKGROUND 
For many years, the City has offered employees who retire from City service the option of 
purchasing the same medical and prescription drug benefit package offered to full-time, regular 
employees.  The retiree medical plan option is renewed annually at the discretion of the Council.  
This option provides qualifying retirees, those with a minimum of five (5) years of full-time City 
service immediately preceding retirement, with the opportunity to continue participation in the 
City’s medical/prescription plans. Eligibility requirements for participation in the plan and rate 
information are listed in the Attachment A of the resolution.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The retiree medical plan option is rated separately from the active City employee medical plan.  
In addition, monthly premiums are paid entirely by the retirees. Consequently, there is not a 
fiscal impact to the City for offering this program. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Council action is necessary to renew the retiree medical plan option for eligible retirees for the 
2025 plan year. 
 

47

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Upon approval, the program renewal will become effective with the 2025 plan year, which runs 
from January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025.  Eligible retirees will be provided with an 
open enrollment period (i.e. October 14 through November 8, 2024).  Additionally, employees 
who retire and become eligible during the 2025 plan year will be provided with a similar notice 
at the time of retirement. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
Prepared by: Linda Parry, Personnel Management Analyst 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH  

 

48

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

RESOLUTION 24- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING THE 
RENEWAL OF THE RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN OPTION FOR ELIGIBLE RETIREES AND 
RESTATING THE ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE PLAN 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City offers a retiree health plan that allows retirees to purchase medical 

and prescription coverage; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has established eligibility requirements for participation in the plan 

listed in the attached Attachment A; and 

 

WHEREAS, continued offering of the retiree health plan is determined on an annual basis 

at the discretion of the Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis hereby renews the Retiree 

Medical Plan Option and rates effective January 1, 2025, as summarized in the Attachment A.  

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on August 19, 2024, by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

49

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan Summary  
For the 2025 Plan Year 

 
Retiree Benefits 
 
Effective January 1, 2025, retirees of the City of Clovis will be allowed to continue in a City 
sponsored Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan at their own expense, provided they meet the plan 
eligibility requirements. Enrolled retirees will participate in the annual open enrollment for the 
medical/prescription plans. 

Eligibility Requirements 

 
To be eligible for the Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan, a retired/retiring employee must meet 
the following eligibility requirements: 
 

1. Been continuously covered in the medical/prescription portion of the City’s health plan 
through December 31, 2024, as a full-time regular employee or a retired enrollee; or, was 
continuously covered by a City-approved group medical/prescription plan as a full-time 
regular City employee immediately preceding retirement from the City. 

 
2. Be eligible to retire in accordance with CalPERS age and service requirements, including 

disability retirement. 
 

3. Have a minimum of five (5) years of service with the City of Clovis as a full-time regular 
employee immediately preceding employment separation with the City of Clovis. 

4. Retired employees and their dependents are eligible for City coverage until they become 
eligible for Medicare. Retired employees and/or their dependents that become eligible 
for Medicare are no longer eligible to remain on the City’s retiree plans. They have the 
option of enrolling in Medicare and may seek supplemental coverage other than through 
the City’s plan.   

a. If a retired employee becomes Medicare eligible and has a spouse who is not 
Medicare eligible or a dependent child under the age of 26, the spouse and child 
may continue City coverage even after the retired employee becomes Medicare 
eligible and enrolls in Medicare and a supplemental plan.   

b. A spouse who becomes Medicare eligible, or a dependent child who reaches the 
age of 26, will not be eligible to continue in the City’s Retiree Medical/Prescription 
Plan.   

 
 
 
  

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 

50

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

5. An eligible employee who plans on retiring must enroll in the Retiree Medical/Prescription 
Plan within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of employment separation. If an 
eligible employee fails to enroll, or waives enrollment, they shall not be eligible to enroll 
in the plan at a future date. A dependent who enrolls or has been enrolled in an alternative 
insurance plan for a period of time, may be added to the retiree’s plan upon loss of other 
coverage or during open enrollment if the retiree has maintained continuous coverage 
with the City under this plan.   
 

6. Eligibility for dependents normally extends through the retiree. Dependents may only be 
enrolled for coverage if the retiree is concurrently enrolled (except as provided for in 4-a. 
above). Dependents of a retiree lose eligibility for coverage under the Retiree 
Medical/Prescription Plan when a non-Medicare eligible retiree elects to discontinue 
coverage. Upon the death of a covered retiree or the death of a covered employee who 
was eligible to retire, a spouse or covered child may continue coverage until the spouse 
is Medicare eligible and the child reaches the age of 26 respectively.  

 
7. A retiree or eligible dependent that enrolls in the Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan shall 

not be allowed to re-enroll in the plan if they drop coverage in the plan or fail to make their 
monthly premium payment within thirty (30) days of the due date. 

 
8. Continued enrollment in the Retiree Medical/Prescription Plan is also subject to terms and 

conditions set forth in the Evidence of Coverage/Disclosure Document of the medical plan 
in which the retiree and dependents are enrolled. 

 
A Retiree who returns to work for the City and enrolls in an active plan because of reinstatement 
from retirement or who has returned as an elected official, will again be eligible for retiree 
coverage upon retiring subject to the normal retiree requirements.   
 
 
Dental and Vision Coverage    
 
Dental and/or Vision Coverage is not available to retirees through the City of Clovis Retiree 
Medical/Prescription Plan. 

 

  

51

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

Pre 65 Retiree Health Plan Monthly Rates charged by Vendor  
for the 2025 Program Year 

 

 Anthem HMO 15  Kaiser HMO 15    

 
Retiree Only $1,148.00 $1,000.00 
Retiree & Spouse $2,375.00       $2,073.00 
Retiree & Child(ren) $2,062.00       $1,781.00 
Retiree & Family $3,437.00       $2,953.00 

 

 

 Anthem PPO 80                                             

 
Retiree Only $1,106.00            
Retiree & Spouse $2,320.00          
Retiree & Child(ren) $1,992.00          
Retiree & Family $3,312.00          

 

 

 Anthem HDHP  Kaiser HDHP                                        

 
Retiree Only $   795.00             $   782.00 
Retiree & Spouse $1,665.00         $1,616.00 
Retiree & Child(ren) $1,454.00         $1,389.00 
Retiree & Family $2,379.00         $2,303.00 

 

 

52

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services 

DATE: August 19, 2024 

SUBJECT: General Services - Approval – Approve the first amendment to the Emcor 
Services Agreement for the Maintenance of Heating, Ventilation and Air-
Conditioning Equipment; and Authorize the City Manager to execute the 
First Amendment Agreement contract extension with Emcor Services to 
include a 5% increase for a total annual proposed cost of $237,966.82.  
 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. First Amendment to the Agreement 
2. Original Contract Agreement 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the first amendment to the Emcor Services contract for complete heating, ventilation, 
and air-conditioning (HVAC) preventive maintenance services from August 1, 2024, through July 
31, 2025; and authorize the City Manager to execute the first amendment contract extension 
with Emcor Services. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Emcor Services has been under contract with the City for city-wide HVAC preventive 
maintenance services for over eight years. Their current 3-year contract expired July 31, 2024. 
Emcor Services submitted a proposal to the City requesting an extension of their service 
agreement through July 31, 2025. Emcor Services has proved to be the best value for HVAC 
maintenance and has in-depth knowledge of City equipment. Staff recommends under mutual 
agreement between the City and Environment Control to extend their contract by one year. 

 
Emcor Services’ proposal of $237,966.82 for FY 24/25 reflects a 5% price increase over their 
current pricing structure of $226,635.82 for FY 23/24.  The proposed price increase is reasonable 
considering an industry-wide price increase for parts and labor, in addition to increased 
equipment wear. 
 
BACKGROUND 
After completing the competitive request for proposal (RFP) process for HVAC maintenance 
service, the City awarded Emcor a three-year HVAC maintenance services contract effective 

53

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



August 1, 2021 (Attachment 2). Previously, Emcor Services was selected as the successful 
vendor during the 2016 RFP process and was awarded a contract/contract extension from 
August 2016 through August 2021. They were again awarded another contract during the 2021 
RFP process for August 2021 to July 2024. Emcor Services has provided the City with HVAC 
maintenance for a combined eight (8) years to date.  
 
Emcor Services submitted a proposal to extend the current contract to provide preventive 
maintenance services from August 1, 2024, through July 31, 2025, for a total cost of 
$237,966.82. The proposed price reflects a 5% cost increase over their current service pricing.  
 
This agreement covers over 65 pieces of mechanical equipment at the Corporation Yard, 
Surface Water Treatment Plant, Public Safety Facility, Civic Center, Fire Department facilities, 
Senior Center, Villa Yard and Miss Winkles Pet Adoption Center. The Facilities Maintenance 
Section services all other equipment not covered by this contract. 

 
Following is a matrix of Emcor Services’ existing 3-year contract pricing history in tandem with 
the 4th year pricing proposal: 

 

 
Emcor Services has provided dependable service, and the quality of their work has exceeded 
that of previous vendors. Based on the quality of service and the reasonable increase of 5%, 
executing a one-year contract extension amendment with Emcor Services provides the best 
overall value for these contracted services.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Emcor Services has submitted a proposal for a price increase of 5% of $237,966.82 to extend 
their contract for one year to provide complete HVAC preventive maintenance services. The 
proposed amount is within the proposed FY 24/25 budget allocation. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
In accordance with the City’s purchasing policy, staff has multiple factors to consider when 
selecting a vendor such as pricing, quality of service, and ability of HVAC maintenance staff to 
pass background checks to have access into our safety facilities. Emcor Services has provided 
quality service to the City for the past eight years. Emcor Services’ proposed price reflects a 5% 
cost increase over the current pricing structure paid during FY2024/25. The proposed pricing is 
reasonable considering an industry-wide price increase for parts and labor, in addition to 
increased equipment wear. 

       HVAC PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE CONTRACT SUMMARY 

TERM OF 
PAYMENT 

8/1/21 - 7/31/22 8/1/22 – 7/31/23 8/1/23 – 7/31/24 
Proposed Pricing            

8/1/2024 - 7/31/2025 

Contract 
Pricing 

$213,626.00  $220,034.78  $226,635.82 $237,966.82 

54

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



Pursuant to the City’s Purchasing Procedures, a purchase of items/services exceeding 
$60,000.00 requires City Council approval. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will prepare a one (1) year, first amendment to the contract for HVAC maintenance 
(Attachment 1) with Emcor Services for the City Manager’s approval. The contract will be for the 
time period of August 1, 2024, and expire on July 31, 2025. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 

 
Prepared by: Stephen Frankian, Facilities Maintenance & Purchasing Manager 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH 

 

55

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



 ATTACHMENT 1  

FIRST AMENDMENT TO EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATION AGREEMENT 

 

 This FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT (“First Amendment”) is entered into by and 

between Emcor Services (“VENDOR”), and the City of Clovis, a California general law city (“CITY”), 

and is effective on August 1, 2024. 

  

RECITALS 

 

 A.   VENDOR and CITY entered into a certain Agreement effective August 1, 2021 

(“AGREEMENT”), which is incorporated herein by this reference, and which, among other things, 

provided for the term of AGREEMENT to be extended beyond this date by mutual consent of the Parties 

related to Heating, Ventilating & Air-conditioning (HVAC) maintenance services.   

 

 B. VENDOR and CITY have performed in accordance with the AGREEMENT, and desire 

to extend the contact period to provide HVAC maintenance services for the amount of $237,966.82.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and other valuable consideration, 

the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, VENDOR and CITY agree as follows: 

  

 1. Extension of the HVAC Services Agreement.  The term of the AGREEMENT, as set 

forth in Section 3 of the AGREEMENT is hereby extended to provide HVAC maintenance services shall 

expire on July 31, 2025, unless otherwise extended in writing signed by both parties. 

 

2. All Other Terms Remain in Effect.  Except as expressly set forth herein, all other terms 

of the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect, including all terms defined in the 

AGREEMENT unless otherwise defined in this First Amendment, and the AGREEMENT shall be 

interpreted so as to give full force and effect to this First Amendment. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, VENDOR and CITY have executed this First Amendment as of the 

effective date set forth above. 

 

VENDOR:     CITY: 

 

Emcor Services       City of Clovis 

 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ ____________ 

       John Holt, City Manager  Date   

Print Name:_______________________  

ATTEST: 

Title: ____________________________ 

      By: _________________________________ 

       Briana Parra, City Clerk 

 

      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By: _________________________________ 

 Scott G. Cross, City Attorney 

56

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



ATTACHMENT 2

57

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



58

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



59

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



60

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



61

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



62

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



EXHIBIT A

63

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



64

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



65

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



66

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



67

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



68

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



EXHIBIT B

69

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



70

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



71

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



72

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



73

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



74

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



75

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



76

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



77

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



78

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



79

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



80

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



81

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



82

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



83

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



84

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



85

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



86

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



87

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



88

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



89

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



90

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



91

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



92

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



93

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



94

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



95

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



96

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Police Department 

DATE: August 19, 2024 

SUBJECT: Police - Approval - Res. 24-___, Authorizing the Police Chief and the 
Police Department to execute the 2024-2025 Department of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control Alcohol Policing Partnership grant agreement; and 
Approval - Amend the Police Department budget to reflect the award of 
$71,400.00. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res 24-__  
2. Copy of Grant Agreement 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to authorize the Police Chief to execute the grant agreement with the 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control; and for the City Council to approve a resolution 
amending the 2024-2025 Budget for the Police Department to reflect the grant award in the 
amount of $71,400.00. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Clovis Police Department has been awarded a grant through the Department of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control in the amount of $71,400.00 to reduce the number of violations at ABC-
licensed establishments and reduce minors’ access to alcohol through a combination of 
enforcement and education. Grant funds will primarily offset personnel costs, allowing the Police 
Department to staff focused enforcement details utilizing minor decoy operations, shoulder tap 
operations, licensee inspections, and community education. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Police Department applied for the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control Police 
Partnership Grant. Through a competitive application process, the Police Department has been 
awarded funds to be used for enforcement activities resulting in greater compliance by local 
businesses and a reduction in alcohol-related crime at ABC-licensed establishments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Acceptance of this grant is not expected to have any impact on the allocation of funds in the 
police department's 2024-2025 budget. The Police Department will utilize grant funds to pay for 
all overtime costs for officers to work enforcement and education details.  All details will be 

97

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



staffed with overtime and will not pull resources from other patrol responsibilities. Some 
administrative activities associated with the grant will be conducted during the program 
manager's regular duty hours. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control requires the Clovis City Council's approval to 
execute the grant agreement and amend the Police Department’s 2024-2025 budget to reflect 
the award.   
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will submit the approved resolution and execute the agreement. After the Council’s 
approval, the 2024-2025 police department budget will be amended as described. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
Prepared by: Sandi Macy, Management Analyst 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH  

 

98

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 24-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF OF POLICE TO EXECUTE THE DEPARTMENT OF 

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL GRANT AGREEMENT AND AMEND THE 2024-2025 
POLICE DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clovis approved the 2024-2025 Budget on May 
13, 2024; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Police Department has been awarded $71,400.00 from the Department of 

Alcoholic Beverage Control for the Grant Assistance Program; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council determines that these expenditures are necessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is agreed that any liability arising out of the performance of the contract, 

including civil court actions for damages, shall be the responsibility of the grant recipient and 
the authorizing agency. The State of California and ABC disclaims responsibility for any such 
liability. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Clovis hereby authorizes the Chief 

of Police to execute the Alcoholic Beverage Control Alcohol Policing Partnership grant 
agreement; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City of Clovis that the 2024-

2025 Budget be amended as provided in Attachment A, “Summary of Expenditures.” 
 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on August 19, 2024, by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:    

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 

99

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



ATTACHMENT A 

 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT 

 

 

DEPARTMENT 

 

 POLICE   $71,400 

 TOTAL DEPARTMENT $71,400 

 

 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND 

 

 GENERAL FUND  $71,400 

 TOTAL FUND  $71,400 

 

 

All expenditures will be out of the grant budget 56300.  

 

100

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



ATTACHMENT 2 101

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



102

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



103

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



104

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



105

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



106

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



107

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



108

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



109

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



110

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



111

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



112

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Public Utilities Department 

DATE: August 19, 2024 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Authorize Staff to Proceed with a Proposition 218 
Public Hearing and Majority Protest Vote to Implement a Water Meter 
Installation Fee to Unmetered Parcels in Tarpey Village. 
 
Staff: Kevin Tuttle, Supervising Civil Engineer 

Recommendation: Approve  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve and authorize staff to proceed with the Proposition 218 public 
hearing and majority protest procedures related to the collection of a Water Meter Installation 
Fee for the installation of water meters on unmetered parcels in Tarpey Village. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
California State Law Assembly Bill 2572 (enacted in 2004) is an unfunded mandate that requires 
water meters to be installed on all municipal water services by January 1, 2025. 

 
Tarpey Village, which is in unincorporated Fresno County but is served by the City of Clovis 
water system, currently has 335 remaining unmetered water connections out of a total of 1,354. 
The customers that are currently metered have voluntarily arranged for meter installation and 
paid the City to perform the work. All Tarpey Village customers were provided opportunities for 
the City to perform the water meter installation and be charged at the City’s cost. Due to the 
State’s upcoming deadline at the end of this calendar year and the number of remaining 
unmetered parcels, the City will be bidding and entering into a contract with a licensed contractor 
to perform the installation of water meters at the remaining unmetered parcels. 
 
In order for the City to recover its costs for the purchase and contractor installation of water 
meters on all remaining unmetered parcels, staff is requesting that Council approve a 
Proposition 218 process, which includes sending written notices and holding a public hearing 
regarding the proposed Water Meter Installation Fee. The actual cost of the Water Meter 
Installation Fee will depend on the contractor’s bid. As this will be a property-related fee for water 

113

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



services, Proposition 218 requires a majority protest to be considered following the public 
hearing conducted for the remaining unmetered property owners.  
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2004, the State Legislature adopted Assembly Bill 2572, which added section 527 of the Water 
Code. Water Code section 527 requires all urban water suppliers to install water meters on all 
municipal and industrial service connections located within their service areas on or before 
January 1, 2025. Water Code section 527(b) provides that urban water suppliers may recover 
the cost of providing the services related to the purchase, installation, and operation of a water 
meter from rates, fees, or charges. 
 
Tarpey Village, which is in unincorporated Fresno County but is served by the City of Clovis 
water system, currently has 308 remaining unmetered water service connections requiring 
plumbing retrofits to meet City standards, and an additional 27 unmetered water service 
connections that have been pre-plumbed but have not reimbursed the City. There are a total of 
1,354 service connections in Tarpey Village. Over the last 20-plus years, Tarpey residents have 
been informed via letters and community meetings regarding the water conservation benefits of 
having a meter installed and of the impending State deadline. The most recent written notice 
was provided on November 10, 2022. A total of 1,019 service connections have chosen to have 
a meter installed and have paid or reimbursed the City to do so. The City most recently offered 
water meter installations to Tarpey customers at a cost of $980 per installation with a payment 
plan over 24 months with 0% interest.  
 
Due to the upcoming deadline at the end of this calendar year and the number of remaining 
unmetered services that have not yet volunteered to have a meter installed, a project is being 
put out to bid for a contractor to perform all remaining water meter installations and satisfy the 
City’s obligation to transition all of its water customers to metered service. Staff expects the 
contractor’s work to cost more than the $980 per installation that was most recently offered. The 
City will have the contractor perform the work and then the City will charge the property owners 
a Water Meter Installation Fee for their proportionate share of the costs, pursuant to the 
Proposition 218 process. To ensure timely availability and to help save on some costs and avoid 
a contractor’s markup, the City has already purchased 335 water meters and transceiver units. 
The cost of this material will be included in the Water Meter Installation Fee.   
 
Per the requirements of Proposition 218, the City is required to provide a written notice of the 
Water Meter Installation Fee to all affected customers and owners of record. Staff will prepare a 
notice that includes information about the date, time, and location of a public hearing at which 
the City will conduct a majority protest proceeding. The notice will also include information about 
the amount of the fee and the basis of the fee.  
 
All protests to the Water Meter Installation Fee must be in writing, identify the property affected, 
be signed by the property owner or tenant, and clearly state that they are protesting the increase. 
Protests must be received by the City prior to the close of the public hearing. Protests will be 
accepted from either the tenant or property owner, but only one protest per property will be 
counted. Emails will not be accepted as there is no legal method for signing. The protests will 
be confidential until tabulated and may be withdrawn by the signatory of the protest prior to the 

114

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



close of the hearing. The City Clerk will tabulate the number of protests and verify their validity. 
If 50% plus one of the total number of unmetered properties in Tarpey protest the fee, the fee 
cannot be approved. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The project is included in the 2024-2025 fiscal year budget and will be initially paid for by the 
Water Enterprise Fund. The Water Meter Installation Fee will, if not rejected by a majority of the 
fee payers at the public hearing, allow the City to recover the costs associated with the 
contractor-installed water service and meters. The Water Meter Installation Fee will be charged 
through a payment plan over 24 months with no interest. If the Water Meter Installation Fee is 
not approved or is rejected by a majority protest by affected fee payers following the public 
hearing, the City will still need to proceed with the work to comply with the State mandate and 
will most likely be burdened with the costs. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The City is required to comply with State law and transition all of its water customers to metered 
service before January 1, 2025. Water Code section 527(b) allows the City to recover the costs 
associated with the contractor-installed water meter installation though the Proposition 218 
process. The proposed Water Meter Installation Fee will allow the City to comply with the Water 
Code section 527 mandate while allowing the Water Enterprise to recover its costs from installing 
water meters on the remaining unmetered parcels.    
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
To preserve the ability to record or enforce a lien on each unmetered parcel, staff will send 
notices to all affected property owners of record, as well as all affected customers, regarding the 
proposed Water Meter Installation Fee and the opportunity to protest in accordance with the 
requirements of the Proposition 218 process. A public hearing will be scheduled for a date which 
is not less than 45 days after the mailing date of the notice. Below is a tentative Proposition 218 
schedule. 

 
Send notices to unmetered parcels 45 days prior to public hearing:    October 17, 2024 
Conduct public hearing and adopt resolution:    December 02, 2024 
Charges added to utility bill:    January 2025 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
Prepared by: Kevin Tuttle, Supervising Civil Engineer 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

115

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



 
116

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services Department 

DATE: August 19, 2024 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval - A request to approve the Behymer-Sunnyside 
Southwest Reorganization annexation agreement and to authorize the 
City Manager and City Attorney to make minor modifications to the 
agreement as necessary. 
 
Staff: Lily Cha, Senior Planner 

Recommendation: Approve  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Annexation Agreement Template   
 
  

RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve the Behymer-Sunnyside Southwest Reorganization annexation 
agreement and to authorize the City Manager and City Attorney to make minor modifications to 
the agreement as necessary.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
On May 20, 2024, the Council approved the application for the annexation of the territory known 
as the Behymer-Sunnyside Southwest Reorganization area, covering approximately 246 acres, 
along with associated land use entitlement applications. This area includes six residential 
properties, and staff has been collaborating with the residents on the terms and conditions for 
incorporating those properties into the City’s jurisdiction. A final draft of an annexation agreement 
has been reached by both staff and the property owners’ representatives, and staff is now 
requesting Council's approval. Upon approval, staff will coordinate with property owners to 
finalize and execute their individual agreements for recordation. Additionally, staff will continue 
to advance the annexation application of the territory to the Fresno Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCo). 
 
BACKGROUND 
Wilson Homes submitted several entitlements for a proposed 71.54-acre single-family 
subdivision within the City’s Heritage Grove planned growth area. Although the project site is 
71.54 acres, a larger 246-acre annexation area was proposed after consultation with LAFCo 

117

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



staff to establish a logical boundary for incorporation. This proposed annexation, titled RO305, 
Behymer-Sunnyside Southwest Reorganization, includes the 71.54-acre development area and 
several other properties, including the six rural residential properties relevant to this annexation 
agreement. The Council approved the annexation in May of this year and directed staff to 
continue working with the property owners of these six residential properties on an annexation 
agreement. 
 
The staff began discussions with the six property owners to reach an agreement before the City 
Council approved the project and continued to negotiate terms and conditions through ongoing 
meetings. Three additional meetings were held after the City Council hearing, involving staff from 
Planning, Engineering, Public Utilities, Administration, the City Attorney, and representatives of 
the property owners. These discussions focused on the use of water wells and septic tanks, 
street improvements, and potential future property intensification. After several revisions, a final 
agreement was reached towards the end of July. The draft of the annexation agreement template 
is provided as Attachment 1 to this report. This template is presented for the Council’s approval 
with the intention of finalizing agreements for each property owner once approved. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The annexation agreement provides a clear understanding for both the City and the property 
owners regarding their rights and responsibilities following the incorporation of the properties. 
Additionally, the agreement is crucial for the LAFCo process, ensuring there are limited protests 
against the annexation of the Behymer-Sunnyside Southwest Reorganization territory. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will proceed with the annexation process through LAFCo.  
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
Prepared by: Lily Cha, Senior Planner 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager  JH   

118

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



1 

Attachment 1 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY, AND  

WHEN RECORDED, MAIL TO:  

 

City of Clovis  

1033 Fifth Street 

Clovis, California 93612 

ATTN: City Manager  

 

 

 

 

 (Space above provided for Recorder) 

No recording or filing fee required; this document 

exempt from fee pursuant 

to California Government Code sections 6103 and 

27383. 

 

 

HERITAGE GROVE ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 

APNS ____-____-____ 

This Heritage Grove Annexation Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of 

_______________, 2024, between the City of Clovis, a California municipal corporation and 

general law city (“City”), and _______________________________ (“Owner”) with respect to 

the following recitals, which are a substantive part of this Agreement.  Each of the City, the 

Developer, and each Owner is a “Party” and are collectively the “Parties.”  

RECITALS 

A. Owner owns the real property in the County of Fresno, State of California, identified as 

Assessor’s Parcel Number ____-____-____ and located at _____________ (“Property”).  

The legal description of the Property is described in Exhibit A attached hereto and 

incorporated herein. 

B. The Property is currently zoned AE-20 and is improved with a single family home and 

other structures and improvements consistent with uses, standards and setbacks allowed in 

AE-20 zoned real property notwithstanding the fact that the Property is less than 20 acres 

in size (i.e., the Property and the uses thereon are legal nonconforming uses allowed in the 

County). 

C. The Property is within an area which is within City’s Sphere of Influence and comprises a 

portion of the “Northwest Urban Center” as designated in the 2014 Clovis General Plan 

and subsequently renamed “Heritage Grove”. 

D. City has recently approved various entitlements in connection with the proposed residential 

development near the Property, including approval of Tentative Tract Map No. 6343 

(“Tract 6343”), and approved an application to the Fresno County Local Area Formation 

Commission (“LAFCo”) for annexation of the real property comprising Tract 6343 and 

119

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 2 

 

 

the Property to promote more uniform boundaries between incorporated and 

unincorporated areas in the County of Fresno, California. 

E. Owner has expressed concern that City’s annexation of the Property would require Owner 

to abandon Owner’s existing rural residential lifestyle on the Property. 

F. City desires to address Owner’s concerns in exchange for Owner’s agreement not to protest 

City’s annexation of the Property, and the parties desire to permit Owner to continue with 

Owner’s rural residential lifestyle following annexation in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for the consideration set forth herein, the parties agree as follows. 

AGREEMENT 

ARTICLE I 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement shall only be effective upon the annexation of the Property into the 

City of Clovis and except as provided in the following sentence, shall thereafter be perpetual in 

term and shall run with the Property. Should use of a Property Intensify (as defined in Section 2.8 

below) following annexation, this Agreement shall terminate  and all City ordinances and 

standards then in effect shall govern and be complied with by such Owner, or such Owner’s 

successors, heirs, and assigns; provided, however, all legal nonconforming improvements situated 

on the Property at the time of annexation and all improvements legally made to or on the Property 

after annexation shall be deemed legal nonconforming if and to the extent that they do not comply.  

The provisions of this Article I shall survive the termination of this Agreement as to the Property. 

ARTICLE II 

BENEFITS TO OWNER 

Section 2.1 Permitted Uses. The following uses shall be allowed on the 

Property: 

(a) Those uses to which the Property is currently put; 

(b) The setback requirements for accessory structures set forth in Fresno County 

Ordinance 822.3.100H.4.b.; and 

(c) Those uses permitted under the City’s Municipal Code after annexation. 

Section 2.2 Farm Animals. Owner may keep farm animals to the extent the 

keeping of farm animals was lawfully allowed to exist under the Fresno County Code for properties 

zoned AE-20 at the time of annexation, or, if more expansive, as otherwise lawfully allowed under 

City’s Municipal Code for the designated zoning upon annexation. 

Section 2.3 Use of Water Wells. Owner may continue to use existing water 

well(s) and defer connection to the City water system, even if a City water service connection is 

120

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 3 

 

 

available to the Property. At any time in the future, Owner may be required to install a water meter 

approved by the City, but only if meters for water wells on properties of similar size and use of the 

Property is required to comply with State law or regulations or lawful directive of the North Kings 

Groundwater Sustainability Agency (“NKGSA”), or City’s Municipal Code is amended to include 

a requirement that water wells must be metered which is applicable to the Property as necessary 

to comply with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (“SGMA”) or the NKGSA’s 

Groundwater Sustainability Plan (“GSP”)  approved by the California Department of Water 

Resources.  Owner may be subject to utility rates and charges as stated in the City’s Municipal 

Code or approved by City Council resolution for use of a private supply well and a charge for 

groundwater use or over-drafting, but only if such rates and charges are based on the City’s 

obligation to comply with the GSP, lawful NKGSA directive(s) or regulation(s), or SGMA. It is 

understood that the City is a member of the NKGSA and subject to the GSP, and also understood 

that the City is solely responsible for compliance with applicable State law, including SGMA, and 

mitigating the impacts of groundwater pumping within its jurisdiction.  In no event shall any such 

charges imposed on Owner or the Property be duplicative or in excess of any fees or charges that 

Owner must pay to NKGSA or would be required to pay to NKGSA if the Property were not 

annexed into the City. Use and maintenance of the system will remain the responsibility of the 

Owner and any water well must be kept and maintained in a condition consistent with applicable 

Fresno County Environmental Health Department standards as if the Property were still in the 

unincorporated area of the County of Fresno. The City is not responsible for existing well water 

quality or any changes to well water quality after annexation, and the Owner shall be solely 

responsible for any and all compliance with applicable water quality standards. Owner shall 

comply with applicable State law and regulations, applicable provisions of the City’s Municipal 

Code, and lawful directives from the NKGSA pertaining to water wells and groundwater use, 

including SGMA.  

(a) If a new well becomes necessary on the Property, Owner shall comply with the 

City’s Municipal Code with respect to the permitting, drilling and completion 

thereof. The drilling, deepening, and abandonment of any wells shall also be 

permitted, drilled and completed in accordance with the City’s Municipal Code and 

applicable State and County standards for wells in effect at the time. If Owner 

connects to the City water system, Owner may continue to use the existing well(s) 

on the Property, including maintenance, replacement, and metering consistent with 

this section, solely for landscaping purposes so long as no cross-connection is made 

between the well(s) and any residence now or hereafter constructed on the Property.   

(b) A water service connection will be deemed available to the Property if (i) the 

Property is within the City limits, and (ii) a water service connection has been 

constructed and is available for use in Behymer Avenue and adjacent to the Property.  

(c) With any connection to the City’s water system, Owner shall be responsible for 

making such connection, including the payment of all costs associated with the 

connection, including, but not limited to applicable City connection fees and any 

costs related to the physical construction to connect. 

Section 2.4 Use of Septic Tanks.  Owner may continue to use and maintain the 

existing septic tank or pit on the Property, even if a City sewer service connection is available to 

121

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 4 

 

 

the Property. Use and maintenance of the existing system will remain the sole responsibility of 

Owner and the septic system must be kept and maintained in a condition consistent with State 

requirements and Fresno County Environmental Health Department standards as if the Property 

were still in the unincorporated area of the County of Fresno.  If a septic system fails, the onsite 

septic system may be repaired or replaced in accordance with State,  County, and City standards 

for septic systems in effect at the time. 

After annexation, and within three (3) years of a sewer service connection being available to the 

Property, Owner shall either connect to the City sewer system or obtain a written deferral under 

the criteria set forth below. Connection or deferment is only required upon City notification to the 

Owner of the need to connect to the City sewer system and shall not be unreasonably denied. 

Deferment of connection to the City’s sewer system is authorized if each of the following Deferral 

Criteria (a-e immediately below) is satisfied: 

(a) The septic system must comply with current State standards at the time deferment is 

requested. 

(b) The septic system may not have leach fields or tanks within areas that are flood 

irrigated. 

(c) Owner must provide a diagram of the septic system’s location and proof that the 

septic system is in good working order. The diagram and acceptable proof may be 

provided by having a licensed septic company inspect the septic system and provide 

documentation that the system is functioning properly and of a design that meets 

State standards.  

(d) A Deferment must be renewed every ten (10) years until the septic system is 

abandoned or removed in accordance with applicable State, County, and City 

standards in effect at the time and the Property is connected to the City’s sewer 

system. 

(e) Owner must be in compliance with the City’s Municipal Code in all respects except 

as otherwise specifically authorized in this Agreement.  

Upon any Intensification of use as set forth in Section 2.8 of this Agreement, Owner shall connect 

to the City sewer system if it is available to the Property. A sewer service connection will be 

deemed available to the Property if (a) the Property is within the City limits, and (b) a sewer service 

connection has been constructed and is available for use in Behymer Avenue and adjacent to the 

Property. 

With any connection to the City’s sewer system, Owner shall be responsible for making such 

connection, including the payment of all costs associated with the connection, including, but not 

limited to applicable City connection fees and any costs related to the physical construction to 

connect. 

122

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 5 

 

 

Section 2.5 Solid Waste Service. Owner shall have the choice of changing to 

City solid waste service immediately, or staying with their existing franchised service provider 

through the County for up to five (5) years from the date of annexation. City’s basic residential 

refuse, recycling and organics service is centered on urban waste production. All City residents 

are required to have refuse, recycling and organics toters. Rural residential properties can generate 

waste material in quantities or types that require additional services above City’s standard waste 

pickup. Therefore, when Owner is ready to change to City service it will be necessary to work 

directly with City’s solid waste division to determine the best way City can service Owner’s solid 

waste needs.  

Section 2.6 Improvements & Restrictions.   

(a) Tract 6343.  City shall cause the following requirements to be implemented and 

enforced in connection with the development of Tract 6343: 

(1) No public street shall be constructed along the east side of APN: 556-040-

08s that connects directly to Behymer Avenue.  Instead, the alignment of 

Baron Avenue as reflected in Tentative Tract Map No. 6343 (whether it is 

then called Baron Avenue or not) shall be changed to the western boundary 

of APN: 556-040-08s.   

(2) All improvements in connection with Tract 6343 shall be in accordance with 

applicable City approvals and development standards.  

(b) Other Behymer Improvements.  Owner shall not be required to install additional 

improvements prior to Intensification as defined in Section 2.8 below.  Such 

improvements include, but are not limited to, road improvements, wet and dry utility 

facilities, and storm drainage facilities that serve the Property.   

(c) Cost.  Owner’s fair share of the cost of improvements to be constructed pursuant to 

this Section 2.6 shall be in accordance with the City of Clovis policies and Municipal 

Code and payable upon Intensification as defined in Section 2.8 below.  The 

Property may be included in a community facilities district, landscape maintenance 

district, or any other benefit assessment district upon Intensification as defined in 

Section 2.8 below.  All work required hereunder shall be performed so as to cause 

the least possible disruption of access to and from the Property and the least possible 

interruption of utility service to the Property and shall be installed concurrent with 

the construction of the offsite improvements within and to Behymer Avenue. 

(d) Traffic Control.  No traffic signals shall be installed within 500’ of those parcels of 

real property situated in the County of Fresno, State of California, identified as 

Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 556-040-09s; -15s; -16s; -18s; -24s & -20s, respectively.   

Section 2.7 Addressing. Owner acknowledges that as part of the annexation 

process, the Property will be required to change from a County address to ____________________ 

- a City address. The address change will be pursuant to City policy. Changing to a City address 

123

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 6 

 

 

will allow Clovis Police and Clovis Fire to accurately dispatch calls for service to these areas 

without delay.   

Section 2.8 Intensification in Use. The provisions of this Agreement shall 

remain in effect and run with the land so long as use of the Property does not intensify after 

annexation. Intensification may occur upon the City’s approval of an applicable rezone 

application, subdivision map, parcel map, parcel map waiver, lot line adjustment, or building 

permit that allows a use that is considered an intensification hereunder.  Intensification may also 

occur without City approval.  Any intensification as provided herein, whether or not approved by 

City, shall result in the termination of this Agreement and the Property shall be subject to 

applicable provisions of the City’s Municipal Code.  “Intensification” and “Intensify” mean the 

following:  

(a) Subdivision of the land into any density greater than 0.5 Units/Acre (2 acre parcels). 

If, after annexation, the Property is subdivided into a density greater than 0.5 

Units/Acre, this Agreement shall terminate and the Property and all newly created 

parcel(s) shall be subject to applicable provisions of City’s Municipal Code. 

(b) The addition of additional residential units without subdivision, except that up to 

one (1) second residential unit and (1) accessory dwelling unit shall be allowed on 

the Property as permitted by City’s accessory dwelling unit ordinance and state 

legislation, and such development shall not be deemed an intensification of use. 

Outbuildings and other improvements that are not dwelling units (e.g., barns, shops, 

sheds, shade structures, swimming pools, pool house, fountains, etc.) may be 

constructed on the Property consistent with applicable City zoning requirements and 

development standards (as modified herein) and such improvements shall not be 

deemed an Intensification of use. 

(c) The rezone of the Property to anything other than residential,  use of the Property 

for commercial, office, or industrial uses, or the development of commercial, office, 

or industrial structures on the Property, except that home offices and any other uses 

identified and authorized in this Agreement or the City’s zoning code shall not be 

an Intensification of use.  

ARTICLE III 

BENEFITS TO CITY 

Section 3.1 Consent to Annexation. Each Owner consents to annexation of such 

Owner’s Property in accordance herewith. In that regard, each Owner agrees to do the following:  

(a) Sign any request by the City, the County, LAFCo, or Developer to consent to 

annexation of such Owner’s Property; and  

(b) Not oppose or protest annexation of such Owner’s Property in any proceeding. 

Section 3.2 Failure to Consent to Annexation.  If Owner fails to consent to 

annexation as required hereunder, or if Owner, any subsequent owner of the Property, or any 

124

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 7 

 

 

registered voter residing on the Property objects to or withdraws consent to the City’s annexation 

of the Property, this Agreement shall be null and void as to the Property even if annexation is 

ultimately approved and the Property is annexed. 

Section 3.3 Non-Precedent Setting. This Agreement is unique to Owner and the 

Property and the circumstances surrounding the annexation and development of Tract 6343 and in 

no way shall be considered precedent setting, persuasive, or binding on the City in any other 

circumstance. 

ARTICLE IV 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 4.1 Voluntary Agreement; Construction; Authority. The Parties 

represent that they have read this Agreement in full and understand and voluntarily agree to all of 

its provisions. The Parties each further declare that prior to signing this Agreement they apprized 

themselves of relevant information through sources of their own selection, including but not 

limited to consulting or having the opportunity to consult with legal counsel of their own choosing. 

In executing this Agreement, no Party has relied upon any statements of any other Party or any 

third party concerning the meaning or import of this Agreement or any portion thereof. This 

Agreement was negotiated between the Parties at arm’s length and was prepared by and among 

each Party and/or their duly appointed attorneys or representative(s). Accordingly, the Parties 

expressly waive the provisions of Civil Code section 1654 and acknowledge and agree that the 

Agreement shall not be deemed prepared or drafted by any one Party, and shall be construed 

accordingly. The Parties further represent that they have, as of the date of execution of this 

Agreement, the legal capacity and authority to sign this Agreement. 

Section 4.2 Severability. If any section of this Agreement is found by competent 

authority to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect for any reason, the validity, legality 

and enforceability of such section in every other respect and the remainder of this Agreement shall 

continue in effect so long as the Agreement still expresses the intent of the Parties. However, if 

the intent of the Parties cannot be preserved, this Agreement shall be renegotiated to provide each 

Party with the benefits originally intended hereunder.  

Section 4.3 Integration. The Recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated in 

and made a part of this Agreement by this reference. This Agreement contains the entire and only 

understanding between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any 

prior or collateral agreements, negotiations, and communications in connection with the subject 

matter covered herein, whether oral or written, and any warranty, representation, promise, or 

condition in connection therewith not incorporated herein shall not be binding upon any Party.  

Section 4.4 Recording of Agreement.  Owner may record this Agreement in the 

Office of the County Recorder of the County of Fresno. 

Section 4.5 Conflict with Law. To the extent this Agreement contains provisions 

in conflict with State or federal law, including judicial or administrative decisions, the State or 

federal law shall control.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement shall control over 

125

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 8 

 

 

inconsistent provisions in the City of Clovis Municipal Code, as it exists on the date of this 

Agreement. 

[Signatures commence on the following page.]  

126

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 9 

 

 

WHEREFORE, the Parties hereto, by their signatures below, enter into this 

Agreement. 

 

CITY OF CLOVIS 

 

Signed: ________________________ 

By: John Holt, City Manager 

 

Dated: ______________________ 

 

ATTEST: 

 

Signed:_________________________ 

By: Briana Parra, City Clerk 

 

Dated: ___________________________ 

 

OWNER  

 

Signed: ______________________ 

By:  

 

Dated: ______________________ 

 

Signed: ______________________ 

By:  

 

Dated: ______________________ 

 

127

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 

 10 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

128

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 

document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California )  

County of Fresno )  

 

On ____________________, before me, ____________________________, Notary Public, 

personally appeared _______________________________, who proved to me on the basis of 

satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument 

and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 

capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 

upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature   

 

129

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services  

DATE: August 19, 2024 

SUBJECT: Consider items associated with approximately 333 acres of land located 
adjacent to the north side of Highway 168 from Armstrong Avenue to 
Owens Mountain Parkway; otherwise known as the City of Clovis 
Research and Technology Park. Various property owners; City of Clovis, 
applicant. 

a. Consider Approval - Res. 24-___, GPA2021-007, A request to amend 
the General Plan to correctly designate the Research and Technology 
Park boundary in Focus Area 6, incorporate amendments allowing 
campus-affiliated housing within the Research and Technology Park and 
include the existing P-C-C and P-F zone districts as consistent zone 
districts within the MU-BC land use designation; and  

b. Consider Introduction - Ord. 24-___, OA2021-004, A request to amend 
the Clovis Development Code as a cleanup action to further define the 
MU-BC land use designation to allow for certain ancillary campus-
affiliated housing uses in the R-T zone district, add development 
standards for the campus-affiliated housing uses and establish an R-T 
overlay zone district; and 

c. Consider Introduction - Ord. 24-___, R2021-010, A request to rezone 
approximately 63 properties inconsistently zoned within the designated 
Research and Technology Park plan area from the R-A, R-1-AH, R-1-
7500, R-1-8500 and C-P zone districts to the R-T zone district or R-T 
overlay zone district; and 

d. Consider Approval – Res. 24-___, A request to amend the Clovis 
Research and Technology Architectural Guidelines to add development 
and design standards for campus-affiliated housing consistent with the 
General Plan and Development Code. 

Staff: McKencie Perez, Senior Planner 

Recommendation: Approve  

130

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 24-___, GPA2021-007 
2. Ord. 24-___, OA2021-004 
3. Ord. 24-___, R2021-010 
4. Res. 24-___, Guidelines 
5. Letters from community members 
6. Comments from Departments/Agencies 
7. Environmental Document 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff and the Planning Commission recommend that the City Council take action to approve 
each of the four components of the proposed Project as outlined in the subject title of this item.  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The proposed Research and Technology (“R-T”) Park Cleanup Project includes amendments to 
the City of Clovis General Plan, Development Code, Zoning, and Clovis Research and 
Technology Park Architectural Guidelines (“Architectural Guidelines”) for approximately 333 
acres of land designated as the Clovis R-T Park (“Project”).  
 
The purpose of these amendments is to correct inconsistencies between the aforementioned 
documents and to facilitate development within the R-T Park in an efficient manner. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 1997, the City Council directed Staff to evaluate the potential of designating ±180 acres as a 
R-T Park. Following the preparation of a feasibility study, City Council directed Staff to proceed 
with implementation and the R-T Park was established by re-designating ±180 acres to the 
Mixed-Use land use designation to create the plan area in 1999. Subsequent approvals 
established zoning for the R-T Park, expanded its boundaries, and accommodated the 
development of the California Health Sciences University (“CHSU”) within the R-T Park, as 
follows: 

 

 In 2001, the R-T zone district was created, and the first 80 acres of the plan area 
were rezoned to the R-T zone district.  

 

 In 2008, the City Council adopted the Architectural Guidelines and in 2009 an 
additional ±153 acres (known as Phase III) were added to the plan area for a total 
of ±333 acres. 

 

 In 2016, the City approved an administrative use permit (“AUP”) to allow the 
development of the CHSU, including the approval of a campus master plan. The 
campus master plan included a site for student housing on approximately 24.5 
acres of the campus located west of Locan Avenue and north of the Owens 
Mountain Parkway alignment. 

 

 At its January 4, 2021, meeting, the City Council initiated the R-T Park Cleanup 
Project to amend both the Development Code and General Plan.  

131

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 At its February 8, 2021, meeting, the City Council also approved a Memorandum 
of Understanding (“MOU”) to memorialize the mutual understanding of the City and 
CHSU with respect to the development of an expanded campus, including campus-
affiliated housing on up to 70 acres, and to serve as a guide for the development 
of the campus. The approval of an updated campus master plan, as well as 
approval of the individual projects within the master plan (including campus-
affiliated housing) continue to be subject to City land use entitlements and 
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”).  

 
The proposed Project pertains only to the cleanup actions that are a result of several policy 
actions and changes spanning decades. The proposed Project would amend the General Plan, 
Development Code, Zoning, and the Architectural Guidelines. These actions are intended to 
retire existing, nonconforming zoning within the R-T Park and remove inconsistencies between 
the General Plan, Development Code, Zoning, and Architectural Guidelines to streamline future 
development within the R-T Park. 
 
PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 
In response to the direction provided by the City Council in 2021, the Project proposes to update 
the General Plan, Development Code, Zoning, and Architectural Guidelines to achieve 
consistency with the plans for the R-T Park area (Figure 1 below). The corrections will also clarify 
uses that are intended to be permitted as part of the CHSU campus.  
 
General Plan Amendment 
General Plan Amendment Cycles 
State law prohibits a local agency from amending its general plan more than four times during 
any calendar year (with certain exceptions for affordable housing projects, court orders, etc. – 
Government Code § 65358). Multiple changes can be made during each of the four 
amendments, and the changes can be in conjunction with different, unrelated projects. For this 
reason, development projects requiring general plan amendments (GPAs) are frequently 
grouped into batches or cycles so that final action can occur on multiple projects with GPAs at 
the same City Council meeting and count as only one of the four amendments. The GPA 
currently under consideration is the only amendment being considered in conjunction with GPA 
Cycle 3 of 2024.   
 
General Plan Amendment Proposal 
The City’s existing General Plan was adopted in 2014. Based on the existing General Plan, the 
map depicting the boundary for the R-T Park (Focus Area 6) incorrectly shows the area that has 
been planned for the R-T Park. Therefore, a GPA is needed to correct this technical inaccuracy. 
The amendment would also clarify that campus-affiliated housing is permitted within the R-T 
Park. Finally, the description of the Mixed Use/Business Campus (“MU-BC”) land use 
designation would be modified to confirm that the existing P-C-C (Planned Commercial Center) 
and P-F (Public Facilities) zone districts are consistent within this land use designation. The 
proposed modifications are outlined in detail in Attachment 1A. Below is a summary of the 
modifications: 

 

132

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 Modify Figure LU-4 (Focus Areas and Specific Plans) to include the entire R-T Park 
boundary for Focus Area 6.  
 

 Modify Table LU-2 (Land Use Designations) of the General Plan to include 
educational and residential uses ancillary to the CHSU campus, including campus-
affiliated housing as consistent uses in the MU-BC land use designation. 
 

 Modify Table LU-3 (General Plan and Zoning Consistency) of the General Plan to 
include the P-C-C (Planned Commercial Center) and P-F (Public Facilities) zone 
districts as consistent zone districts within the MU-BC land use designation. These 
zone districts have already been applied to properties within the R-T Park and 
would not be expanded within the R-T Park area. The proposed amendment would 
simply confirm that these existing zone districts are consistent with the MU-BC land 
use designation. 
 

 Modify Table LU-4 (Mixed-Use Focus Areas and Specific Plans) to include campus-
affiliated housing as ancillary uses to the CHSU campus. 

 
FIGURE 1 – Project Area 

 
 
 
 
 

133

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Development Code Amendment 
The proposed Project would further define the MU-BC land use designation to allow for campus-
affiliated housing in the R-T zone district, add design guidelines for campus-affiliated housing, 
and create a R-T overlay zone district. The objective of these actions is to create and maintain 
consistency among the applicable plans and policies while maintaining the intent of the City’s 
vision for the R-T Park. Below is a summary of the modifications: 
 
Section 9.14.010, Purpose of chapter, applicability 

 

 Add language for projects within the R-T zone district specifying that compliance 
with the R-T Park Architectural Guidelines is required. 

 
Section 9.14.020, Table 2-6, Allowable Uses and Permit Requirements for Industrial Zoning 
Districts 

 

 Modify the “Schools, Specialized Education and Training” use to clarify that the use 
includes Campus-affiliated Housing and add a footnote. 
 

 Add a footnote to address Campus-affiliated Housing. 
 

Section 9.14.030, Table 2-7, Industrial Zoning Districts, General Development Standards, 
Requirements by Individual Zoning District 

 

 Update language in footnote #11 for the R-T (Commercial Component) to specify 
standards have been established. 
 

 Add a “Campus-affiliated Housing – Single-Family” category with development 
standards. 
 

 Add a “Campus-affiliated Housing – Multi-Family” category with development 
standards.   
 

 Add footnotes to address the Architectural Guidelines, future deviations, and 
setbacks.  

 
Chapter 9.18, Overlay/Combining Zoning Districts 

 

 Add Section 9.18.060 for a R-T overlay zone district to facilitate a transition to the 
R-T Park zone district while allowing owners to retain their existing residential uses. 
The overlay will allow existing residential uses to remain in conformance with their 
residential zone district.  

 
Section 9.120.020, Definitions of land uses, specialized terms, and phrases 

 

 Revise the “Schools, specialized education, and training” definition to clarify that 
campus-affiliated housing is permitted as part of a university campus.  

134

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



The proposed modifications are outlined in detail in Attachment 2. 
 

Rezone  
The current general plan land use designation for the R-T Park is MU-BC, which allows a mixture 
of research and technology uses and will remain unchanged. The corresponding zone district 
should be the R-T zone district; however, there are parcels within the R-T Park that currently 
maintain residential zoning. Additionally, the General Plan does not specifically require that 
properties be rezoned to the R-T zone district, creating uncertainty as to whether alternate zone 
districts (Industrial, Manufacturing, Office) are acceptable means of implementing the General 
Plan for these properties. Therefore, in order to bring the zoning into consistency with the MU-
BC land use designation, a rezone is needed. Three (3) rezone options were made available for 
properties within the R-T Park that would be consistent with the MU-BC land use designation. 
Below is a summary of the options: 

 

 Option 1 – Rezone the property to the R-T zone district. This is the option utilized 
for vacant properties or properties where the owners do not intend to preserve an 
existing residential use. 
 

 Option 2 – Retain the base residential zoning and have a R-T overlay zone district 
allowing for existing residential properties to remain residential, while also allowing 
for R-T Park development should those properties choose to develop per the R-T 
standards. This is the option selected by property owners who desire to retain an 
existing residential use of the property.  
 

 Option 3 – The same as Option 2 but with the addition of a rezone agreement with 
the City. The rezone agreement provides an additional layer of assurance to 
property owners that relate to the continued use of existing residential uses.  

 
After working with the affected owners to identify their preferred option, the City is proposing to 
rezone sixty-three (63) properties within the R-T Park as summarized below and outlined in more 
detail in Attachment 3. Approximately fifty-seven (57) properties within the R-T Park are already 
appropriately zoned and are not included in the rezoning. 

 

 Rezone forty-one (41) properties from the residential or office zone districts to the 
R-T zone district.  
 

 Rezone fourteen (14) properties to include the R-T overlay zone district with their 
existing residential zone district (i.e., R-A/R-T).  
 

 Rezone eight (8) properties to include the R-T overlay zone district with their 
existing residential zone district (i.e., R-A/R-T) and enter into an agreement with 
the City of Clovis. 

 
 
 
 

135

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Clovis Research and Technology Park Architectural Guidelines 
Due to the cleanup of the various City plans, the Project proposes to update the Architectural 
Guidelines to reflect the design and development standards of the campus-affiliated housing. 
The modifications will add design and development standards for campus-affiliated housing, 
similar to those proposed in the Development Code. A more detailed outline can be found in 
Attachment 4A.  

 
Public Outreach 
Since the City Council meeting on January 4, 2021, staff has held six (6) public meetings. The 
first two (2) meetings were for property owners within the R-T Park where parcels are proposed 
to be rezoned. The next four (4) meetings were scheduled as neighborhood meetings for 
property owners within the R-T Park and property owners within 800 feet of the R-T Park 
boundary.  

 
Property Owner Meetings 
The property owner informational meetings were held on April 27, 2021, and September 9, 2021, 
at the CHSU campus. At the first meeting, City staff discussed the R-T Park background, reasons 
for the Project cleanup, pros and cons of the rezone, the future development of the R-T Park, 
and available rezone options. City staff requested feedback and input from the residents. 
Generally, residents expressed concerns and questions pertaining to, but not limited to, property 
values, development timelines, and the loss of the existing residential use. At the second 
meeting, City staff provided a recap of the previous meeting, discussed the rezone options, and 
next steps. The CHSU representatives also attended the meeting and provided a presentation 
of their master plan.   

 
Neighborhood Meetings 
The first neighborhood meeting was held virtually on January 21, 2022. The second and third 
neighborhood meetings were held on March 2, 2022, and April 6, 2022, at the Dry Creek 
Elementary School. The fourth neighborhood meeting was held on July 30, 2024, at the Clovis 
Transit Center. At the meetings, staff provided an overview of the Project, solicited feedback 
regarding the Project, and discussed the next steps. Representatives of CHSU also presented 
to the residents and had student and faculty speakers at the second neighborhood meeting. All 
four (4) of the neighborhood meetings were well attended, including several dozen participants 
(more than 100) for the first three meetings and around 25 people for the fourth meeting. The 
discussion was overwhelmingly focused on the potential for campus-affiliated housing 
(apartment-style housing) to be developed on approximately twenty (20) acres of property west 
of Temperance Avenue and south of Nees Avenue. Few comments addressed other topics 
associated with the Project. Some neighbors expressed doubt regarding the need for as much 
campus-affiliated housing as had been envisioned by the MOU, and some suggested that the 
future units would be occupied by the general public rather than CHSU students.  
 
At the fourth neighborhood meeting, there was concern raised regarding the proposed height of 
the multi-family campus-affiliated housing being up to 45 feet/3 stories. Staff is recommending 
a proposed modification to the height requirement that is outlined under the Proposed 
Modifications Since the Planning Commission Meeting section below.  
 

136

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Staff has received several letters in opposition and support from members of the community, 
which are attached to this staff report for the City Council’s review and consideration (see 
Attachment 5). 

 
Relationship Between Neighborhood Concerns and the Proposed Project 
Through the approval of the initial campus master plan in 2016, the City identified campus-
affiliated housing as an appropriate part of the CHSU campus in the R-T zone district. The 2016 
approval specifically provided for 24.5 acres of student housing on the east side of Temperance 
Avenue. In conjunction with the 2021 MOU, CHSU identified the need for additional housing and 
the City Council ultimately concurred. The MOU anticipates up to seventy (70) acres of campus-
affiliated housing, including approximately twenty (20) acres at the Temperance and Nees 
location that the neighborhood has expressed concerns about.   
 
Per the MOU, campus-affiliated housing is subject to a restrictive covenant which provides that 
no parcel or portion of land designated for campus-affiliated housing may be sold without first 
offering the parcel or land for sale to the CHSU for a period of no less than thirty (30) days. 
Additionally, the operational rules for any multi-family campus-affiliated housing shall include 
provisions for targeted marketing to students, faculty, and campus personnel as a first priority 
and leasing alternatives or terms available to students, faculty, and campus personnel that are 
not available to the general public.  
 
The twenty (20) acre property west of Temperance Avenue that is the primary focus of 
neighborhood concerns is within the boundary of the area planned for the R-T Park and has a 
MU-BC general plan designation. The current zoning of R-A will be changed to R-T in 
conjunction with the project. Although the City determined in 2016 that campus-affiliated housing 
is an appropriate component of the CHSU campus within the R-T zone district, the General Plan 
and Development Code does not speak directly to that topic. To clarify this issue moving forward, 
the Project proposes to add language to the General Plan and Development Code confirming 
that campus-affiliated housing is permitted as part of the CHSU campus within the R-T Park. 
This clarification, together with the MOU which identifies campus-affiliated housing on the 
property, has caused the neighbors to voice their concerns. 
 
Planning Commission Hearing 
On Thursday, June 27, 2024, the Planning Commission considered the Project, with staff 
presenting the Project alongside its recommendations and detailed information as described in 
the staff report. Staff also outlined additional public comments received after the report's 
completion in a memorandum and during the presentation. Residents from the surrounding area 
attended and voiced their opposition to the project. Key concerns raised included: 
 

 Increased traffic and crime due to the Project. 

 Permitting campus-affiliated housing within the R-T Park.  

 Amount of campus-affiliated housing compared to student enrollment. 

 Campus-affiliated housing being sold to the public after 30 days of availability to the 
school.  

 Height and setbacks of campus-affiliated housing. 

 No environmental impact report prepared for the Project.  

137

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



After discussions, the Planning Commission voted to recommend that the City Council approve 
the entitlements associated with the Project with minor modifications requested by Staff during 
the presentation. All the items were approved with a vote of 4-0-1, with Commissioner Hebert 
absent.  

 
Public Meeting Notice 
A public notice was sent to area residents within 800 feet of the Project boundaries. Staff has 
received two (2) comment letters from community members, which are attached to this staff 
report for the City Council’s review and consideration (see Attachment 5).  
 
The City published notice of this public hearing in The Business Journal on Friday, August 2, 
2024.   
 
Proposed Modifications Since the Planning Commission Meeting 
Since the Planning Commission hearing and the fourth neighborhood meeting, Staff has 
identified a few additional modifications to the Project that are reflected in recommended 
amendments. They are listed below: 
 

 GPA2021-007 
o Revise Tables LU-2 and LU-4 and remove language specifically referencing 

CHSU. This change would retain the clarity that campus-affiliated housing is 
permitted in the MU-BC land use designation and Focus Area 6, but would remove 
the specific reference to CHSU, because the general plan does not generally refer 
to specific business entities. 

 OA2021-004:  
o Remove the minimum density requirement outlined in Table 2-7 for the multi-family 

component to be consistent with the density outlined in Focus Area 6 of the 
General Plan. This provides greater flexibility for a range of product types and does 
not require a future project to provide a minimum number of units. 

o Revise footnote 6 for Table 2-6 and the definition for a school, specialized 
education, or training facility to remove language specifically referencing CHSU. 
This change would retain the clarity that campus-affiliated housing is permitted in 
the R-T Zone, but would remove the specific reference to CHSU, because the 
development code does not generally refer to specific business entities. 

o Revise the proposed maximum height requirement for the multi-family component 
of the campus-affiliated housing from 45 feet/3 stories to 35 feet/2 stories. This 
change will reduce potential height of apartment-style housing as requested by 
property owners in the vicinity of the property which has been identified for such 
housing. 

 R2021-010:  
o A property owner within the Project boundary originally selected Option 1 and has 

since changed to Option 3.  

 Architectural Guidelines:  
o Remove the minimum and maximum density outlined in the single-family 

development features table to be consistent with the density outlined in the 
Development Code.  

138

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



o Remove the minimum density outlined in the multi-family development features 
table to be consistent with the Development Code.  

o Revise the proposed maximum height requirement for the multi-family component 
of the campus-affiliated housing from 45 feet/3 stories to 35 feet/2 stories.  

 
The resolutions and ordinances for the Project have been updated to reflect the proposed 
modifications mentioned above. 

 
Review and Comments from Agencies 
The Project was distributed to all City divisions as well as outside agencies, including Caltrans, 
Clovis Unified School District, Fresno Irrigation District, Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control 
District, AT&T, PG&E, San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District, State Department of Fish 
and Wildlife, County of Fresno, and the Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo). 
 
Comments received are attached (Attachment 6) only if the agency has provided concerns, 
conditions, or mitigation measures. Routine responses and comment letters are placed in the 
administrative record and provided to the applicant for their records. 
 
California Environmental Quality Act  
The R-T Park area underwent environmental review on two (2) separate occasions to consider 
the entire approximately 333 acres. The first approximately 188 acres of land designated for the 
R-T Park was approved and the environmental impact report (“EIR”) was certified by the Clovis 
City Council in June 1999. The R-T Park expansion, which added approximately 153 acres 
(known as Phase III), was approved in conjunction with the certification of a separate EIR in 
August 2009. Additionally, an EIR was certified for the General Plan in 2014, which considered 
the environmental impacts associated with buildout of properties with the MU-BC land use 
designation, including the planned R-T Park. The MU-BC designation provides for a range of 
industrial, commercial, and institutional uses, along with residential densities up to 25 dwelling 
units per acre.  
 
The proposed amendments associated with this Project do not effectuate any physical change 
to the environment, but rather allow the R-T Park area to develop the way the General Plan 
intended. The proposed General Plan and Development Code text changes also clarify the City’s 
policy interpretation as to the allowance for campus-affiliated housing in conjunction with a 
university. While future development within the R-T Park could result in potential environmental 
effects, approving the proposed amendments themselves will not, because the proposed 
amendments do not, in and of themselves, apply to any physical development or use. To the 
extent that individual projects are proposed in the future, including but not limited to an AUP for 
an expanded CHSU campus, those projects will be assessed and required to comply with the 
provisions of CEQA. Increases in intensity and density will be reviewed at the time of project 
submission and mitigated accordingly. The Project amendments merely create a framework that 
achieves consistency between the City’s planning documents as they relate to the R-T Park and 
clarify the City’s previous policy interpretations. As such, the proposed amendments will permit 
future applications to apply for development within the plan area but will not intensify existing 
uses at the time the proposed amendments are approved. 
 

139

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Based on these factors, the City has determined that the proposed Project amendments are 
consistent with the City’s General Plan and that potential impacts associated with the project 
were evaluated in the EIRs prepared in conjunction with the 2001 and 2009 actions to establish 
the R-T Park and the 2014 General Plan EIR. No impacts peculiar to the Project, or impacts not 
previously evaluated, have been identified. Therefore, the proposed amendments for the Project 
are exempt from CEQA pursuant to a Finding of Consistency with the General Plan set forth in 
section 15183 of the CEQA Guidelines. Refer to the additional analysis outlined in Attachment 
7. 

 
Project Findings 
General Plan Amendment Findings and Analysis 
In order to approve an amendment to the General Plan, specific findings must be made. Those 
include the following:  

 
1. The proposed amendment is internally consistent with the goals, policies, and 

actions of the General Plan. 
 

The Project is consistent with the following goals and policies of the General Plan 
and would contribute to the economic vitality of an area that is planned for 
employment opportunities. The Project would also enhance the opportunities 
available for the existing educational institution.  

 

 Land Use Goal 5: A city with housing, employment, and lifestyle opportunities 
for all ages and incomes of residents. 
 

 Land Use Policy 5.1: Housing variety in developments. The Clovis General 
Plan has been planned to provide a variety of housing product types suitable 
to each stage of a person’s life. Each development should contribute to a 
diversity of housing sizes and types within the standards appropriate to the 
land use designation. This policy does not apply to projects smaller than five 
acres. 

 

 Land Use Policy 5.2: Ownership and rental. Encourage a mixture of both 
ownership and rental options to meet varied preferences and income 
affordability needs. 

 

 Economic Goal 2: A thriving local economy enriched by its connections and 
linkages to regional assets and to the national and global communication and 
transportation networks. 

 

 Economic Policy 2.3: Clovis Community Medical Center. Maintain and 
enhance a collaborative relationship with Clovis Community Medical Center 
and other medical service providers to expand and attract health care 
businesses. 

 

140

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 Economic Policy 2.6: Education linkages. Improve and use relationships with 
the Clovis, Fresno, and Sanger Unified School Districts; Willow International 
Community College; and other current and future educational institutions and 
organizations to enhance the education, skills, and qualifications of the 
regional and local labor force. 

 

 Economic Goal 6: Institutional capacity to achieve economic development 
goals and realize the community’s vision. 

 

 Economic Policy 6.7: Long-term thinking. The City may prioritize investments 
in economic development, which may generate long-term returns, versus 
investments in shorter-term projects and programs. 
 

2. The proposed amendment would not be detrimental to the public interest, health, 
safety, convenience, or general welfare of the City. 

 
The Project was determined not to be detrimental to the public interest, health, 
safety, convenience, or general welfare of the City. During review of the Project, 
agencies and City departments had the opportunity to review the Project to ensure 
consistency with their requirements.  

 
3. If applicable, the parcel is physically suitable (including absence of physical 

constraints, access, and compatibility with adjoining land uses, and provision of 
utilities) for the requested/anticipated project. 

 
Because this finding applies to physical suitability of a parcel, this finding is not 
applicable to the proposed Project. 

  
4. There is a compelling reason for the amendment. 
 

The Project will correct inconsistencies between the aforementioned documents 
and bring the City’s R-T Park into alignment with the goals of the Clovis City 
Council. 

 
Ordinance Amendment Findings and Analysis 
The following are findings required to approve an ordinance amendment. Some of these findings 
overlap with those detailed in the General Plan Amendment Findings and Analysis section and 
will reference the information provided therein: 

 
1. The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, policies, and actions of the 

General Plan. 
 

The proposed modifications are consistent with the goals, policies, and actions of 
the General Plan. Refer to General Plan Amendment Finding and Analysis #1. 

 

141

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



2. The proposed amendment would not be detrimental to the public interest, health, 
safety, convenience, or general welfare of the City. 

 
Refer to General Plan Amendment Finding and Analysis #2.  

 
3. The proposed amendment is internally consistent with other applicable provisions 

of this Development Code. 
 

The proposed amendments outline specific development standards for campus-
affiliated housing, an ancillary use to the CHSU campus. No conflicts with any other 
provision of the Development Code have been identified. 

 
Rezone Findings and Analysis 
The subsequent findings are necessary to approve a rezone amendment. It is essential to note 
that these findings overlap with those detailed in the preceding General Plan Amendment 
Findings and Analysis section and will reference the information provided therein:  

 
1. The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, policies, and actions of the 

General Plan. 
 

The proposed modifications are consistent with the goals, policies, and actions of 
the General Plan. Refer to General Plan Amendment Finding and Analysis #1.  

 
2. The proposed amendment would not be detrimental to the public interest, health, 

safety, convenience, or general welfare of the City. 
 

Refer to General Plan Amendment Finding and Analysis #2.  
 
3. The parcel is physically suitable (including absence of physical constraints, access, 

and compatibility with adjoining land uses, and provision of utilities) for the 
requested/anticipated project. 

 
Refer to General Plan Amendment Finding and Analysis #3.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The proposed amendments were prepared by Staff and no fiscal impact would occur. The 
recommended amendments are expected to encourage and facilitate further development within 
the R-T Park, which would have an overall positive fiscal impact. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
At its January 4, 2021, meeting, Clovis City Council initiated the R-T Park amendments to both 
the General Plan and Development Code. Staff has incorporated the necessary changes to 
remove the inconsistencies that created uncertainty as to what development is intended to occur 
within the R-T Park area and what standards should be applied. The proposed Project will 
remove those conflicts and inconsistencies relative to the R-T Park and allow development to 
move forward more efficiently. 

142

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The second reading and adoption of the proposed ordinances will occur at the September 3, 
2024, City Council meeting or as soon thereafter as possible. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmember Basgall is employed by the CHSU, which has a MOU with the City that 
addresses various issues with the CHSU campus development including the potential 
development of campus-affiliated housing. The decision on this item will impact the MOU and 
the planned development of the CHSU campus.    
 
Prepared by: McKencie Perez, Senior Planner 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager  JH   

143

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Attachment 1 
 

RESOLUTION 24-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 2021-007 AS PART OF THE THIRD 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT CYCLE OF 2024, AMENDING THE 2014 CLOVIS 
GENERAL PLAN LAND USE ELEMENT TO CORRECT THE BOUNDARY OF THE 

RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGY PARK, TO LIST CAMPUS-AFFILIATED HOUSING AS 
AN ANCILLARY USE WITHIN THE RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGY PARK, AND TO 

IDENTIFY ADDITIONAL ZONE DISTRICTS AS BEING CONSISTENT WITH THE MIXED 
USE/BUSINESS CAMPUS LAND USE DESIGNATION 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Clovis, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (“City”), initiated an 
application for General Plan Amendment (“GPA”) 2021-007 to amend the 2014 General Plan 
Land Use Element to correct the Research and Technology (“R-T”) Park boundary in Focus 
Area 6, to list campus-affiliated housing as an ancillary use within the R-T Park, and to identify 
additional zone districts as being consistent zoning with the Mixed Use/Business Campus (MU-
BC) land use designation (“Project”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the initiation of the Project was approved by the Clovis City Council on 
January 4, 2021, to correct inconsistencies between the General Plan and the City’s 
Development Code and to allow development consistent with the R-T Park Zone District within 
the area planned for the City’s R-T Park; and 
 

WHEREAS, GPA2021-007 proposes to amend Table LU-2, Table LU-3, Table LU-4 and 
Figure LU-4 of the General Plan Land Use Element; and 

 
WHEREAS, GPA2021-007 constitutes the Third General Plan Amendment Cycle of 2024; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, buildout of the R-T Park was evaluated through two (2) separate 
environmental impact reports (“EIR”) certified by the City in 1999 and 2009 for the R-T Park, in 
conjunction with adoption of the Clovis General Plan and Development Code Update EIR (State 
Clearing House No. 2012061069); and 

 
WHEREAS, proposed GPA2021-007 is exempt from further environmental review under 

the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to a Finding of Consistency with 
the City’s General Plan in accordance with section 15183 of the CEQA Guidelines; and 

 
WHEREAS, at its June 27, 2024, meeting, the Clovis Planning Commission conducted a 

duly noticed public hearing and considered the Finding of Consistency in conjunction with the 
Project, together with comments received and public comments, and the entire public record 
and approved a resolution recommending that the City Council approve GPA2021-007; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission’s recommendation was forwarded to the City 

Council for the Council’s consideration; and 

144

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



WHEREAS, the City published a notice of the public hearing for GPA2021-007 in The 
Business Journal on August 2, 2024, mailed public notices to property owners within 800 feet 
of the Project on August 2, 2024, more than ten (10) days prior to the City Council hearing, and 
otherwise posted notice of the public hearing in accordance with applicable law; and  

 
WHEREAS, a duly noticed City Council public hearing was held on August 19, 2024; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered the Finding of Consistency in conjunction with the 

Project, together with comments received and public comments, and the entire public record; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has had an opportunity to review and consider the entire 

administrative record relating to the Project, which is on file with the City’s Department of 
Planning and Development Services, and reviewed and considered those portions of the 
administrative record determined to be necessary to make an informed decision, including, but 
not necessarily limited to, the staff report, the written materials submitted with the request, and 
the verbal and written testimony and other evidence presented during the public hearing 
(“Administrative Record”). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BASED UPON THE ENTIRE RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, 

THE CITY COUNCIL RESOLVES AND FINDS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. In accordance with section 15183 of the CEQA Guidelines, the proposed GPA2021-007 
is exempt from further environmental review under CEQA pursuant to a Finding of 
Consistency with the City’s General Plan. 

 
2. The Project satisfies the required findings for approval of a general plan amendment, as 

follows: 
 

a. GPA2021-007 is internally consistent with the goals, policies, and actions of the 
General Plan. 
 

b. GPA2021-007 would not be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, 
convenience, or general welfare of the City. 

 
c. There is a compelling reason for the amendment, as the proposal corrects 

inconsistencies between the General Plan and Development Code and brings the 
City’s Research and Technology Park into alignment with the goals of the Clovis City 
Council.  

 
3. GPA2021-007, as outlined in Attachment A, is hereby approved. 

 
4. GPA2021-007 is hereby approved as the Third General Plan Amendment Cycle of 2024. 

 

145

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 
 

5. The basis for the findings is detailed in the August 19, 2024, staff report, which is hereby 
incorporated by reference, the entire Administrative Record, as well as the evidence and 
comments presented during the public hearing.  

 
*   *  *  *    * 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on August 19, 2024, by the following vote, to wit: 
 

AYES:    

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 
 

 ______________________________  ______________________________ 
       Mayor          City Clerk 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Attachment A 

146

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



General Plan Changes 
 

 
SECTION 1: GP CHANGE #1:  LAND USE ELEMENT – TABLE LU-2 

Amend the Land Use Designations legend to reflect a modified Description of Typical Uses 
for the Mixed Use/Business Campus land use designation. 
 
Land Use Designation and  
Density / Intensity Range  

Description of Typical Uses  

Mixed Use/Business Campus (MU-
BC) 
Max FAR 4.0 
15.1–25.0 du/ac 

Higher intensity mix of employment generating businesses drawing from 
land uses permitted in the Office and Industrial designations. Live/work is 
also permitted. Commercial uses are generally prohibited except as uses 
clearly ancillary to the employment-generating office and industrial uses. 
Educational and Residential uses ancillary to a school, specialized 
education, or training facility are permitted, including campus-affiliated 
housing. 

 
 

SECTION 2: GP CHANGE #2: LAND USE ELEMENT - TABLE LU-3 

Amend the General Plan and Zoning Consistency legend to reflect a modified Zoning District 
for the Mixed Use/Business Campus land use designation.  
 

General Plan Land Use 

Designation  
Zoning District  

Mixed Use/Business Campus 
(MU-BC) 

Administrative/Professional Office (C-P) 
All industrial districts  
Urban Center (U-C) 
Planned Commercial Center (P-C-C) 
Public Facilities (P-F) 

 
 

SECTION 3: GP CHANGE #3: LAND USE ELEMENT - TABLE LU-4 

Amend the Mixed-Use Focus Areas and Specific Plans legend to reflect modifications to Focus 
Area 6.  
 

Area Primary Land Uses Additional Uses Allowed Design Features and Other Direction 

6 
Research and 
Technology Business 
Park | Phase 3 

- Live/Work  
- Existing residential uses 
- Campus-affiliated Housing 
(up to 25 du/ac)  

- Existing residential uses as of 2014 shall 
continue to be permitted uses. Live/work uses are 
permitted south of Nees Avenue on Locan 
Avenue. Residential uses ancillary to a school, 
specialized education, or training facility are 

147

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 
 

Area Primary Land Uses Additional Uses Allowed Design Features and Other Direction 

permitted for campus-affiliated housing. No other 
new residential is permitted.  

 
 

SECTION 4: GP CHANGE #4: LAND USE ELEMENT – FIGURE LU-4 

Amend the Focus Area and Specific Plans figure to reflect the correct boundary for Focus Area 
6.  
 

 
 
 

148

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Attachment 2 
 

ORDINANCE 24-___ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS AMENDING 
CHAPTERS 9.14, 9.18 AND 9.120 OF TITLE 9 [DEVELOPMENT CODE] OF THE CLOVIS 

MUNICIPAL CODE TO MODIFY THE MIXED USE/BUSINESS CAMPUS LAND USE 
DESIGNATION TO INCLUDE CAMPUS-AFFILIATED HOUSING USES IN THE R-T ZONE 

DISTRICT, ADD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND ESTABLISH A R-T OVERLAY ZONE 
DISTRICT 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s current Development Code, located under Title 9 of the Clovis 
Municipal Code (“Development Code”), was adopted by the City Council on October 8, 2014 
and has been amended from time to time pursuant to procedures and criteria included in 
Chapter 9.86 of the Development Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Clovis, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA, 93612 (“City”), initiated an 

application for Ordinance Amendment (“OA”) 2021-004 to amend the Development Code to 
correct inconsistencies between the General Plan and Development Code and to confirm the 
allowance for campus-affiliated housing in the R-T Park (“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the OA2021-004 proposes to amend Sections 9.14.010, 9.14.020, 9.14.030 

and 9.120.020 of the Development Code and add Section 9.18.060 to the Development Code; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, buildout of the R-T Park was evaluated through two (2) separate 

environmental impact reports (“EIR”) certified by the City in 1999 and 2009, in conjunction with 
adoption of the Clovis General Plan and Development Code Update EIR (State Clearing House 
No. 2012061069); and 

 
WHEREAS, proposed OA2021-004 is exempt from further environmental review under 

the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to a Finding of Consistency with 
the City’s General Plan in accordance with section 15183 of the CEQA Guidelines; and  
 

WHEREAS, at its June 27, 2024 meeting, the Clovis Planning Commission conducted 
a duly noticed public hearing and considered the Finding of Consistency and proposed 
OA2021-004, and thereafter voted and adopted a resolution recommending that the City 
Council approve OA2021-004; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission’s recommendation was forwarded to the City 

Council for the Council’s consideration; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City published a notice of the public hearing for OA2021-004 in the in 

The Business Journal on August 2, 2024, mailed public notices to property owners within 800 
feet of the Project on August 2, 2024, more than ten (10) days prior to the City Council hearing, 
and otherwise posted notice of the public hearing in accordance with applicable law; and  

 
WHEREAS, a duly noticed City Council public hearing was held on August 19, 2024; 

and  

149

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



WHEREAS, the City Council considered the Finding of Consistency in conjunction with 
the Project, together with comments received and public comments, and the entire public 
record; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has had an opportunity to review and consider the entire 
administrative record relating to the Project, which is on file with the City’s Department of 
Planning and Development Services, and reviewed and considered those portions of the 
administrative record determined to be necessary to make an informed decision, including, but 
not necessarily limited to, the staff report, the written materials submitted with the request, and 
the verbal and written testimony and other evidence presented during the public hearing 
(“Administrative Record”). 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BASED UPON THE ENTIRE RECORD OF THE 
PROCEEDINGS, THE CITY COUNCIL FINDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. In accordance with section 15183 of the CEQA Guidelines, the proposed OA2021-004 
is exempt from further environmental review under CEQA pursuant to a Finding of 
Consistency with the City’s General Plan. 

 
2. The Project satisfies the required findings for approval of an ordinance amendment, as 

follows: 
 

a. OA2021-004 is internally consistent with the goals, policies, and actions of the 
General Plan. 
 

b. OA2021-004 would not be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, 
convenience, or general welfare of the City. 

 
c. There is a compelling reason for the amendment. OA2021-004’s modifications correct 

inconsistencies between the General Plan and Development Code and outline 
specific development standards for campus-affiliated housing, an ancillary use to the 
California Health Sciences University campus. No conflicts with any other provision 
of the Development Code have been identified.  

 
The City Council of the City of Clovis does ordain as follows: 
 
Section 1 – Amendment to Section 9.14.010, subdivision(B) 5: 
 

5.   R-T (Research and Technology/Business Park) District.  The R-T District is applied to 
areas appropriate for research- and technology-based land uses, within a business campus 
setting, that will ensure positive future growth in employment within the City; generate 
revenue to the City and higher than average wages or payroll; and ensure compatibility with 
local infrastructure, adjacent land uses, and natural resources. The R-T District is consistent 
with the Industrial and Mixed Use/Business Campus land use designations of the General 
Plan and the Business Campus designation of Herndon Shepherd Specific Plan. 
Development within the R-T District requires compliance with the R-T Park Architectural 
Guidelines. 

 
 
 
Section 2 – Amendments to Section 9.14.020 (Table 2-6 & footnotes) 

150

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

 

 

Land Use (1)(2)(3)(5) Permit Requirement by District 

  C-M M-P M-1 M-2 R-T 
See 

Section 

Education, Public Assembly, and Recreation 

Schools, Specialized 
Education, and Training, and 
Campus-affiliated Housing 

A(6) A(6) A(6) A(6) A(6) 9.77 

 
Notes:  
(6) Campus-affiliated Housing is only permitted in the R-T District when built in conjunction 
or ancillary to a permitted school, specialized education, or training facility, and may be 
subject to other requirements by the City to establish and maintain campus affiliation. 
Residential uses are required to be processed in conformance with Chapter 77 of this 
Code. 

 
 
Section 3 – Amendments to Section 9.14.030 (Table 2-7 & footnotes) 
 

TABLE 2-7 
INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
REQUIREMENTS BY INDIVIDUAL ZONING DISTRICT (Continued) 

Development Feature R-T (11) 
(Commercial Component) 

Minimum Parcel Size 6,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Parcel Width 60 ft. (minimum average) 

Minimum Corner 
Parcel Width 

100 ft. (minimum average) 

Minimum Reverse 
Corner Parcel Width 

100 ft. (minimum average) 

Minimum Parcel Depth 100 ft. (minimum average) 

Minimum Structure 
Size (gross floor area) 

None 

 Setbacks Required 

Front  40 ft. Structures 
30 ft. Parking (10) 

Side (each) 10 ft. 

Street side 40 ft. Structures 
30 ft. Parking (10) 

Rear  15 ft. 

Maximum Parcel 
Coverage  

33% 

151

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Development Feature R-T (11) 
(Commercial Component) 

Minimum Parcel Size 6,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Distance 
Between Structures on 
the Same Parcel 

 
None 

Main Structure - 
Maximum Height 

35 ft. (12)(13) 

Fences/Walls/Hedges See Section 9.24.060 (Fences, 
Hedges and Walls) 

Off-Street Parking See Chapter 32 of this title (Parking 
and Loading Standards) 

Satellite Antennas See Chapter 42 of this title 
(Wireless Telecommunication 
Facilities) 

 
Notes:  
(11) Specific development standards may be have been established with the adoption of 

the R-T District for a site. Refer to the specific zoning for the site. 

 
TABLE 2-7 

INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 
GENERAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

REQUIREMENTS BY INDIVIDUAL ZONING DISTRICT (Continued) 
 

 
Development Feature 

R-T (14)(15) 
(Campus-affiliated 
Housing – Single-

Family Component) 

R-T (14)(15)(16) 
(Campus-affiliated 
Housing – Multi-

Family Component) 

Minimum Parcel Size 4,500 sq. ft.  8,500 sq. ft. 

Minimum Parcel Width 50 ft.  60 ft. 

Minimum Corner Parcel Width 50 ft. 65 ft.  

Minimum Reverse Corner Parcel 
Width 

50 ft. 70 ft. 

Minimum Parcel Depth 90 ft.  120 ft. 

Minimum (Gross) Density ----- ----- 

Maximum (Gross) Density ------ 25 DU/acre 

Setbacks Required (16)  

 
Front  

15 ft. 
 (20 ft. min. to garage, 
measured from back of 

sidewalk) 

15 ft.  

Side (each) 5 ft.  5 ft. (15 ft. if abutting 
residential lot) 

152

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

 

 
Development Feature 

R-T (14)(15) 
(Campus-affiliated 
Housing – Single-

Family Component) 

R-T (14)(15)(16) 
(Campus-affiliated 
Housing – Multi-

Family Component) 

Minimum Parcel Size 4,500 sq. ft.  8,500 sq. ft. 

 
Street side 

10 ft. 
15 ft. (reverse corner) 

(12)(26) 

10 ft. (18) 

Rear  15 ft.  15 ft. (20 ft. if abutting 
residential lot) 

Building to Building ------ 20 ft. 

Maximum Parcel Coverage  45% 45% 

Main Structure - Maximum Height 35 ft./2-1/2 stories 35 ft./2 stories 

Accessory Structure – Maximum 
height 

See Section 9.40.030 
(Accessory uses and 

structures) 

See Section 9.40.030 
(Accessory uses and 

structures) 

Fences/Walls/Hedges See Section 9.24.060 
(Fences, Hedges and 

Walls) 

See Section 9.24.060 
(Fences, Hedges and 

Walls) 

Off-Street Parking See Chapter 32 of this 
title (Parking and 

Loading Standards) 

See Chapter 32 of this 
title (Parking and 

Loading Standards) 

On-site Open Space  
----- 

260 sq. ft. of private or 
community open 
space per unit 

 

Notes:  
(12) Private garages located in the side yard area shall be set back at least twenty feet 

(20') from the property line on the side street and not less than five feet (5') from the 
rear property line of a reversed corner lot. 

(14) Specific residential development standards have been established in the R-T Park 
Architectural Guidelines and all residential development shall be developed in 
compliance with these design guidelines.  

(15) No additional deviations are permitted unless done through the Planned Development 
Permit or Variance process and approved by City Council. 

(16) Implement Noise Mitigation Measure #8 from the 1999 EIR (Resolution 99-59) 
addressing noise-mitigating setbacks within the R-T Park, which requires a minimum 
distance of approx. 200 feet be maintained between all structures and existing 
residences. A portion of this setback area shall be improved as a greenbelt or park. 
This distance can be decreased only with the submission of an acceptable noise study 
indicating that there will not be any significant acoustical impacts on adjacent land 
uses. The setback to the west property line shall not be less than 50’, regardless of 
the results of a noise study.  

(18) A reverse corner parcel shall have a minimum street side setback of fifteen feet (15'), 
with a minimum of twenty feet (20') to the face of the garage door. 

153

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



(26) A reverse corner lot may process an administrative use permit (AUP) to construct side 
yard fencing at five feet (5') from property line. There shall be a ten-foot (10') corner 
cut off for sight distance visibility. 

 
 
Section 4 – Addition of Section 9.18.060 
 

9.18.060 – R-T (Research and Technology/Business Campus Overlay) District  
 

A. Parcels with the R-T Overlay District are allowed to continue their existing single-family 
residential use in perpetuity.  The continued residential use shall terminate upon 
approval of an entitlement for use under the R-T District and they may not revert back 
to the residential use.  

B. A R-T Overlay District shall be designated on the Zoning Map by the addition of an “R-
T” suffix to the base zoning district designator. 

C. Parcels with the R-T Overlay District are not required to rezone to remove the base 
residential zone district.  

D. Parcels with the R-T Overlay District shall be located within Focus Area 6 and shall have 
a base zone district of R-A, R-1-AH, R-1-7500 or R-1-8500.  

 

 
Section 5 – Amendment to Section 9.120.020 (S) 
 

Schools, – specialized education, and training and campus-affiliated housing. Business, 
professional, secretarial schools, and vocational/trade schools offering specialized trade 
and commercial courses. Includes specialized non-degree-granting schools offering 
subjects including: art, ballet and other dance, drama, driver education, language, and 
music. Also includes seminaries and other facilities exclusively engaged in training for 
religious ministries; and establishments furnishing educational courses by mail. Facilities, 
institutions, and conference centers are included that offer specialized programs in personal 
growth and development (e.g., arts, communications, fitness, environmental awareness, 
and management). Also includes campus-affiliated housing, specifically designed by, or in 
conjunction with a school, specialized education, or training facility for the purpose of 
providing housing to both attendees, staff, and/or instructors of the institution. 

 
 
Section 6 – Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall go into effect and be in full force from and after thirty (30) days after its 
final passage and adoption. 
 
 
APPROVED:   August 19, 2024 
 
 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor           City Clerk 
 
 

154

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

 

* * * * * * * * * * 
 
 
The foregoing Ordinance was introduced and read at a regular meeting of the City Council held 
on August 19, 2024, and was adopted at a regular meeting of said Council held on 
_____________, by the following vote, to wit: 
 

AYES:    

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:    
   

 ___________________________________ 
      City Clerk  
 
 

 

155

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Attachment 3 
 

ORDINANCE 24-___ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS AMENDING AND 
CHANGING THE OFFICIAL ZONE MAP OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH SECTION 9.08.020 OF THE CLOVIS MUNICIPAL CODE FOR REZONE 
APPLICATION 2021-010, TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY 63 PROPERTIES FROM THE 

R-A, R-1-AH, R-1-7500, R-1-8500 AND C-P ZONE DISTRICTS TO THE R-T ZONE 
DISTRICT OR THE R-T OVERLAY ZONE DISTRICT FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED 

WITHIN THE RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGY PARK 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
See Attachment A 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Clovis, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (“City”), initiated an 

application for Rezone (“R”) 2021-010 to correct the inconsistent zoning for sixty-three (63) 
properties within the Research and Technology (“R-T”) Park (“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, R2021-010 proposes to rezone forty-one (41) properties within the R-T 

Park from the R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density), R-1-AH (Single-Family 
Residential Very Low Density), R-1-7500 (Single-Family Residential Low Density – 7,500 
square feet), R-1-8500 (Single-Family Residential Low Density – 8,500 square feet) and C-P 
(Administrative and Professional Office) Zone Districts to the R-T (Research and 
Technology/Business Park) Zone District; and 

 
WHEREAS, R2021-010 proposes to rezone eleven (11) properties within the R-T Park 

from the R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) Zone District to the R-A/R-T 
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park 
Overlay) Zone District; and  

 
WHEREAS, R2021-010 proposes to rezone ten (10) properties within the R-T Park from 

the R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) Zone District to the R-1-AH/R-T 
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park 
Overlay) Zone District; and 

 
WHEREAS, R2021-010 proposes to rezone one (1) property within the R-T Park from 

the R-1-7500 (Single-Family Residential Low Density – 7,500 square feet) Zone District to the 
R-1-7500/R-T (Single-Family Residential Low Density – 7,500 square feet/Research and 
Technology/Business Park Overlay) Zone District; and 

 
WHEREAS, buildout of the R-T Park was evaluated through two (2) separate 

environmental impact reports (“EIR”) certified by the City in 1999 and 2009, in conjunction with 
adoption of the Clovis General Plan and Development Code Update EIR (SCH No. 
2012061069); and 
 

WHEREAS, R2021-010 is exempt from further environmental review under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to a Finding of Consistency with the 
City’s General Plan in accordance with section 15183 of the CEQA Guidelines; and 

 

156

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered the Finding of Consistency in 
conjunction with the Project, together with comments received and public comments, and the 
entire public record; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission voted and recommended that the Council 
approve R2021-010; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission’s recommendation was forwarded to the City 
Council for consideration; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City published a notice of the public hearing in The Business Journal 
on August 2, 2024, mailed public notices to property owners within 800 feet of the Project on 
August 2, 2024, more than ten (10) days prior to the City Council hearing, and otherwise posted 
notice of the public hearing according to applicable law; and 

 
 WHEREAS, a duly noticed City Council public hearing was held on August 19, 2024; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has had an opportunity to review and consider the entire 
administrative record relating to the Project, which is on file with the City’s Department of 
Planning and Development Services, and reviewed and considered those portions of the 
administrative record determined to be necessary to make an informed decision, including, but 
not necessarily limited to, the staff report, the written materials submitted with the request, and 
the verbal and written testimony and other evidence presented during the public hearing 
(“Administrative Record”). 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BASED UPON THE ENTIRE RECORD OF THE 
PROCEEDINGS, THE CITY COUNCIL FINDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. In accordance with section 15183 of the CEQA Guidelines, the proposed R2021-010 is 
exempt from further environmental review under CEQA pursuant to a Finding of 
Consistency with the City’s General Plan. 

 
2. The Project satisfies the required findings for approval of a rezone amendment, as 

follows: 
 

a. R2021-010 is internally consistent with the goals, policies, and actions of the General 
Plan. 
 

b. R2021-010 would not be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, 
convenience, or general welfare of the City. 

 
c. The physical suitability of a parcel is not applicable to the proposed Project given that 

no physical development is proposed.  
 
The City Council of the City of Clovis does ordain as follows: 
 

157

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 
 

 

Section 1 The official map of the city is amended in accordance with Section 9.08.020 and 
Chapter 9.86 of the Clovis Municipal Code by rezoning certain land in the City of Clovis, County 
of Fresno, State of California, to wit: 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 

See the attached Attachment A. 
 
Section 2 This Ordinance shall go into effect and be in full force from and after thirty (30) 
days after its final passage and adoption. 
 
 
APPROVED:   August 19, 2024 
 
 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor           City Clerk 
 

* * * * * * * * * * 
 
The foregoing Ordinance was introduced and read at a regular meeting of the City Council held 
on August 19, 2024, and was adopted at a regular meeting of said Council held on 
_______________, by the following vote, to wit: 
 
 

AYES:    

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:    
   

 ___________________________________ 
      City Clerk  
 
 

  

158

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 
ATTACHMENT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

159

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



0 300 600150
US Feet

No. 7
From R-A to R-A/R-T

No. 6
From R-A to R-A/R-T

No. 5
From R-1-7500 to R-T

No. 4
From R-A to R-A/R-T

No. 3
From R-A to R-A/R-T

No. 1
From R-1-7500
to R-1-7500/R-T

No. 2
From R-A to R-A/R-T

R-1

R-A

R
-A

R-A

R-A

R-T

R-1-7500

R-A

R
-T

R
-1
-7
50
0

N
Fi

lb
er

t
A

ve

N
 A

rm
st

ro
n

g
 A

ve
Decatur Ave

Bedford
Ave

Cromwell
Ave

El Paso Ave

N
 D

o
u

g
la

s 
A

ve

Cromwell Ave

Bedford
Ave

N
Joshua

A
veDecatur Ave

Chennault
Ave

Alluvial Ave

Decatur Ave

El Paso Ave

City of Clovis R-T Park Rezone

Legend
1) From R-1-7500 (Single-Family Residential Low Density) to R-1-7500/R-T
(Single-Family Residential Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

2) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-A/R-T (Single-
Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

3) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-A/R-T (Single-
Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

4) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-A/R-T (Single-
Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

5) From R-1-7500 (Single-Family Residential Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

6) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-A/R-T (Single-
Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

7) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-A/R-T (Single-
Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

City of Clovis Limits

Attachment A
160

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



0 300 600150
US Feet

No. 9
From R-A to R-A/R-T

No. 11
From R-A to R-T No. 12

From R-A to R-A/R-T

No. 10
From R-A to R-A/R-T

No. 8
From R-A to R-A/R-T

No. 13
From R-A to R-A/R-T

R-A

R
-A

R-A

R-A

R
-T

R-1-7500

R
-T

R
-1
-7
50
0

N
 A

rm
st

ro
n

g
 A

ve

N
 D

o
u

g
la

s 
A

ve

Bedford
Ave

Bedford
Ave

Spruce Ave

Birch Ave

Chennault
Ave

Alluvial Ave

City of Clovis R-T Park Rezone

Legend
8) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-A/R-T (Single-
Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

9) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-A/R-T (Single-
Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

10) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-A/R-T (Single-
Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

11) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

12) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-A/R-T (Single-
Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

13) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-A/R-T (Single-
Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

City of Clovis Limits 161

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



0 300 600150
US Feet

No. 14
From R-A to R-T

No. 16
From R-A to R-T

No. 15
From R-A to R-T

R-A
R-A

R-A

R
-T

C-M

M
-1

C-2

R-1-7500

R
-T

R
-1
-7
50
0

C-P

N
 A

rm
st

ro
n

g
 A

ve

CA-168

Sierra

Fwy

CA-168 Sierra
Fwy

Spruce Ave

Birch Ave

Chennault
Ave

Alluvial Ave

CA-168 Sierra Fwy

City of Clovis R-T Park Rezone

Legend
14) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

15) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

16) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

City of Clovis Limits

162

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



0 300 600150
US Feet

No. 19
From R-A to R-T

No. 18
From R-A to R-T

No. 17
From C-P to R-T

No. 20
From R-A to R-T

R
-A

R-A

R
-1

R
-A

R
-1
-7
50
0

R-1
R-1-7500

R-A

C-P

R-T

N
M

agn
olia

A
ve

Nees Ave

Decatur

Ave

N
 M

c 
K

el
vy

 A
ve

Goshen Ave

Fallbrook Ave

N
Joshua

A
ve

Houston Ave

Goshen Ave

N
 C

ar
o

li
n

a 
A

ve

N
 J

o
sh

u
a 

A
ve

N
 T

em
p

er
an

ce
 A

ve

City of Clovis R-T Park Rezone

Legend
17) From C-P (Administrative and Professional Office) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

18) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

19) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

20) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

City of Clovis Limits

163

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



0 200 400100
US Feet

No. 23
From R-A to R-A/R-T

No. 24
From R-A to R-T

No. 22
From R-A to R-T

No. 21
From R-A to R-T

R-A

R-1

R-A

R
-1-A

H

R
-A

C-P

R-T

Goshen Ave

N C
ove

ntry

Ave

N
Ap

pl
eg

at
e

Av
e

N
 T

em
p

er
an

ce
 A

ve

N Coventry Ave

Jo
rd

an
Ave

City of Clovis R-T Park Rezone

Legend
21) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

22) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

23) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-A/R-T (Single-
Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business Park
Overlay) zone district.

24) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

City of Clovis Limits

164

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



0 300 600150
US Feet

No. 31
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 29
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 28
From R-1-AH
to R-1-AH/R-T

No. 30
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 27
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 26
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 25
From R-1-AH

to R-T

R-1-8500

R-1-7500

R-A

R
-1

R

-A

R-1-AH

R
-T

Goshen Ave

N
Coventry

A
ve

Jordan Ave

N
 L

o
ca

n
 A

ve

Nees Ave

City of Clovis R-T Park Rezone

Legend
25) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

26) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

27) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

28) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-1-AH/R-T
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business
Park Overlay) zone district.

29) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

30) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

31) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

City of Clovis Limits

165

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



0 300 600150
US Feet

No. 33
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 32
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 37
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 34
From R-1-AH

to R-T
No. 35

From R-1-AH
to R-T

No. 36
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 39
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 38
From R-1-AH to R-T

County of F
re

sn
o

City
 of C

lovis

R-1

R-A

C-P

R-1-AH

R-A

P-C-C

R
-T

Goshen

Ave

N
C

oven
try

A
ve

CA-168 Sierra
 Fwy

CA-168

Sierra
 Fwy

CA-1
68 Sierra

 Fwy

Tollh
ouse

 Rd

CA-1
68 Sierra

Fwy

N
 L

o
ca

n
 A

ve

Owens Mounta
in

Pkwy

N Medica
l Center

Dr E

N
 L

o
ca

n
 A

ve

City of Clovis R-T Park Rezone

Legend
32) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

33) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

34) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

35) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

36) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

37) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

38) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

39) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

City of Clovis Limits
166

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



0 200 400100
US Feet

No. 56
From R-1-AH

to R-T

No. 55
From R-1-AH
to R-1-AH/R-T

No. 54
From R-1-AH to R-1-AH/R-T

No. 53
From R-1-AH to R-1-AH/R-T

County of F
resn

o
City

 of C
lovis

R-1-AH

N
Lo

ca
n

A
ve

Tollh
ouse

 Rd

CA-1
68 Sierra

 Fwy

N
 L

o
ca

n
 A

ve

City of Clovis R-T Park Rezone

Legend
53) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-1-AH/R-T
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business
Park Overlay) zone district.

54) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-1-AH/R-T
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business
Park Overlay) zone district.

55) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-1-AH/R-T
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business
Park Overlay) zone district.

56) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

City of Clovis Limits

167

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



0 300 600150
US Feet

No. 52
From R-1-AH

 to R-T

No. 51
From R-1-AH

 to R-T

No. 50
From R-1-AH

to R-T

No. 48
From R-1-AH to R-1-AH/R-T

No. 49
From R-1-AH to R-1-AH/R-T

County of F
resn

o
City

 of C
lovis

R-1-8500
R-A

R-1-AH

N
 L

o
ca

n
 A

ve

Tollh
ouse

 Rd

Nees
Ave

CA-1
68 Sierra

 Fwy

City of Clovis R-T Park Rezone

Legend
48) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-1-AH/R-T
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business
Park Overlay) zone district.

49) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-1-AH/R-T
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business
Park Overlay) zone district.

50) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

51) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

52) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

City of Clovis Limits

168

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



0 500 1,000250
US Feet

No. 41
From R-1-AH

 to R-1-AH/R-T

No. 44
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 46
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 40
From R-1-AH
to R-1-AH/R-T

No. 47
From R-1-AH to R-T

No. 45
From R-1-AH

to R-T

No. 43
From R-1-AH to

R-1-AH/R-TNo. 42
From R-1-AH

 to R-1-AH/R-T

County of F
resn

o
City

 of C
lovis

P-C-C

R-1-8500

R-A

R-1-AHR-1
R-1-A

H

R-1-AH

CA-1
68 Sierra

 Fwy

Tollh
ouse

 Rd

Enterprise Ave

N
K

aw
ea

h
A

ve

Kenosha Ave

N
 T

w
in

be
rr

y 
Av

e

KenoshaAve

O
w

en
s

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Pk

w
y

Lexington Ave

Enterprise Ave

N
R

ed
in

g
to

n
A

ve

N
 K

aw
ea

h
 A

ve

N
 L

o
ca

n
 A

ve

Nees Ave

N
B

lackwood Ave

N
 T

ra
ve

rs
e 

A
ve

N
 W

h
it

m
o

re
 A

ve

N
 D

e 
W

o
lf

 A
ve

City of Clovis R-T Park Rezone

Legend
40) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-1-AH/R-T
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business
Park Overlay) zone district.

41) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-1-AH/R-T
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business
Park Overlay) zone district.

42) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-1-AH/R-T
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business
Park Overlay) zone district.

43) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-1-AH/R-T
(Single-Family Residential Very Low Density/Research and Technology/Business
Park Overlay) zone district.

44) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park)

45) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

46) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

47) From R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research
and Technology/Business Park) zone district.

City of Clovis Limits 169

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



0 500 1,000250
US Feet

No. 63
From R-A to R-T

No. 59
From R-A

to R-T

No. 60
From R-A to R-T

No. 58
From R-A / R-1-8500

to R-T

No. 57
From R-A/R-1-8500

to R-T

No. 62
From R-A to R-T

No. 61
From R-A to R-T

City
 of C

lovis

County of F
resn

o

County of F
resn

o
City

 of C
lovis

P-C-C

R
-3

R-1-8500

R-A
R
-1
-A
H

R-1

R-1-AH

Richmond Ave

CA-1
68 Sierra

 Fwy

N
M

os
ai

c
W

a
y N

S
tr

ad
a 

W
ay

Richmond Ave

Quincy Ave

Kenosha Ave

N
 P

am
el

a 
A

ve

N
D

e
W

olf
A

ve

N
E

x
cu

rsio
n

W
ay

N M
a

in
e

A
ve

N
 R

ed
in

g
to

n
 A

ve

N
 T

w
in

be
rr

y 
Av

e

N
W

h
it

ea
sh

A
ve

KenoshaAve

N
 M

ai
n

e
A

ve

N
 S

u
n

d
ia

l
W

ay

Portland Ave

Altintop
Ave

N
 G

ra
yb

ar
k

A
ve

N
T

w
in

b
er

ry
A

ve
N

 T
w

in
b

er
ry

A
ve

Lexington Ave

Owens Mountain Pkwy

N
G

ra
yb

ar
k

A
ve

Enterprise Ave

Journey Way

Elevations Way

Etchings Way

N
B

lackwood Ave

E Nees Ave

Luminary Way

Infusion Way

Muse Way

Tollh
ouse

 Rd

N
 D

e 
W

o
lf

 A
ve N
 S

an
d

er
s 

A
ve

City of Clovis R-T Park Rezone

Legend
57) From R-A/R-1-8500 (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density & Single-
Family Residential Low Density) to R-T (Research and Technology/Business Park)
zone district.

58) From R-A/R-1-8500 (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density & Single-
Family Residential Low Density) to R-T (Research and Technology/Business Park)
zone district.

59) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

60) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

61) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

62) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

63) From R-A (Single-Family Residential Very Low Density) to R-T (Research and
Technology/Business Park) zone district.

City of Clovis Limits
170

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Attachment 4 
 

RESOLUTION 24-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGY 

ARCHITECTURAL GUIDELINES 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Clovis, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (“City”), on January 4, 

2021, initiated an amendment to the Clovis General Plan and Development Code to correct 
inconsistencies between the General Plan and Development Code and to allow for campus-
affiliated housing; and 
 

WHEREAS, to avoid creating inconsistencies between the General Plan, Development 
Code and Research and Technology (“R-T”) Park Architectural Guidelines (“Architectural 
Guidelines”), the City is amending the Architectural Guidelines to be consistent with the 
General Plan and Development Code (“Project”); and 
 

WHEREAS, buildout of the R-T Park was evaluated through two (2) separate 
environmental impact reports (“EIR”) certified by the City in 1999 and 2009, in conjunction with 
adoption of the Clovis General Plan and Development Code Update EIR (State Clearing House 
No. 2012061069); and 

 
WHEREAS, proposed amendment to the Guidelines is exempt from further environmental 

review under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to a Finding of 
Consistency with the City’s General Plan in accordance with section 15183 of the CEQA 
Guidelines; and 

 
WHEREAS, at its June 27, 2024 meeting, the Clovis Planning Commission conducted a 

duly noticed public hearing and considered the Finding of Consistency in conjunction with the 
Project, together with comments received and public comments, and the entire public record 
and approved a resolution recommending that the City Council approve the Architectural 
Guidelines amendment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission’s recommendation was forwarded to the City 

Council for the Council’s consideration; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City published notice of the public hearing for the Project in The Business 
Journal on August 2, 2024, mailed public notices to property owners within 800 feet of the 
Project on August 2, 2024, more than ten (10) days prior to the City Council hearing, and 
otherwise posted notice of the public hearing in accordance with applicable law; and  

 
WHEREAS, a duly noticed City Council public hearing was held on August 19, 2024; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered the Finding of Consistency in conjunction with the 

Project, together with comments received and public comments, and the entire public record; 
and 

171

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



WHEREAS, the City Council has had an opportunity to review and consider the entire 
administrative record relating to the Project, which is on file with the City’s Department of 
Planning and Development Services, and reviewed and considered those portions of the 
administrative record determined to be necessary to make an informed decision, including, but 
not necessarily limited to, the staff report, the written materials submitted with the request, and 
the verbal and written testimony and other evidence presented during the public hearing 
(“Administrative Record”). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BASED UPON THE ENTIRE RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, 

THE CITY COUNCIL RESOLVES AND FINDS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. In accordance with section 15183 of the CEQA Guidelines, the proposed Project is 
exempt from further environmental review under CEQA pursuant to a Finding of 
Consistency with the City’s General Plan. 

 
2. Architectural Guidelines amendment, as outlined in Attachment A, is hereby approved. 

 
3. The basis for the findings is detailed in the August 19, 2024 staff report, which is hereby 

incorporated by reference, the entire Administrative Record, as well as the evidence and 
comments presented during the public hearing.  

 
 

*   *  *  *    * 
 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Clovis held on August 19, 2024, by the following vote, to wit: 
 

AYES:    

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 
 

 ______________________________  ______________________________ 
       Mayor          City Clerk 

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

172

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 
 

Attachment A 
General Plan Changes 

 
SECTION 1: GUIDELINES CHANGE #1:  MODIFY SECTION 8  

The existing Section “8. Design Examples” will become Section “9. Design Examples”. The 
new Section 8 will be as shown below: 
 
8.  Campus-affiliated Housing Development & Design Standards  

 
8.1 Single-Family Housing 

 

DEVELOPMENT FEATURE  

Minimum Parcel Size 4,500 sq. ft.  

Minimum Parcel Width 50 ft.  

Minimum Corner Parcel Width 50 ft. 

Minimum Reverse Corner 
Parcel Width 

 
50 ft. 

Minimum Parcel Depth 90 ft.  

Minimum (Gross) Density  
----- 

Maximum (Gross) Density ----- 

SETBACKS 

Front  15 ft. 
 (20 ft. min. to garage, 
measured from back of 

sidewalk) 

Side (each) 5 ft.  

Street side 10 ft. 

Rear  15 ft. 

OTHER FEATURES  

Maximum Parcel Coverage  45% 

Main Structure - Maximum 
Height 

35 ft./2-1/2 stories 

Accessory Structure – 
Maximum height 

See Section 9.40.030 
(Accessory uses and 

structures) 

Fences/Walls/Hedges See Section 9.24.060 
(Fences, Hedges and Walls) 

Off-Street Parking See Chapter 32 of this title 
(Parking and Loading 
Standards) 

 
 No additional deviations are permitted unless done through the Planned 

Development Permit process and approved by City Council. 

173

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 
8.2 Multi-Family Housing 

 

DEVELOPMENT FEATURE  

Min. Parcel Size 8,500 sq. ft.  

Min. Parcel Width 60 ft. 

Min. Corner Parcel Width 65 ft. 

Min. Reverse Corner Parcel 
Width 

70 ft.  

Min. Parcel Depth 120 ft.  

Minimum (Gross) Density ----- 

Maximum (Gross) Density 25.0 DU/acre 

SETBACKS  

Front  15 ft.  

Side (each) 5 ft. (15 ft. if abutting residential lot) 

Street side 10 ft. 

Rear 15 ft. (20 ft. if abutting residential lot) 

Building to Building 20 ft. 

OTHER FEATURES  

Max. Parcel Coverage 45% 

Max. Height (main structure) 35 ft./2 stories 

Max. Height (accessory 
structures) 

Per CMC 

Fences/Walls/Hedges Per CMC 

Off-Street Parking Per CMC 

On-Site Open Space 260 sq. ft. of private or community open space 
per unit 

 
 No additional deviations are permitted unless done through the variance process and 

approved by City Council. 
 Comply with the footnotes in the Development Code.  
 Implement Noise Mitigation Measure #8 from the 1999 EIR (Resolution 99-59) 

addressing noise-mitigating setbacks within the R-T Park, which requires a minimum 
distance of approx. 200 feet be maintained between all structures and existing 
residences. A portion of this setback area shall be improved as a greenbelt or park. 
This distance can be decreased only with the submission of an acceptable noise 
study indicating that there will not be any significant acoustical impacts on adjacent 
land uses. The setback to the west property line shall not be less than 50’, regardless 
of the results of a noise study.  

 
8.2 Design Standards 

 
 A Residential Site Plan Review (RSPR) for single-family housing will be required to 

be reviewed for compliance with the R-T Park Architectural Guidelines.  The RSPR 
is a separate entitlement from the tentative tract map. 
 

174

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 
 

 A Multi-Family Residential Design Review (MFRDR) for multi-family housing will be 
required to be reviewed for compliance with the R-T Park Architectural Guidelines. 
Multifamily projects that do not meet the objective standards shall be processed 
according to the review and approval requirements for site plan reviews.  

 
 Materials and Colors 

o Both single and multi-family products shall comply with R-T Park Architectural 
Guidelines 1.4.3 and 1.4.4.  

o Emphasis in the proposed single-family components will be placed on use of 
masonry block, stone, and brick to blend with the theme of the broader R-T Park 
area, particularly the California Health Sciences University (CHSU) campus. 

 
 Lighting  

o Lighting in both single and multi-family components shall be uniform 
throughout.  Lighting for streets, both on and offsite, and trails shall be 
enhanced to provide a sense of place while maintaining adequate illumination.  

 
 Building Design 

o Building height shall comply with R-T Park Design Guideline Section 1.3. 
o Roof elements shall comply with R-T Park Design Guideline Section 1.7.  

 The design of roof elements should be considered of equal importance to 
that of the elevations of the building.  

 
 Monumentation 

o All signs shall comply with Chapter 9.34 of the Clovis Municipal Code.  
 

 Landscaping 
o On and offsite landscaping shall be consistent and uniform throughout the 

neighborhoods, including the trail system, modeled on existing landscaping in 
the vicinity, particularly the CHSU campus.  

o All proposed development shall be evaluated by the appropriate design review 
committees and city staff.   

 
 
SECTION 2: GUIDELINES CHANGE #2:  MODIFY SECTION 8 AND CREATE SECTION 9  

The existing Section “8. Design Examples” will become Section “9. Design Examples”. 
 
89. Design Standards 
 
 

175

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Debbie Britz <mdcba@aol.com> 

Sent: Wednesday, January 19, 2022 6:11 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Re:Amendments to the 2014 General Plan 

 

To: Ricky Carperton, Clovis City Council, Planning Commision  
 
 
  As a long time resident of Clovis, 50 years with the last 40 years living at 2474 Nees Ave. It was brought 
to our attention through 
the postcard mailer we received this past Sat. Jan.15 for the City Council meeting to be held Fri. Jan. 21., 
on a matter that would greatly  
affect us. We had heard rumors from RE agents trying to purchase our property , which by the way will 
not be for sale in my lifetime, that  
apartments would be built behind our property. Our property is the complete Northern border of the RT 
Park/ West side of the Enterprise  
Canal. After reading the postcard mailer sent we were horrified that on Jan.4 ,2021 the Clovis City 
Council had moved ahead with looking into amendments/ rezoning of this General Plan. We never 
received any postcard mailer regarding that meeting. Granted we have seen many of those postcard 
mailers during our 40 years from the first meetings of Clovis Community Hospital, Highway 168, the 
conception of the RT Park, rezoning of properties, subdivisions being developed, Nees Ave being 
annexed into the City of Clovis then all our addresses were changed, Nees Ave. widening, etc., with 
many of these Planning Commision and City Council attended by us.   
  We made the decision to build our home at this location knowing that behind us someday there was 
going to be buildings that were to be Research and Technology in nature with mostly weekday hours, 5 
days a week, people working in this area, not 18 acres of Multifamily Housing for hundreds if not 
thousands of people that would be living 24/7 in 3 story buildings directly behind our home and other 
homes on the western border, along with the moving of the Clovis Walking Trail along the back of the 
existing subdivision and our backyard! 
  The area has changed tremendously, if you have lived in the area during the last 10 years. The traffic is 
already horrendous on Temperance , Nees, then you add in hundreds of more cars with the only way to 
enter the landlocked property behind us is off of Temperance and maybe through 1 neighborhood street 
from Armstrong. I haven't even addressed the water or noise or increase to Clovis Unified School District. 
There surely are other properties vacant that would make more sense to house ''students and faculty'' for 
the ''Medical School.'' 
                      Thank you for your consideration- 
                                      Sincerely, Debbie and Martin Britz 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 5 176

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Bob Davis <BobD@DavisCommodities.com> 

Sent: Thursday, January 20, 2022 9:33 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Fwd: R-T Park meeting 

 

 

Sent from Bob Davis' iPhone 

 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Bob Davis <BobD@daviscommodities.com> 

Date: January 20, 2022 at 9:27:58 PM PST 

To: Bob Davis <BobD@daviscommodities.com> 

Subject: Fwd: R-T Park meeting 

  

Sent from Bob Davis' iPhone 

 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Bob Davis <BobD@daviscommodities.com> 

Date: January 20, 2022 at 8:07:36 PM PST 

To: Chris Bauer <Cbauer1983@gmail.com> 

Subject: Fwd: R-T Park meeting 

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/b16aa4f7/S7CCzweSB

E2pGpLRZYxBgQ?u=http://www.rcaperton/@city

ofclovis.com 

Subject: R-T Park meeting 

Ricky, 

    I would like to enter a formal protest to this 

meeting. In particular to the shortness of notice as 

well as the time. Not even a weeks notice for such 

an issue of great consequence to the surrounding 

residential owners seems totally slanted towards the 

Developer. This is a departure from the City of 

Clovis’ general plan for this area. Then slating that 

meeting for a Friday night from 6-7:30 seems to be 

a second protocol discouraging homeowner 

participation. There isn’t even sufficient time to 

gather signatures for a formal rejection of this 

rezoning. 

  The property owners in this area are fully aware 

this is a master move by the Granville organization 

177

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



to gain ground and build 3 story apartments in this 

area. Disguise this any way they wish but there is 

no secret here. This plan has so many flaws but the 

excuse of the Medical School is ridiculous. If the 

City of Clovis is truly interested in representing 

their citizens and not simply the developers, then I 

request allowing an extension for proper response 

from the residents this impacts. 

  Let me add that Gary McDonald’s purchase of the 

Jura estate is well planned as he builds quality 

homes and this is adjacent to Dry Creek 

Elementary. So my statement was probably to 

general in nature, I apologize.  

  This current issue seems to concern one Developer 

in particular who seems to disregard the current 

residents. Please consider being fair to the many 

homeowners this impacts and reschedule this 

meeting allowing proper response.  

 

               Regards,  Bob  

 

Bob Davis, President 

R A Davis Commodities, LLC 

1645 Shaw Ave, Suite 103 

Clovis, CA  93611 

559-490-4500 office 

559-490-7500 fax  

559-647-7586 cell 

bobd@daviscommodities.com 

 

 

Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the 

link will be analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to 

proceed to the destination. If suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

178

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: KD Pfaff <ffafpdk@yahoo.com> 

Sent: Thursday, January 20, 2022 10:04 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Nees/locan 

 

I protest this apartment building.  This will bring down our housing and greatly 

impact our school districts.  Take it elsewhere. 

 

Thank you 

KD Souza 
 

 

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone 

 

 

Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the 

link will be analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to 

proceed to the destination. If suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

179

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/53368232/ANAzGXZNvkGRvbnnALy--A?u=https://overview.mail.yahoo.com/?.src=iOS


From: Christopher Bauer <cbauer1983@gmail.com> 

Sent: Thursday, January 20, 2022 10:45 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External]  

 

Mr. Caperton.  

This letter is in reference to the locan/nees proposed zoning change  

 

The proposed zoning change to allow for a high density apartment complex will negatively affect this 

area in multiple ways. 

 

Our schools- 

Currently, our schools are already highly impacted and trying to expand to keep pace with the current 

child age population. Adding on top of the already overwhelmed schools high density apartments would 

cause increased strain on the schools to provide the high level of education the city of clovis schools are 

known for.  

 

Property value- 

Having an apartment complex built so close to our home will cause a significant decrease in its value. 

Apartment complexes do serve a purpose and help with density issues. However, situating one in the 

middle of an otherwise completely single family home area does not make sense. There are other 

locations that would be far better for apartment complexes that are even closer to the medical school. If 

you want I will point them out on a map.  

 

Traffic- 

With the increased development in the area the traffic increase on Locan is already undeniable and 

quite honestly unacceptable for a two lane road without sidewalks. The city of clovis not requiring de 

Young to finish off the sidewalk was a huge error. Every morning when I see school kids walking on a dirt 

shoulder to catch the bus I cringe. Adding on top of that a high density apartment complex and a 

proposed round about at alluvial and locan, it would only get busier.  

 

Lack of green space- 

By developing an apartment, we would be losing valuable greenspace. Not only is greenspace nicer to 

look at then an apartment complex, but they offer many heath benefits as well.  

 

Clerical issues- 

As currently zoned, this area is zoned low density single family homes. To change the plan to make room 

for an apartment complex doesn’t seem fair to the residences in this area.  

Additionally, to have a meeting via zoom on a Friday from 6-7:30 is ridiculous. In addition to this strange 

start time, the post cards regarding the meeting were only delivered on Saturday. This does not allow 

much time to get the word out to the affected residents. And time is needed in this instance as some of 

the owners in the area did not even receive a post card.  

 

Thank you for taking the time to read this email. 

 

Thanks, Chris  

180

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Christopher Bauer <cbauer1983@gmail.com> 

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 9:22 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: Re: [External] 

 

Mr. Caperton, 

That is all very reasonable and I appreciate you taking the time to reply. As for the meeting 

tonight, we live at 2879 Enterprise Ave and never received the post card. Seeing as we are 

directly adjacent to the vacant land in question, we should have been notified. Also, this meeting 

is not listed on the city of clovis website or the planning commission website. Therefore, the 

amount of residents speaking tonight should not be taken into consideration since proper 

notification was not given. And to say our house was an error/outlier is not correct, because our 

two neighbors next to us on our side of the street didn’t receive the post card either.   

Thanks, Chris  

 

 

On Jan 21, 2022, at 8:29 AM, Ricky Caperton <rcaperton@ci.clovis.ca.us> wrote: 

Hi Chris, 

To clarify, the new meeting will not be on Feb. 14th, but sometime during that 

week (still determining the exact day, which I will know later today). Also, 

tonight's meeting will not be cancelled per se, and for those that are on tonight we 

will run through the presentation - but we will give the option to folks calling in 

tonight to either stay on for tonight's meeting or they are welcome to join the 

February date. Hope that clarifies. We wanted to be mindful to those that may 

have already planned to call in tonight.  

 

 

 

Ricky Caperton, AICP | Deputy City Planner 

City of Clovis | Planning Division 

p. 559.324.2347 | m. 559.593.5176 

rcaperton@cityofclovis.com 

 

 

 

-----Original Message----- 

From: Christopher Bauer [mailto:cbauer1983@gmail.com]  

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 8:26 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton <rcaperton@ci.clovis.ca.us> 

Subject: Re: [External] 

 

Mr. Caperton, 

I appreciate the extra time granted for the meeting. Does this mean that todays 

meeting has been cancelled? Or the February 14th meeting will be in addition to 

181

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



the one tonight? Thanks in advance.  

 

Thanks, Chris  

 

 

On Jan 21, 2022, at 7:48 AM, Ricky Caperton 

<rcaperton@ci.clovis.ca.us> wrote: 

 

Good morning Chris, I am in receipt of your letter. We are in the 

process of scheduling another meeting for the week of February 

14th to allow another opportunity to comment with greater notice 

and that will not be on a Friday. I will follow up today when that is 

scheduled. 

 

 

 

Ricky Caperton, AICP | Deputy City Planner City of Clovis | 

Planning  

Division p. 559.324.2347 | m. 559.593.5176 

rcaperton@cityofclovis.com 

 

 

-----Original Message----- 

From: Christopher Bauer [mailto:cbauer1983@gmail.com] 

Sent: Thursday, January 20, 2022 10:45 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton <rcaperton@ci.clovis.ca.us> 

Subject: [External] 

 

Mr. Caperton. 

This letter is in reference to the locan/nees proposed zoning change 

 

The proposed zoning change to allow for a high density apartment 

complex will negatively affect this area in multiple ways. 

 

Our schools- 

Currently, our schools are already highly impacted and trying to 

expand to keep pace with the current child age population. Adding 

on top of the already overwhelmed schools high density 

182

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



apartments would cause increased strain on the schools to provide 

the high level of education the city of clovis schools are known for. 

 

Property value- 

Having an apartment complex built so close to our home will cause 

a significant decrease in its value. Apartment complexes do serve a 

purpose and help with density issues. However, situating one in the 

middle of an otherwise completely single family home area does 

not make sense. There are other locations that would be far better 

for apartment complexes that are even closer to the medical school. 

If you want I will point them out on a map. 

 

Traffic- 

With the increased development in the area the traffic increase on 

Locan is already undeniable and quite honestly unacceptable for a 

two lane road without sidewalks. The city of clovis not requiring 

de Young to finish off the sidewalk was a huge error. Every 

morning when I see school kids walking on a dirt shoulder to catch 

the bus I cringe. Adding on top of that a high density apartment 

complex and a proposed round about at alluvial and locan, it would 

only get busier. 

 

Lack of green space- 

By developing an apartment, we would be losing valuable 

greenspace. Not only is greenspace nicer to look at then an 

apartment complex, but they offer many heath benefits as well. 

 

Clerical issues- 

As currently zoned, this area is zoned low density single family 

homes. To change the plan to make room for an apartment 

complex doesn’t seem fair to the residences in this area. 

Additionally, to have a meeting via zoom on a Friday from 6-7:30 

is ridiculous. In addition to this strange start time, the post cards 

regarding the meeting were only delivered on Saturday. This does 

not allow much time to get the word out to the affected residents. 

And time is needed in this instance as some of the owners in the 

area did not even receive a post card. 

 

Thank you for taking the time to read this email. 

 

183

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Thanks, Chris 

This e-mail may contain confidential and privileged material for 

the sole use of the intended recipient. Any review, use, distribution 

or disclosure by others is strictly prohibited. If you are not the 

intended recipient (or authorized to receive for the recipient), 

please contact the sender by reply e-mail and delete all copies of 

this message. 

184

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Katherine A Hickman <katherineh@mail.fresnostate.edu> 

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 8:12 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] General Plan Amendment Rezone 

 

I live on Enterprise Avenue and have for 39 years.  I have been advised by neighbors 

that tonight, January 21,  there is a virtual meeting that ultimately allows for 

building on Nees Avenue for "student housing".  As you and Assimi are very aware 

this will back up to properties on Enterprise Avenue.  I can't believe this is happening 

again in Clovis.  If people in this area knew what you were doing, they would all 

object.  How does one get noticed for these actions? I did not.   When DeYoung came 

through and destroyed the area right behind us, we were not noticed nor were the next 

door neighbors even though it backed up to our properties.  And of course, very 

developer friendly Clovis gave the go ahead.  We vigorously object to this action. 
 

If you have ever been at Shepherd and Willow Avenues you will note, because you 

cannot miss, the most un-aesthetically pleasing buildings in the county.  They are 

straight out of east coast slums.  Three stories of urban sprawl.   I am sure Assemi 

with his money and power would have us believe that this is a good thing for a 

residential neighborhood.  It is a horrible idea and a disruption beyond belief for 

residential neighborhood residents.  Traffic congestion,  noise, and effect on Dry 

Creek School at a minimum are impacted. Since you are the planners and I am the 

person whose quality of life is going to be affected, please answer my concerns or 

move them to the council level 

• What happens to walkability in the neighborhood...you can't walk on 

Logan Avenue now as it has become too dangerous 

• How are you protecting what is left of our open space...Deyoung 

finished off the open space behind me 

• How much traffic will be generated and what will be done to reduce the 

increasing congestion on Nees and why increase traffic in a 

neighborhood? 

• Are you aware of the social, crime and noise issues associated with 

"student housing" 

• Where is the informed and concerned leadership in the City of Clovis 

As a professor at a university I am well aware of the issues of 'student housing'.  Ask 

university police what the issues are and please do not attempt to hide behind ..."well 

they are medical students".  Have you ever driven by the old Valley Medical Center 

on Cedar Avenue in Fresno?  The "student housing" across the street was a 

185

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



constant  source of problems and disruption as the Fresno Police Department can 

attest...the human factor exists in every group of students.   
 

Again, if the City of Clovis has done any planning at all, they will recognize the 

impact of the development of student housing on Nees Avenue, the effect on 

increased traffic congestion, the increase in social problems and the devaluation of the 

properties behind the development.  We do not support the rezoning of the area. 
 

Please consider our strenuous objections.  If there were an in-person meeting and 

there should be, I would voice my objection.  Not sure if this action is related to the 

meeting at Dry Creek School in 2019, but surely the City noted at that time that 

neighbors are opposed. 
 

Dr. Katherine Hickman 

2939 Enterprise 

Clovis, Ca.  93619 

 

186

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Ryan Davis <rydav21@gmail.com> 

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 9:27 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Cc: Danielle Davis 

Subject: [External] Granville Apartments on Nees? 

 

Hello Mr. Caperton,  

 

Just last night I heard from fellow concerned neighbors about a proposal to rezone a parcel on 

Nees, between Temperance and Locan, as high density? And almost no notice was given to the 

surrounding community that this would impact? I'm hoping they are mistaken and this is much 

ado about nothing, because it makes no logical sense to insert apartments into 1 parcel of this 

rural area.   

 

Dry Creek Elementary is the most impacted school in the entirety of Clovis Unified, and that 

particular section of Nees is already a terrible accident waiting to happen with many things 

wrong with it.   

 

Countless other reasons I hope will be considered. 

 

Thank you,  

Ryan and Danielle Davis 

559-575-3843 

187

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Stefanie Villanueva <stefanievillanueva@icloud.com> 

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 9:31 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Protest for high density change 

 

 Hello, 

My family lives on Portland Ave and we are very close to area in question. We formally protest 

the change from low density to high density for apartments to be built. We love our home and 

our neighborhood and do not think this change would be beneficial to our community. I am also 

upset that we were not properly notified about this huge change being proposed.  

Thank you, 

Stefanie Villanueva  

188

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Bruce J. Berger <bruceb@bjbergerlaw.com> 

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 9:46 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] January 21 informational meeting 

 

Importance: High 

 

Mr. Caperton: 
 
My wife and I live on Enterprise Avenue (just west of Locan). 
 
I’ve heard this morning that the informational meeting scheduled for this evening regarding 
plans for student and faculty housing has been rescheduled for February 14; can you please 
confirm or otherwise set me straight on that? 
 
Also, we’ve heard rumors that Darius Assemi has plans to develop a 3-story apartment complex 
on the north side of Nees between Locan and Temperance; if this is true, we have concerns, in 
that such a development would abut the southwest corner of our property, and would threaten to 
cast shade on our ground-mounted solar panels (which, by the way, have been there for 
approximately 14 years). Moreover, such a complex presents a threat to our overall privacy, in 
that multiple story units would have a direct view into our back yard.  Can you please update us 
on Mr. Assemi’s plans, specifically for the north side of Nees? 
 
Much appreciated, 
 
BJB 
 
Bruce J. Berger 
Bruce J. Berger Law Firm, Inc. 
2147 Herndon Avenue 
Suite 103 
Clovis, California 93611 
Voice: (559) 326-7914 
FAX:   (559) 533-0428 
 
Orlando Office – By Appointment Only 
390 North Orange Avenue 
Suite 2300 
Orlando, Florida 32801 
Voice: (407) 459-8675 
FAX:   (407) 730-3584 
 

 

 

============================================  
CONFIDENTIALITY/IRC CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE:  Any tax advice contained in this communication (including any attachments) is 
neither intended nor written to be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose of (i) avoiding tax-related penalties under federal, state 
or local tax law or (ii) promoting marketing or recommending to another party any transaction or matter addressed herein. E-mail 
may contain confidential information that is legally privileged. Do not read this e-mail if you are not the intended recipient.  This e-
mail transmission, and any documents, files or previous e-mail messages attached to it may contain confidential and proprietary 
information that is legally privileged.  If you are not the intended recipient, or a person responsible for delivering it to the intended 
recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or use of any of the information contained in or attached 

189

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



to this transmission is STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  If you have received this transmission in error, please immediately notify us by 
forwarding this to bruceb@bjbergerlaw.com or by telephone at (559) 326-7914, and destroy the original transmission and its 
attachments without reading or saving in any manner.  Thank you. 
 

190

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Eric Benson <cgebenson@yahoo.com> 

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 11:40 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Cc: Natalie Benson 

Subject: [External] R-T Park Area Comments 

 

Hello, 
 
I received a postcard requesting comments for the R-T park boundary and the housing 
for the CHSU campus.  I have 2 children at Dry Creek elementary school and their 
classes are already at capacity.  This overcrowding reduces their ability to learn and 
receive individualized attention.  Furthermore, the overcrowded classrooms are a 
perfect environment for disease transmission like COVID-19 or other variants that the 
future holds. 
 
This zoning plan is the "foot in the door" to put more houses and more density in the 
area, and new home owners / developers will flood the existing schools and exacerbate 
an already bad situation.  I believe that ANY new development should include funding 
(paid for exclusively by new home owners and developers) for new schools. 
 
Furthermore, the City of Clovis planning department and developers have demonstrated 
with ALL new construction in the past 5 years that there is no value on trees.  Lot sizes 
are made as small as possible to fit as big a house as possible on it with no allowance 
for trees.  This urbanization makes the areas even hotter as all the hardscape traps 
warmth and radiates it back up in the evenings.  Trees have value, they give animals a 
home and give free shade to everyone.  They make cities cooler and nicer and reduce 
energy consumption - but they need room to grow - and when you zone a 3000 sq ft 
house to occupy a 4000 sq ft lot - the result doesn't just effect one house - it results in 
there being no trees in the ENTIRE subdivision.  I encourage you to drive around any 
new neighborhood - Houses 8 feet from the sidewalk and 8 feet between adjacent roofs 
- where are the trees going to grow?  The result is no trees above the roof-line for acre 
after acre.  Please reverse this atrocious policy and set minimum lot sizes that have 
room for yards and mature trees. 
 
Respectfully, 
  
Eric Benson 
(562) 381-5275 

191

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: David Fujihara <dfujihara@chsu.edu> 

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 1:45 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Granville 

 

Mr. Caperton,, 

 

Last night I became aware of a development coming on Nees between Locan and Temperance. I wanted 

to formally voice my concern as a home owner in the area. I am profoundly disturbed about the lack of 

infrastructure in the area for such a marked increase in population. Has this been taken into 

consideration? Are there plans to fully develop the side walks to keep pedestrians safe? I live off of 

Quincy Ave at 1430 N Redington Ave and I can assure you there is already a large amount of traffic 

speeding through my neighborhood. There is a large amount of children that use the walking path near 

my house and locan. I have seen many close calls of cars almost colliding with children in the area. If 

there is no further development of the land prior to a population increase I assure you it is just a matter 

of time before a child is struck by a vehicle.  

 

I would strongly oppose any such development in the area and encourage the city to consider the safety 

of the community before proceeding.  

 

Thank you, 

David and Rachel Fujihara  

192

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Borjas Gym <mrsmonicaborjas@gmail.com> 

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 2:08 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Protest Apartment Development  

 

Hello! 

 

I wanted to go ahead and send a quick email to strongly protest Granville’s desire to shadily get to the 

City of Clovis to redefine the low density residential land to essentially high density for apartments to 

build on. Please do not let this happen. This is so close to my home and something that would decrease 

our home value as well as our neighborhood. It is my understanding that a select few of my neighbors 

received a notification of a meeting tonight. Why wasn’t this sent to everyone in the neighborhood? This 

affects us all.  

 

All the best, 

Monica Borjas  

 

Sent from my iPhone 

193

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Dean Tinnimit <deanster62@yahoo.com> 

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 5:16 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Technology park questions  

 

My main concern is rif raf in parking lots, ever since Owens parkway has been extended there has been 

lots of burn outs and or extra loud music on the roadway. Will there be anything built to prevent such 

activities or keep sound to a minimum? 

 

Also, for those of us whom are not directly on the canal and those with yards that will back up to this 

park/complex can we have a our wood fence replaced with a “brick” or mortar wall to help alleviate car 

noise and or delivery trucks that may be going to this industrial park? If we can have that happen that 

would help some of my concerns to noises that may come from the area.  

 

I realized from the very beginning when I purchased this home 15+ yrs ago that development would 

happen but thought it would be on the south side of the canal but didn’t know it would be on the east 

side of the neighborhood as well so personally my home will have it directly behind and besides me, and 

as I have mentioned before my concern is noise. I noticed when such areas like this are developed that 

the neighborhood shares a mortar wall and I would like that to be part of this as well. I’m all for 

development for I know it’s good for our city, but privacy and especially noise is my main concern and 

hopefully that could be addressed with a solid wall to help prevent noise for those of us that our yards 

will be backed up to this tech park.  

 

Thank you for your time, 

Dean Tinnimit  

 

P.S. sorry for any grammatical errors because I’m trying to coach kids and do this on my phone. I actually 

have more questions but hopefully some of my neighbors will ask since I heard they have some of the 

same concerns and hopefully they will voice their opinions and concerns.  

 

Sent from my iPhone 

194

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Jeffrey Sherman <jeff.sherman@comcast.net> 

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 9:01 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Re-Zoning Public Meeting (1/21/22) Follow Up 

 

Mr. Caperton, 

 

Just wanted to reach out after tonight’s meeting. I am a resident in the Diamond Crest 

community (east of Locan and north of Nees.) I jumped onto the meeting late but did catch a lot 

of people’s comments and questions and had some of my own that I thought I’d share. 

 

First, I appreciated your professionalism and organization of the meeting. The complaints of the 

meeting being virtual seemed silly to me. We’re all used to virtual meetings in our personal and 

professional lives now and “seeing the whites” of someone’s eyes has zero to do with being 

responsible and safe during a pandemic. We aren’t taking aim at each other and firing bullets so 

that was a weird portion of phrase to use in my opinion. I understood the point, as I’m sure 

everyone on the call did, about in-person meetings being more efficient and personal, etc. But 

comparing risk and reward for tonight’s meeting, it felt appropriate for the choice of making it 

virtual.  

 

Second, several people used phrases like “we all” and “our community thinks” which I 

personally did not appreciate as they don’t speak or think for me or my family. 

 

What I failed to hear from complaints and comments was what anyone’s fears or concerns were 

based in. I myself don’t automatically hear “student/faculty” housing and have a perception of 

low income (affordable housing) or lower home values or crime, etc. I feel like why shouldn’t 

people be able to leave near us that are attending or working at a college campus? What I heard 

was privilege and entitlement in most of the comments.  

 

Maybe it is my own inexperience of living near “student housing” that offers me no frame of 

reference as to the benefits or possible negative affects of this potential re-zoning but I thought 

you should at least hear from someone that lives right next to that area that has no issue with it. 

 

Look forward to hearing from more in the community at future public meetings. 

 

Regards, 

Jeff Sherman 

Clovis Resident 

195

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Dear Mr. Caperton, 
 
I was notified by neighbors of the proposed plan by Granville to build a multi‐story apartment complex 
on Nees between Locan and Temperance. 
 
I strongly oppose the building of an apartment complex in this area for several reasons: 
 

1. Infrastructure. Nees, east of Temperance, is a single lane country road. With all the 
development in the area, there is a heavy burden of traffic on this road and the quality of the 
road has suffered immensely. The traffic has become a safety concern to the children walking on 
the dirt shoulder of this road to school at Dry Creek Elementary. Adding an apartment complex 
to this area is foolhardy, with no consideration to the downstream effects of traffic congestion 
and unsafe conditions for pedestrians. 

2. Environmental. These grasslands are home to small mammals, amphibians, and reptiles that 
have been pushed to the outer reaches of the city limits by excessive and unsustainable 
development. For example, the giant garter snake (Thamnophis gigas) is a threatened species in 
Fresno County and can be found in the area. Densely spaced construction with razing of the 
natural grasslands of the area negatively impacts their natural habitat and risks the survival of 
the species. This is only one example of the harms that can come to wildlife in the area. A full 
environmental impact review should be performed. 

3. Water. Clovis planners must be using extremely optimistic projections for future water supply to 
continue approving housing projects at all. The historical record shows California has suffered 
through multiple hundred‐year‐long droughts in its history. We are currently in a significant 
drought now. Climate change has led to increasingly hot summers and worsened the cyclical 
drought conditions of our state. There will come a time when water is actually scarce and there 
isn’t enough to go around. The coastal areas of our state will develop desalination plants to 
supply their water from the ocean. What will we do? 

4. The Clovis Quality of Life. I can tell you that no one moved out to Locan and Temperance, once 
an extremely rural area, to be situated next to a multi‐story apartment complex. This 
development would be an eye sore in the middle of the grasslands of the area. The values of the 
properties in the immediate area would suffer irreparable harm. People living in these types of 
houses on 1‐2 acres live there for the privacy and rural life it provides. This used to be a central 
tenet of the City of Clovis, what is going on? 

 
This area is zoned as low density residential land for a reason. It is an open area surrounded by fields 
with tall grasses and situated on a single lane country road. From the proposed area there are only a 
handful of distantly spaced houses in sight, with no semblance of urban development whatsoever. It 
makes absolutely no sense to build an apartment complex along this street. It will harm the 
environment, it will harm taxpayers by forcing additional development of infrastructure in the area, 
it is unsustainable growth of consumption of natural resources, and erodes the Clovis quality of life. 
 
Never did I think I would see the day when large developers would try to build apartments out on 
Locan and Temperance. Does Clovis despise its rural residents? 
 
I strongly ask all parties involved to reconsider the location of this building project. 
 
Sincerely, 
Gabriel Schroeder 

196

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Gena Behrens <genabehrens@gmail.com> 

Sent: Monday, January 24, 2022 4:48 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Rezoning in Clovis 

 

Dear Ricky, 

 

I am writing on behalf of the public meeting that happened on January 21.  I do not support the 

rezoning of the Temperance/Alluvial area for apartments.  This is an area full of homes and 

commercial buildings and does not make sense to build apartments in the middle of these 

areas.  There are plenty of apartments already in the area that can accommodate the school 

without taking away from businesses and the quiet for homeowners.  The added traffic will cause 

even more congestion that we already experience. 

 

Sincerely, 

Gena Behrens 

Diamond Crest Community 

197

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Daniel Valluzzi <daniel.valluzzi@icloud.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, January 25, 2022 7:50 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] 168 and Owens Mountain Parkway 

 

Good evening, 

I am a homeowner in the Harlan Ranch community. Is it true that you are attempting to rezone the land 

on 168 and Owens Mountain Parkway for college apartments? 

Could you please email me more information about the proposal? 

 

Thank you, 

Daniel Valluzzi 

198

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Chuck F <fraternis3t6@gmail.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, January 25, 2022 9:53 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Possible Student Complex 168/OwenMountain 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

It came to our attention that the city planner is in the process of rezoning the lot at 168/Owen 

Mountains Parkway. Just wanted to tell you cleary "NO"... As the residents in this neighborhood 

we will do our best to dispute this and vote to kick out the responsible members, planners and 

mayors. 

 

Yours Sincerely, 

Chuck 

199

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Janet Halsey <halseyelectric@sbcglobal.net> 

Sent: Wednesday, January 26, 2022 11:09 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Change in zoning for student housing 

Temperance/Alluvial 

 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 

Flag Status: Completed 

 

Dear Mr. Caperon, 
 
I have some concerns about the new development ideas for the above project.  It will need an awfully 
large allotment of the property for parking, plus ingress and egress.  That will add a tremendous amount 
of traffic to that area in and around the traffic circle, as well as the rural streets nearby.  Does anyone 
know how you plan to accommodate that?  Are you also adding more Clovis PD to take care of that extra 
college age stuff which comes with college apartment housing so that we can protect the residential and 
business community near there?  Who is the developer and what financial arrangement have been made 
with them to cover all of the community concerns?  Is there a place of public records where I may go and 
view all of that information? 
 
I appreciate your help in this matter. 
 
Janet Halsey 

200

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: path@psnw.com 

Sent: Thursday, January 27, 2022 6:30 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] 168 project 

 

 

I attended the online meeting. 

 

I did not hear these questions asked: 

 

1.   Is the faculty housing apartments or single homes?  How many apartments or single homes? 

 

2.   Does the College already own the properties that are designated for student and faculty housing? 

 

3.   Is the Developer that is hauling in dirt on the lot on Temperance in charge of the project for the 

school at that site? 

 

Thank you 

Patricia Hulsey 

  

201

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Tim Douglas <timothyddouglas3@gmail.com> 

Sent: Friday, January 28, 2022 1:36 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Research and Tech Park 

 

Ricky-- 

I took part on the Webex last week and heard your answer to multiple questions regarding the 

work being done on this project. As a family who lives near this project, I must ask again: if 

there is no clear project defined, then why is so much dirt being brought to the site? What is the 

purpose of this activity?  

Thanks.  

202

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Yvonne Haas <ynhaas@gmail.com> 

Sent: Saturday, February 5, 2022 10:58 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] R-T Park boundary 

 

Hello Mr. Caperton, 
We were unable to make the virtual meeting last month 
and I hear there will be another meeting soon.  So i want 
to ask what is being planned for the empty land that is 
surrounded by 168 and Owens Mountain Parkway. Where 
there is an offramp to DeWolf? It is close to our house.   
 
Dan & Yvonne Haas 
 

203

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Clovis Help Line <noreply@user.govoutreach.com> 

Sent: Friday, February 11, 2022 1:48 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Clovis CRM: You have been assigned a new Request 

#: 6112327 

 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 

Flag Status: Flagged 

 

Request # 6112327 from the Government Outreach System has been assigned to you by 

George Gonzalez.  

 
Request type: Problem 

Request area: Planning (Other) 

Citizen name: Christine Kucera 

Description: Christy Kucera 

Wed 2/9/2022 9:42 AM 

My husband and I are against the rezoning of Hwy 168 and Owens Mt 

Parkway. Anything zoned high density is not appropriate for the 

neighborhood we live in. Please reconsider the type of area for your low 

income housing, which is what you really are proposing here. Something 

actually closer to schools, shopping, and large colleges. The above 

referenced area does not fall into that category. 350 units translates into 

700 parking spaces. Residents would be parking on the streets where our 

children play putting children at risk. 

 

Christine and David Kucera 

Expected Close Date: March 1, 2022 

Click here to access the request  

Note: This message is for notification purposes only. Please do not reply to this email. Email 

replies are not monitored and will be ignored. 

 

 

Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the 

link will be analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to 

proceed to the destination. If suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

204

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/97e7514d/JbprPFBTRU_nlKli58QZFQ?u=http://user.govoutreach.com/clovis/editcase.php?cmd=edit%26id=6112327


From: path@psnw.com 

Sent: Tuesday, February 15, 2022 4:42 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] RT meeting 

 

 

 

I am unable to attend the meeting due to care duties for my husband, but in talking with neighbors the 

questions you should be prepared to answer and my questions are: 

 

Who currently owns the properties in question? 

Who is requesting the zoning change? 

Does the college have an option on these properties based on the zoning change? 

Will the faculty housing be another 300 apartments in addition to the 300 being built for students? 

Has anyone studied the traffic problems:  For example, those who live in the 300 apartments on 

Temperance would have to go north clear up to Nees and make a U turn and come back south in order 

to access the apartments.  

 

If you don't know the answers, then perhaps you can bring someone who can answer these questions as 

they are essential to transparency of what is going on. 

 

P.Hulsey 

path@psnw.com  

205

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Renee Mathis 

Sent: Monday, February 28, 2022 2:41 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: FW: [External] CHSU Expansion Plan 

 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 

Flag Status: Flagged 

 

Found it! 

 

 

 

 

Renee Mathis |  Director 

City of Clovis | Planning & Development Services 
p. 559.324.2351 | f. 559.324.2844 
reneem@cityofclovis.com 

 

 

 

 

From: Jake Tracy <jake.tracy@gvhomes.com>  

Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 2022 2:48 PM 

To: caperton@ci.clovis.ca.us; Renee Mathis <ReneeM@ci.clovis.ca.us>; Jose Flores 

<JoseF@ci.clovis.ca.us>; Lynne Ashbeck <LynneA@ci.clovis.ca.us>; Drew Bessinger 

<DrewB@ci.clovis.ca.us>; Vong Mouanoutoua <VongM@ci.clovis.ca.us>; Bob Whalen 

<BobW@ci.clovis.ca.us> 

Subject: [External] CHSU Expansion Plan 

 

Clovis Council Members,  

 

My name is Jake Tracy. I reside at 1712 North Ryan Avenue, Clovis CA. We moved from Fort Worth Texas 

a couple years ago and found the next best little piece of country to live in, Clovis, CA. Recently we’ve 

had folks come by the house talk about how the CHSU campus expansion will bring college housing, 

looting, retail, potentially liquor stores and crime with an increase of drunk driving on Temperance Ave.   

 

I try and perform my civic duty when called upon. My neighbors, some of whom have completed 

programs at CHSU, speak very highly of the school, the faculty and the programs. My realtor tells me 

that property values will rise not fall and that the city of Clovis has always been super responsible in 

their real estate development practices especially near schools.  

 

In short, I am in total support of the CHSU Campus expansion plan. One of my neighbors is Clovis PD and 

shared many reasons why crime will actually be reduced by the expansion and will make the area more 

walkable and bring some conveniences a little closer than driving down to Herndon passed the Hospital.  

 

I’m also glad that Granville is the developer; they do an outstanding job when it comes to quality. Please 

feel free to contact me if you have any questions.  

206

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

Thank you,  

 

Jake Tracy 

559.981.7499 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication and any accompanying document(s) may be privileged 

and confidential, and are intended for the sole use of the addressee(s). If you have received this 

transmission in error, you are advised that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or the taking of any 

action in reliance upon it is strictly prohibited. Moreover, any such inadvertent disclosure shall not 

compromise or waive the attorney-client privilege as to this communication or otherwise. If you have 

received this communication in error, please delete it and contact us by replying to the sender or by 

telephone at 559-440-8300. Thank you.  

207

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Kaylen at Beal Developments, LLC 

<kaylen.bealdevelopmentsllc@gmail.com> 

Sent: Monday, February 28, 2022 4:04 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Cc: George Beal 

Subject: [External] From the desk of George Beal: R-T Park 

 

Good afternoon Mr. Ricky Caperton,  

I own property and a business in this area and fully support this proposal of the General Plan 

Amendment (GPA2021-007), Rezone (R2021-010), and Ordinance Amendment( OA2021-004).  

Thank you,  

George Beal  

(559) 288-0211 

 

Beal Developments, LLC  

Sterling Hartel Developments 1, Inc. 

208

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Jimmy Corrao <jimmycorrao33@gmail.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, March 1, 2022 7:29 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] 3/2/22 Neighborhood Meeting 

 

Hi Mr. Caperton, 

 

I am unable to attend the neighborhood meeting at Dry Creek Elementary on 3/2/22 regarding the R-T 

Park and the high density housing. As a neighbor I am opposed to re-zoning to accommodate high 

density housing.  

 

Jimmy 

209

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: allison hindman <allakona@gmail.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, March 1, 2022 10:07 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Granville Student Housing Project 

 

Hi Ricky, 

 

My name is Allison Hindman and I live in Deauville East off Temperance Ave. I am aware of 

and fully support Mr. Assimi with his idea to add the student housing near Temperance and 

Alluvial. I think it will be better for the community to have the students living walking distance 

to the university rather than driving in.   

 

Myself and some neighbors met with Darius and discussed pros and cons.  We are looking 

forward to having the retail business going in also to support the students and faculty. 

 

Please consider this when making you planning decisions. 

 

Thanks, 

Allison 

210

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Manuel M. Martín-Rodríguez <m_artin3525@hotmail.com> 

Sent: Wednesday, March 2, 2022 10:54 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Research & Technology(R-T) Park 

 

Dear Mr. Caperton: 

 

As a property owner in the boundary map for this development, I am writing to express my concerns 

about the proposal. 

 

In the first place, I am concerned about the manner in which the developer has presented this proposal. 

Characterizing this development as faculty and student housing in connection with a recently opened, 

very small medical school in the area suggests an attempt to deceive the potentially affected neighbors 

and/or the City. The number of homes and apartments proposed is completely out of sync with the 

reality of student enrollments and faculty numbers in that school. Furthermore, there is no credible 

indication of demand on the part of students and faculty, which suggests those new lodgings are not 

necessarily needed for the stated purpose. 

 

Secondly, I am very concerned about changes in density of population in the area. At this point, the area 

is characterized by single-family homes and some lingering small farms from an earlier era. The 

proposed development would change that urban landscape in several undesirable ways: 

 

1. It would greatly impact the Dry Creek school and the school system in general, at a time when Dry 

Creek is already under stress. 

 

2. It would increase traffic, pollution, and noise, thereby changing the current style of living that 

attracted current homeowners to the area. 

 

3. It would have a negative effect on property values for existing homes. 

 

4. It may have adverse effects on crime and accidents. 

 

5. It would have an impact on resources and sustainability, right when a predicted long-term drought is 

already presenting challenges to the state and to the area. 

 

6. The area has virtually no recreational areas at this point, and an increase in population would mean 

that the few existing trails would become even more overcrowded. 

 

For these reasons, I am opposed to the proposed development, and I urge the city to explore more 

sustainable alternatives to developing that land. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Manuel Martín Rodríguez 

 

211

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Steven Tripp <steven.tripp@rmking.com> 

Sent: Wednesday, March 2, 2022 8:06 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Clovis RT park meeting follow up 

 

Ricky, 

 

Just wanted to reach out to you and first and fore most thank you for moderating these meetings 

and coordinating the information provided.  I’m sorry for the behavior and rude actions of many 

of those involved and commenting during the QA sessions.  The level of class and lack of respect 

for those just simply trying to do their job is embarrassing and so I just wanted to say sorry for 

some of the behavior you had to endure.  There is a basic level of respect and adherence to social 

constructs that is needed to be displayed in order to have a public forum like this be a productive 

environment and all too often it was missing.  If you could please provide the email for the 

presenter from CHSU and or forward this email to him it would be much appreciated.  I believe 

he did a great job exhibiting restraint and making clear and concise points that unfortunately 

seemed to be at times falling of deaf ears.   I was skeptical of the project at first but now believe 

it makes a lot of since and I just wanted to reach out share thanks and represent my 

thoughts.  Hopefully this provides viewpoint of a community member that may not be present at 

the open forums but is thankful for the work you are doing. 

 

Thanks for your time, 

 

Steven Tripp 

--  
Steven Tripp 

R.M. King Company 

T. 559.266.0258 

F. 559.266.1672 

212

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: nms1969 (null) <nms1969@aol.com> 

Sent: Thursday, March 3, 2022 6:32 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] RT Park "Cleanup " meeting March 2, 2022 

 

My name is Nancy Scheidt, I live at 1279 N. Joshua, I attended last nights meeting at Dry Creek 

Elementary regarding the subject issue.  I would like a schedule of meetings regarding the proposed 

changes. This would include future neighborhood information meetings, planning commission meetings 

and any city Council meetings pertaining to the subject. If you could provide that schedule I would 

appreciate it.  And just as a matter of understanding, as this project currently stands I oppose the 

prospect of high density housing in this area. 

 

Thank you 

 

Nancy Scheidt 

1279 N Joshua 

Clovis CA  93619 

559-903-0050 

 

Sent from my iPhone 

213

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Christopher Nola <christopher.nola@bailsllc.com> 

Sent: Thursday, March 3, 2022 8:51 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] R-T Meeting at Dry Creek 

 

Ricky, 

 

I attended last night’s meeting. I wanted to let you know that you did a wonderful job moderating the 

meeting. You were put in a difficult situation, and I appreciate you professionalism. It is not easy when 

you have some individuals whose opinion is overwhelmed by their emotions on the subject. 

Unfortunately they do not realize that their words can be disrespectful and disruptive. You are doing 

your job and representing the city of Clovis to the best of your ability. 

 

Thank you for your commitment,  

 

Christopher Nola, MBA, CEBS  

Senior Applications Consultant | Bails & Associates 

Christopher.nola@bailsllc.com 

O: 559.977.1746 

C: 559.977.1746 

 

 

 

A Nordic Global Company 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/135b21c0/GouA4YMKhES8B3YBameiXQ?u=http://www.nordicglobal.com/ | 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/a9eb792d/7JjGh5KeCk_wC1410K9kJQ?u=http://www.bailsllc.com/  
Linkedin | Facebook | Twitter  

    

 
Bails is proud to be recognized as a Top Performer in the 2022 Best in KLAS report. [Learn more] 

 

 

Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the 

link will be analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to 

proceed to the destination. If suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

214

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/ec6cdd3b/1QU1p-bac0e2lmHDRrpysA?u=https://www.linkedin.com/company/bails-%26-associates-llc
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/17181143/N0h3AapBC0a8NqXOiq0GZA?u=https://www.facebook.com/bailsandassociates/
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/da9c59ee/y2YuL445xE2t9yCuMXNe1Q?u=https://twitter.com/BailsandAssoc
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/bbf477c4/ISvYolz8kkOJntyEUd3thg?u=https://www.bailsllc.com/announcements/bails-recognized-as-top-performer-in-2022-klas-report/


From: Manuel M. Martín-Rodríguez <m_artin3525@hotmail.com> 

Sent: Friday, March 4, 2022 7:59 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: Re: [External] Research & Technology(R-T) Park 

 

Dear Mr. Caperton: 

after attending the other night's meeting with the developers and the university administrators, I 

am writing to reiterate my concerns about the proposed project, as well as what was described at 

the meeting as "cleaning up inconsistencies" in the zoning and usage maps. 

On this latter point, I was surprised to learn that neighbors in the affected zone had not been 

consulted. I thought I might have missed the notice for that meeting myself, but I learned that no 

meeting had ever been called to discuss this most important matter. I would urge you and the city 

to consider convening such a meeting so that you may hear the neighbors' opinion first hand. In 

my own view, there is no reason for cleaning up the inconsistency by changing the land usage to 

include apartment buildings; it would make much more sense to unify and clean up the the 

inconsistencies maintaining the research park use already in existence, with which the neighbors 

have expressed no issues that I know of. 

As for the proposed development, I am now more convinced than ever that the developer is using 

the university as an excuse to build general-use apartments, and that the university is using the 

proposed development to cover up for poor planning on their part. Allow me to explain why I 

believe that to be the case. 

1. The university claimed that they need faculty housing in order to attract first-rate professors. 

My objections: UC Merced opened 14 years ago with no faculty housing, yet it succeeded in 

attracting first-rate faculty, even if they had to do so to a less desirable location (in the estimation 

of many) like Merced. Moreover, I very much doubt that the medical school faculty would want 

to live on university property instead of owning their own homes. With the average medical 

school salaries, moreover,  those faculty members would have no trouble finding and purchasing 

existing homes in Clovis or wherever they might prefer living. 

2. The university claimed that they need student housing within walking distance to the campus, 

yet they failed to explain why they could not build dorms within their own property. UC Merced 

kept being mentioned as a point of comparison but, again, UC Merced built the dorms they 

needed within its own property prior to opening in 2005. Neighbors present at the meeting 

suggested workable alternatives the university appeared not to have contemplated, like building 

dorms near the hospital close-by (in which they claimed their students were doing 2-year 

residences). Building there (or anywhere else) and implementing a shuttle service or bus routes 

(like UC Merced has done for its off-campus students and faculty) would clearly take care of that 

problem. 

3. The university and the developer, as mentioned, kept referring to UC Merced as a model but, 

as it was pointed out to them at the meeting, UC Merced was not built next door to existing 

215

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



neighborhoods, but in the middle of nowhere. What we are worried about is precisely the fact 

that the project intends to transform our low-density neighborhoods into high-density ones. 

4. The university and the developer attempted to sell their project using a set of promises that are 

only worth the paper they are printed on. For instance, they claimed (several times) that their 

students would become the doctors we need in our community and around the Central Valley. 

Yet, unless students are asked to sign a contract binding them to work in this area when they 

graduate there would be no way to prevent their taking jobs elsewhere. They also claimed that 

our property values would go up 20%, based on a study they had either commissioned or found 

somewhere. Again, unless they are willing to sign a contract with homeowners (many of whom 

actually own Granville Homes properties) to the effect that they commit to buying our homes at 

(at least) current value plus 20%, that study is meaningless. 

5. When developers were asked about water issues, the main speaker (sorry I did not catch his 

name) deferred to their own engineering expert who said they did not have a plan as of now but 

that they would develop one. In any case, he said, they would use surface (not well) water. Now, 

in the middle of the worst drought ever, where do they plan to get surface water? The lack of 

planning in this and other serious matters should be of extreme concern to the city, as it is to the 

affected neighbors. 

6. The developer acknowledged the strong likelihood that not all apartment units would be 

occupied by students, and that within 30 days they would be made available to the general 

public. This, as it was pointed out to them, would generate at least two problems: one, because 

Dry Creek is a rather desirable school, general-access apartments would be likely to attract 

families with young children who would benefit from the excellence of the school district 

without committing to long-term tax-paying to support it, as homeowners in the area (like 

myself) do; moreover, this would impact (perhaps severely) a school that is already stressed; the 

second problem pointed out is that when the proposed apartments get to be fully occupied by a 

mixture of students and the general public, and when the university increases its enrollment 

numbers, new students would have no place in which to stay, which clearly defeats the purpose 

of building external housing in the first place. Again, the university could build dorms (like all 

other schools do) on their own property and thus have full control of housing, but they do not 

seem to be willing to do so. Instead, they propose to solve their problem (lack of planning) by 

creating one for us. This is not acceptable to existing homeowners, and I believe the city should 

reject this plan as well as the proposed rezoning (even it is called "cleaning up inconsistencies"). 

Sincerely, 

Manuel Martín Rodríguez 

On 3/2/2022 11:09 AM, Ricky Caperton wrote: 

Hi Manuel, 
Thank you for your comment. I am in receipt of it. 
 
Ricky Caperton, AICP | Deputy City Planner 
City of Clovis | Planning Division 
p. 559.324.2347 | m. 559.593.5176 

216

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



rcaperton@cityofclovis.com 
 
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Manuel M. Martín-Rodríguez [mailto:m_artin3525@hotmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, March 2, 2022 10:54 AM 
To: Ricky Caperton <rcaperton@ci.clovis.ca.us> 
Subject: [External] Research & Technology(R-T) Park 
 
Dear Mr. Caperton: 
 
As a property owner in the boundary map for this development, I 
am writing to express my concerns about the proposal. 
 
In the first place, I am concerned about the manner in which the 
developer has presented this proposal. Characterizing this 
development as faculty and student housing in connection with a 
recently opened, very small medical school in the area suggests 
an attempt to deceive the potentially affected neighbors and/or 
the City. The number of homes and apartments proposed is 
completely out of sync with the reality of student enrollments 
and faculty numbers in that school. Furthermore, there is no 
credible indication of demand on the part of students and 
faculty, which suggests those new lodgings are not necessarily 
needed for the stated purpose. 
 
Secondly, I am very concerned about changes in density of 
population in the area. At this point, the area is characterized 
by single-family homes and some lingering small farms from an 
earlier era. The proposed development would change that urban 
landscape in several undesirable ways: 
 
1. It would greatly impact the Dry Creek school and the school 
system in general, at a time when Dry Creek is already under 
stress. 
 
2. It would increase traffic, pollution, and noise, thereby 
changing the current style of living that attracted current 
homeowners to the area. 
 
3. It would have a negative effect on property values for 
existing homes. 
 
4. It may have adverse effects on crime and accidents. 
 
5. It would have an impact on resources and sustainability, right 
when a predicted long-term drought is already presenting 
challenges to the state and to the area. 
 
6. The area has virtually no recreational areas at this point, 
and an increase in population would mean that the few existing 
trails would become even more overcrowded. 
 
For these reasons, I am opposed to the proposed development, and 
I urge the city to explore more sustainable alternatives to 
developing that land. 

217

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 
Sincerely, 
 
Manuel Martín Rodríguez 
 
This e-mail may contain confidential and privileged material for 
the sole use of the intended recipient. Any review, use, 
distribution or disclosure by others is strictly prohibited. If 
you are not the intended recipient (or authorized to receive for 
the recipient), please contact the sender by reply e-mail and 
delete all copies of this message. 

218

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Rezone: Part One

The first part of the story of how the million-dollar development industry led to political
corruption came to light after a Clovis city councilman demanded a bribe from a developer
in return for a vote on a rezoning issue in 1993. The developer went to the FBI instead,
and the FBI found a widespread net of crooked developers and crooked politicians.

"Local residents," said the Fresno Bee in an editorial in 1999, "have paid a heavy price
through corrupt planning decisions that have turned much of the Fresno and Clovis area
into a mishmash of strip malls and sprawl-causing housing developments that have
stretched the infrastructure beyond its limits.... These crimes struck at the heart of our
governmental processes, increasing public cynicism toward elected officials, staining
even those who have played by the rules. As part of the ongoing investigation dubbed
Operation Rezone, nine politicians, lobbyists and developers have pleaded guilty or been
sent to prison. Their crimes range from wire fraud to obstruction of justice-all related to
key City Council votes on rezoning and housing development.

John Bonadelle the "developer" who was convicted stated, "I have spent 50 years of my
life helping build this community. (Fresno and Clovis)

Rezone: Part Two

The City Council voted in 2021 to approve a memorandum of understanding between the
City of Clovis and the California Health Sciences University (CHSU) Owned by Darius
Assemi acknowledging and allowing CHSU's plans for developing in the Research and
Technology (RT) Park area at Alluvial and Temperance Avenues.
The University will continue campus expansion plans, build additional health sciences
colleges, and offer new student and faculty housing near campus. Phase two is planned
to include student and faculty housing with 20 acres of multi-family homes and 50 acres
of single-family homes. Phase three is planned to build future health sciences colleges
and an ancillary commercial center on 23 acres. In all approximately 70 acres of Clovis
real estate both rural and undeveloped and already established developed housing tracks
would be affected. The school website appears to discus 100-150 students at capacity
and 20-30 part time professors that do not need housing.

Darius Assemi is President and CEO of Granville Homes - a real estate development
company. His mission is to" build healthier communities in areas of concentrated poverty
in Fresno County" hmm, not unlike John Bonadelle philanthropist and community good

guy.

Darius Assemi owns the California Health Sciences University on acreage on Alluvial
Avenue that he also owns. The Assemi family, Darius, Farid and Farshid are on the Board
of Trustees for the Califomia Health Sciences University. The land developing Assemi
has a need for Rezoning and perhaps a general plan amendment so he can build not only
his RT park but since he has purchased all the property on Nees and Temperance as
well, it would be a sure bet that the rezoning is a lock.

219

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Please do not attempt to tell us that the California Health Sciences University, owned by
Darrius Assemi and run by the Assemi family needs 286 apartments, 64 Townhouses
and 250 single family homes to be successful. Do not test our intelligence by stating that
a green zone will be developed as no sane person will walk, bike, or ride a scooter once
these streets are developed. Maybe the state would believe this fairy tale, but I would
point to Locan Avenue after De Young developed near the corner of Nees...it is a two-
lane freeway. No green space and doesn't population increase traffic, noise, crime, and
decrease green space?

Do the established housing developments on Temperance and Nees need multi story,
commercial multi-use development on the corner across the street from them? Isn't that
a problem for children walking to Dry Creek School that already has no room for existing
students? Or do they even know? Usually, the City Planning Department does a good
job of notifying affected homeowners after plan and rezone changes.

Back to rezone. Part Two. Does anyone in the City of Clovis or the County of Fresno
believe that there is no conflict of interest in this rezone and development? How is this
allowed? Do the members of City Planning or the folks who approved this mess does not
recognize there will be no green space and not enough medical students to fill one
apartment building. If its not that It must mean that something else is going on. In the
City of Fresno at this very moment the FBI is investigating what has happened in their
business of city development. Does no one in Clovis remember the Clovis City
Councilperson who went to jail for similar problems? It is time to bring in the state of
California and the FBI who are very familiar with this area. Perhaps they can bring some
sanity.

220

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Tim Douglas <timothyddouglas3@gmail.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, March 8, 2022 9:45 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Research and Tech Park 

 

Good morning-- 

 

I'm a resident in the neighborhood that will be impacted by the family housing proposal.  

 

Frankly, this is not a good look for the project or for the developer. I attended the meeting at Dry 

Creek Elementary, and oddly enough, this issue never arose (please see 

link: https://link.edgepilot.com/s/5b9b9013/bHHM94n1IUy17EoPV_xV8g?u=https://www.fresn

obee.com/news/local/article259158543.html). 

 

I know you've seen this story and I would like to know a few things: 

1. Why didn't the developer raise this issue during the Dry Creek meeting? Reasonable to assume 

this would have cast his "presentation" in a brand new light, yes? 

2. Why didn't you raise this issue? In fairness, you might not have known about it, but I do want 

to ask.  

3. Do you agree that this lack of accreditation will have a significant impact on the multi-family 

housing project and how it's being "sold" by the developer and how it will be viewed by the city? 

And if not, why not? 

4. In your expert opinion, doesn't this project meet the CEQA/EIR threshold? 

 

Finally, I strongly encourage you/the city to organize another community meeting in advance of 

the proposed planning commission hearing on this issue, which is set for April.  

 

Thanks for your time.  

 

 

Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the 

link will be analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to 

proceed to the destination. If suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

221

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



222

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



223

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



224

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



225

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Nina Sensenbaugh CalBRE 01867955 Realtor - GRI 

<nina@guarantee.com> 

Sent: Friday, March 18, 2022 9:50 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Research & Technology area Temperance/Alluvial 

 

Hi - I just wanted to reach out and show my support for the apartment complex that is under 

consideration to be built within the R&T property on the West side of Temperance.  The campus 

is already there - and the students need to live somewhere.  Having a place that is close enough 

to walk or short safe bike ride makes the most sense - helps reduce vehicle traffic and 

congestion.  I also support the plan to have an extended trail system on the west edge of the 

apartment complex since we live near by and utilize the trails regularly. 

 

We also wish the trail would be re-opened West of Fowler along the canal.  We walk this 

regularly (prior to it being shut down) and having it closed means moving to an unsafe route - 

not safe for kids or adults.  Is there any way to have this revisited? 

 

Sincerely 

Nina Sensenbaugh 

Clovis Resident  

2720 Muncie Ave 

 

 

 
Member of Guarantee "Top REALTORS of The Year" 2013-2021 

  

Thinking about selling?  Click HERE to see how much your home is worth. 

 
 
NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY 
This email, and any attachments, are private and confidential; and is the property of the sender.  It is for the sole use of the intended 
recipient identified above.  It may contain information that is confidential and prohibited from disclosure.  If you are not the intended 
recipient, be advised that you are legally prohibited from retaining, using, copying, distributing, or otherwise disclosing this 
information in any manner; and taking any action in reliance on the contents of this email is strictly prohibited.  If you are not the 
intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and delete all copies of this message and any attachments. 

226

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8cfc33af/0RWoJHMfJEiC2J_6VDRVPg?u=https://www.ninasoldit.com/home-value


 
WIRE FRAUD DISCLOSURE 
Communicating through email is not secure or confidential; therefore, Guarantee Real Estate, a Berkshire Hathaway Affiliate will 
never send instructions to you regarding wire transferring of funds or requests for confidential financial information such as credit 
card numbers or bank account or routing numbers by email.  If you receive an email concerning any transaction involving Guarantee 
Real Estate, a Berkshire Hathaway Affiliate that requests financial or confidential information, do not respond to the email and 
immediately contact fraud@guarantee.com. 

 

 

Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the 

link will be analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to 

proceed to the destination. If suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

227

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Jenny McLelland <jennymclelland@mac.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 7:09 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] CHSU Campus R-T Park Apartments (PRO) 

 

Hi -  

 

I’m a resident of Harlan Ranch. 

 

I think the campus housing planned for the CHSU campus is a GREAT idea and I hope that the 

city changes the zoning / General Plan to allow it. 

 

Right now the parcel in question is a vacant lot. Changing the vacant lot into literally anything 

other than a vacant lot would be good for the city, the neighborhood, and the economy. 

 

It’s not like the CHSU students are going to be hosting massive fraternity parties and making 

noise - they’re adult students in medical school who will be living normal, quiet lives and 

becoming the Valley’s future doctors. 

 

The more the CHSU campus / R-T park gets developed, the more good stuff will come to this 

part of town.   

Apartments and other higher density housing are part of that development, and the apartments 

that are planned are classy, nice apartments that don’t change the character of the neighborhood 

in any way. 

 

Also - the more stuff we build at the CHSU campus, the more like we’ll finish the bike trail from 

Harlan Ranch to the campus and hospital - which would be awesome for Harlan Ranch 

residents.  

 

Thanks much! 

 

 

 

 

228

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



229

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



To: Mayor Flores
Mayor Pro Tem Ashbeck
Councilmember Bessinger
Councilmember Mouanoutoua
Councilmember Whalen
1033 Fifth Street
Clovis, CA 93612

RE: Various RT Park planning actions

Dear Clovis City Council,

My partner and I recently moved to NE Clovis and, after brief stays in both Harlan
Ranch and Lafayette Square (Shepherd/Clovis), we settled in the Deauville
neighborhood. Having the means to live nearly anywhere in Fresno County, we had
numerous options of places to live but chose the City of Clovis and this neighborhood
for a slew of reasons.

The driving force behind our recent move was the recent birth of our first child
and the desire to establish a home to grow our family. We not only wanted our kids to
attend Clovis schools but it was important for it to be a safe, walkable distance and the
Enterprise Trail provides a nearly direct off-street route. We frequently use the trail
system for recreation but also want to minimize our need to drive for basic necessities
and restaurants. This was the primary reason we did not stay in Harlan Ranch as it has
no commercial services for the neighborhood.

We are excited for the upcoming vision and support the planning staff’s actions
for our surrounding neighborhood and the opportunities it will bring. The introduction of
more diverse housing options and the people that will join our community will
undoubtedly make it more vibrant. The expansion of the medical school and further
growth of the university campus will attract exciting new businesses and add valuable
medical professionals and students to strengthen our community. The connection of a
few missing links for the trail system will improve our walkability to the existing and any
new commercial services. All of this undoubtedly translates to long-lasting improved
property values which is also why our family purchased, and continues to own, four
homes in the area within the past few years.

Sincerely,
Nathan Nycum
2331 Serena Ave.
Clovis, CA 93619

Cc: Ricky Caperton

230

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Mike Singh <mikefromindia@gmail.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2022 10:05 AM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] R-t Park amendments 

 

Good Morning Mr. Ricky Caperton, 

My name is Malkiat Singh and I am residing at 1303 N Twinberry Ave, Clovis CA 93619 with 

Aman Cheema and my three kids. I received an invitation to join the hearing of amendments to 

Zoning. R-T boundary map line directly rear to my Home. I disagree with this change due to the 

direct effect on my property because there will be more traffic and it will affect the safety of my 

kids. The multi-family apartments with high rise buildings will block the natural view of my 

neighborhood and it will be an external negative factor on the value of my property, and it will 

attract criminal and low income individuals. My question is why my neighbors and myself suffer 

from someone's benefits. I need a really good reason for this change and what will be done for 

our safety. 

General Plan Amendment (GPA2021-007) 

Rezone (R2021-010) 

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT (OA2021-004) 

R-T Park associated with CHSU. 

I am against this change due to the safety of my family and my neighborhood. 

Malkiat Singh 

Aman Cheema 

559-765-7633  

231

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Erika WHITNEY <corbenanderika@comcast.net> 

Sent: Wednesday, March 30, 2022 8:44 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] R-T Park Clean up 

 

Hi Ricky,  
Thank you for attempting to hold meetings and listen to the neighborhood residents that 
show up with concerns regarding the so called "student housing". I think people that are 
virtual should ask their questions in a chat format and not be given any kind of priority 
when the room is full of people wanting and waiting to speak.  
 
California Health Sciences University has suspended a pharmacy doctorate program at 
its for-profit school in Clovis after failing to obtain pre-accreditation.  
Great to know Assemi also owns the school. Did you see the article in the Fresno Bee?   
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/d442f3af/tfV7dppV7EuW2DUSMmVVcQ?u=https://www.fres
nobee.com/news/local/article259158543.html  
 
 
I am hoping on April 6th the meeting will have an organized approach to having 
residents ONLY speak and ask questions and voice concerns. Like a card number 
system, 2 minutes only. I was shocked that Assemi was given the microphone to speak 
at all. In fact I felt like the whole meeting was a waste of time when the college students, 
professor, President and Assemi spoke they took the whole hour and a half. That was 
unacceptable.   
 
My questions are -   
 
I live on Cromwell Ave. Currently my road is a dead end. Will the street go through to 
the apartments?  
 
I heard 2 or 3 story, I heard 350 to 400 units, which is being proposed?  
 
Where is the Economic Impact Report? Is that required?  
 
What is the actual proposed timeline?   
 
My husband and I have NO INTEREST in any additional retail. Is that a done deal as 
well?  
 
We have been walking through the field for the last almost 20 years, what happens to 
the fox, owls, coyotes, squirrels, rabbits, hawks, geese, opposums, etc? Any concern or 
rules for the wildlife impact?  
 
What is the process for how it will impact our schools? Dry Creek, Alta and Buchanan?   
 
For new housing what is the rule - section 8 percentage?  

232

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 
Thank you for your time, I hope the next meeting goes better, we will not be there.   
 
Corben and Erika Whitney  
 
 
 
 

 

Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the 

link will be analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to 

proceed to the destination. If suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

233

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



234

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



235

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Augusto Trigueros <christrig@att.net> 

Sent: Wednesday, April 13, 2022 6:30 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] Concerned resident  

 

Hi my name is Chris from Wathen mansionettes Nees and Temperence. I’m am very disappointed that 

Granville are planning apartments called Affordable housing it’s section 8. Transplanting citizens with 

government assistance to good neighborhoods brings riff raft and over populates the schools. Along 

with traffic and crime. I’d rather pay more taxes to keep Sacramento from forcing Clovis into this 

agenda. I will stand with others in regards to not  allowing an apartment next to hard working residents 

that got there without help from their government. This is ridiculous.  

 

Chris Trigueros 

236

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Clovis City Councilmembers and Clovis City Planners 
1033 5th St.  
Clovis, CA 93612 
 

Dear Councilmembers and Planning Committee, 

As a neighbor to the North of the campus expansion, I see only positive attributes with the proposed 

development of student housing and land development. As a nearby resident, I am enthusiastic about 

the proposal for expanded commercial businesses. I feel that our area is lacking certain amenities that 

would be provided should the apartment style housing be build. The idea of more restaurants and 

market style stores would provide our neighborhood with a variety of options when selecting to stay 

close to home for essentials. Having the ability to use our city planned sidewalks and trails is an 

influential reason I decided to live in Clovis. I love the connected trails and pathways our community 

provides for us. I understand that this proposed development will provide a more walkable and bikeable 

neighborhood and expand on the intricate trail systems we already have. Having housing near the 

campus should create less traffic with the idea that students would walk or bike to campus. The thought 

of “foot commuters” gives a feeling of liveliness and purpose to the project. Having graduate student 

housing near the university makes sense for our area, and I think it will create a greater sense of safety 

for residents, students, and faculty. 

I realize there are objectors to the project, but they are misinformed. They fear increased noise 

pollution, decreased home values, or increased automobile traffic will be the outcome of this project, I 

believe the reality will be far different. This project with create local jobs, provide for more trail and park 

spaces, expand our opportunities for commercial business, and ensure better medical services by 

providing the ability for doctors to learn, live, work, and play in our beautiful city. I would like the 

councilmembers and city planners to approve the staff recommended “clean up” that will allow for 

campus housing and more retail stores in our neighborhood. Expansion is necessary for any developing 

and thriving community and having an opportunity to grow a high-level university in our backyards is an 

innovative way to show the residence of Clovis that we are committed to our futures. I, Makenna Bass, 

stand in favor of development of student and faculty housing, along with an expansion of commercial 

development near California Health Sciences University. 

Sincerely,  

Makenna Bass 

Makenna Bass 

2923 Moody Ave. 

Clovis, CA 93619 

237

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Samuel Coon <sam.coon1@gmail.com> 

Sent: Monday, April 25, 2022 12:20 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] RD Park, Temperance and Alluvial 

Attachments: Cromwell Extension 4-24-22.pdf 

 

Good afternoon Mr. Caperton, 

 

I live at the dead end of Cromwell, and have three young kids.   I have been to the neighborhood 

meetings and have some concerns about the safety in our neighborhoods if this apartment 

complex goes in.  Can you answer these questions for me? 

 

1 - We have been told for many years that any future development behind us would be required 

to have a 100’ trail/green buffer behind us, and continue along the north edge of this 

property.  This is what is shown on the City Trail maps as well.   Can you assure us that this 100’ 

buffer will be required regardless of what development is ultimately constructed?   

 

2 - Can you assure us that there is absolutely no chance that Cromwell Ave could be extended 

east into any of these developments to allow any form of vehicular access whether it remains 

commercial/industrial or somehow goes to these apartments?    I want to note the very obvious 

safety concern for any future vehicular access traveling through our neighborhood to an adjacent 

development.     

 

See below for reference dated 4/25/22 

 

Thank you very much for your response. 

Regards, 

 

Samuel Coon  

 

 

238

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Samuel Coon <sam.coon1@gmail.com> 

Sent: Monday, April 25, 2022 7:02 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] RT park continued 

 

Mr. Caperton, 

 

Thank you kindly for the quick response.   

 

I am disappointed to hear that the City would entertain reducing the 100’ buffer/trail.    

On Item #1, can you confirm a public trail (at whatever width) will still be required by the City at 

the west and north of the property as shown in the map?   

 

On Item #2, although you said there are “no plans”, we have been told for years that there are 

“no plans” for developments that the City is not planning on doing.  

 

I would like to re-phase my question accordingly for clarification. 

 

"If a developer ever proposed a development to the east of Northwood Estates, regardless of the 

type of development, would the City absolutely prohibit Cromwell from extending through?   I 

understand there may not be a plan at this time,  but am concerned that this may allow for a 

different outcome in the future. Can you definitively say that Cromwell will not be extended 

under any circumstance?   

 

Best, 

Samuel Coon 

 

239

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



From: Stasia Szpor <Stasia.Szpor@ccfmg.org> 

Sent: Monday, May 9, 2022 1:04 PM 

To: Ricky Caperton 

Subject: [External] CHSU Campus Expansion opinion 

 

Hello Ricky, 

I am writing to express my support for California Health Sciences University’s campus 

expansion plans. As a neighborhood resident (I live in the Deauville community off Temperance 

on the west side of Shepherd) and a finance professional with the medical community, I believe 

the project offers a variety of positive impacts: 

• Creation of a complete neighborhood – addition of housing, retail/services, and trail 

system will help build a vibrant, connected community. New development will also pay 

its way in the expansion of infrastructure, making our streets and sidewalks safer. 
• Addition of new retail and service options will help with the economic development of 

the area, including the creation of jobs and potential for local businesses.  
• Growth of educational opportunities for medical professionals in the Valley, many of 

whom will stay local and contribute to the well-being of our already underserved 

community. 
• Increase of our property values with the development of a professional school and 

surrounding amenities. 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.  Thank you for all that you do to serve our 

beloved City of Clovis. 

Respectfully and gratefully, 

 

 

 

 
Stasia Szpor 
Director of Finance 
Finance 
Stasia.Szpor@ccfmg.org 
(559) 453-5200 ext. 11154 
(559) 709-6982 cell 
 
Central California Faculty Medical Group 

240

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



University Centers of Excellence 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/54ebad22/Qg88F404uUy-
3lOgjhXnig?u=http://www.universitymds.com/ 
 
Advancing the health of the diverse communities 
we serve through excellence in patient care, 
education and research in an environment 
of collaboration and respect.  

 
 
This email and its attachments may contain privileged and confidential information and/or protected health 

information (PHI) intended solely for the use of Central California Faculty Medical Group and the recipient(s) named 

above. If you are not the recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended 

recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination, distribution, printing or copying of this email 

message and/or any attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this transmission in error, please notify 

the sender immediately at 559-453-5200 and permanently delete this email and any attachments.  

 

 

Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the 

link will be analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to 

proceed to the destination. If suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

241

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



      May 13, 2022 

 

Terry Coleman 

2726 Omaha Ave 

Clovis, CA 93619 

(559)355-4300 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

I am writing this letter of support for the apartment project that is being proposed by Darius Assemi 

et.al. I have been to the meetings and understand the proposal for not only housing for students 

attending CHSU on Alluvial, but to meet the need for higher density housing for the growing population 

in Clovis. This location is well situated near the freeway and traffic is already being addressed due to the 

single-family housing development in that area for the past 6-10 years. I live just north of this proposed 

project and therefore understand that some type of housing will end up on that land. 

 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions. 

 

 

Terry Coleman  

242

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



243

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Public Hearing:  CLOVIS PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

I am disappointed but not surprised that the Clovis Planning Commission is 

having a hearing on the Research and Technology Park on June 27, 2024.  

This despite the commitment from the Clovis staff at our last meeting at Dry 

Creek School that a community meeting would be held with the neighbors 

prior to moving ahead. (Check your notes).  Community members were not 

allowed to speak at this last meeting at all. The city repeatedly states its 

commitment to community input and community hearings prior to moving 

forward on massive changes to the community but fails to follow though.  Is 

the planning commission aware of this? 

Staffs last ‘community meeting’ was by staff presentation only on the past 

20 or so years on how they been trying to make this happen for the 

developers against the wishes of homeowners.  No input allowed. 

Clovis staff has been steadfast in their attempts to help out those the 

developers who benefit most…not the neighbors, not the community.  I take 

note that your announcement for the meeting is almost exactly what Darius 

Assemi has been proposing for years…kind of a cut and paste and the 

commission should be aware.    

I have attended just about every community and public hearing on this for 

years.  Sometimes the neighbors who are affected are noticed by the City 

and sometimes not, depending on what is on the agenda and who is the 

developer.  For DeYoung Development, even though we had acreage that 

was connected to his development request, we received no notice.  The 

neighbors, the same thing.  We had to accidentally find out.  This is pretty 

much along the same lines.  The thinking must be that if you wait it out long 

enough you can slide it through or memories fade but not in this case. 

Having lived at the same address for 41 years with acreage, we have 

extremely strong concerns with the usage of a 26-year-old environmental 

Impact report followed by a dated follow-up.  Can you not agree that the 

land around the RTP which was filled with cattle when we moved here 

might be affected and the development cause impacts to our environment 

including water.  The world has changed and so have our natural resources 

244

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



and our environment.  What is the fear of a new environmental impact 

report?   

What about the traffic congestion. I note that Darius Assemi wants to put 

‘student’ housing on the corner of Locan and Nees over a mile from the 

school affecting large and established neighborhoods. It is not walkable 

due to the traffic now on Nees.   Wouldn’t you want to know why that is and 

by the way see a copy of a lease agreement for student housing that does 

not require you to be a student.  This fact is only known as the neighbors 

dragged it out of Assemi at a ‘community’ meeting that he ran for the City of 

Clovis.  He was not about to disclose that on his own.  And I don’t consider 

a meeting run by the developer a community meeting nor should 

commission members.  Are you aware what falls under the umbrella of 

student housing needs…retail, shopping centers…not libraries for students. 

If the Fresno Bee articles on the development of Clovis have not reached 

you, I would hope that some kind Clovis staffer could bring this to your 

attention.  It is shocking.   

As a city planning commission member I am pretty sure you take some 

kind of oath or commit to acting in the community’s best interests. Same for 

the city council.  Isn’t it time to address these issues?  

Thank you for your time. 

Katherine Hickman 

 

 

 

245

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



1

McKencie Perez

From: Debbie Britz <mdcba@aol.com>

Sent: Saturday, June 15, 2024 7:59 AM

To: McKencie Perez

Subject: [External] Re:Clovis Planning Commission June 27, 2024

Attention:McKencie Perez Senior Planner ,  The Planning Commisssion 
 
Just over 2 years ago, we, the residents of the R&T Park area, were asked to attend 'Neighborhood 
Meetings' 
organized by the Clovis City Council to get feed back regarding a project proposed of a 350 unit 
apartment complex for 'student housing' on a 20 acre parcel in the sphere of the R&T Park. Fast 
forward to now and if I am understanding correctly ,the Planning Commissions recommendations for 
the items considered is to change the zoning for 333 acres in the R&T Park to 'Student Housing.' 
Those 'Neighborhood Meetings' I spoke of ,consisted of 2 that happened plus one that was promised 
by the City but never materialized. At those meetings many questions were brought up by the 
neighbors which were and still haven't been answered. Promises were made that a special web site 
specially designed by the city that would have all those questions/concerns that the neighbors 
brought up were to be answered but that never happened. 
The general consensus at those 2 'Neighborhood Meetings' was not in favor of the 'Student Housing' 
Project due to just some of the many concerns , it wasn't following the plan of what the R&T Park had 
set forth from it's conception, studies done in1999 & 2009 were all outdated, traffic, water, sewer, 
issues and the impact of local schools were never addressed. 
As a resident of Clovis for over 51 years, I am disappointed in what is happening to the 'Clovis Way of 
Life' I truly believe that the Founding Fathers of Clovis would not be pleased with the way it's turning 
out, with all the inconsistencies of the development , the traffic congestion, along with the preferential 
treatment of developers over the well being of the citizens of Clovis! 
Sincerely, 
Debbie Britz 

246

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



1

McKencie Perez

From: Martin Britz <martinb@britzinc.com>

Sent: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 3:35 PM

To: McKencie Perez

Subject: [External] Proposed Housing Development 

June 18, 2024 

 

Clovis Planning Commission 

Public Hearing Thursday, June 27, 2024 at 6:00pm 

 

Re :Proposed Housing Development 

 

I, Martin Britz, live at 2474 Nees adjacent to the Research and Technology Park. Before the land was designated a 

Research and Technology Park, 

I realized something would be done to this property. I did not oppose this zoning with the conditions and amenities 

such as a jogger or walking trail as a bu er and other specific requirements. 

 

I oppose any housing within the Research and Technology Park. Allowing housing would be a change in Rezoning, 

not a Correction, not a Cleanup to the Research and Technology Park. Adjacent residents bought or built their 

homes based on No housing in the Research and Technology Park. The change is being requested by the developer 

who thinks he can tell the Clovis City Council what to do for his own benefit at the detriment of the neighboring 

residents and the Research and Technology Park. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Martin Britz 

2474 Nees 

Clovis, CA, 93611 

247

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



JAMES O. DEMSEY (RETIRED)

RoBERT J. TYLER (1938-2012)
GERALD D. VINNARD (RETIRED)

DAVID M. GILMORE
MARCUS D. MAGNESS
WILLIAM H- LEIFER*
RYAN M, JANISSE

CHRISTOPHER E. SEYMOUR

fOF COUNSEL

STREET ADDRESS

7789N INGRAMAVENUE
sulrE 105

FRESNO, CALIFORN]A 9371 I

MAILING ADDRESS

Posr OFFTCE Box 28907
FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 93729-

8907

EMAIL ADDRESS

DCILMORE@GMLEGAL.NET

TELEPHONE

(5s9) 448-e800

FACSIMILE
(ss9) 448-989e

GtrMoRE.MAGNESS.JANISSE
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

June 19, 2024

VIA ASPS AND EMAIL
City of Clovis
Dept. of Planning & Development Services

City Hall
1033 Fifth Street
Clovis, CA 93612
dav idm@city o fc lov i s . c om

Re: Proposed Housing Development Near CHSU

Dear Sirs and Madams:

This office has been retained by residents who live near to the

proposed housing near the California Health Sciences lJniversity ("CHSU").

tt upp.urr that the City of Clovis is moving forward with a project for housing

within the Research and Technology Park ("R-T Park") near CHSU that has

expanded to 400 (3 story) high density multi-family units and250 homes with
noenvironmental assessments and no requirement that the housing be tied in

any way to CHSU.

The project as presented now has significant environmental

impacts such that a full EIR is required. The entire area has seen significant

development over the last 25 yeats, including without limitation, many

residential developments (Deauville, Deauville East, Harlan Ranch, and

others) built to the northeast, the expansion of Clovis Community Hospital,

additional medical office buildings near the hospital, the CHSU campus. The

cumulative impacts of further high-density residential developments are

obvious and must be considered.

The project is proposing to use a City-initiated'oClean-Up"
process to administratively create a General Plan Amendment, a

bevelopment Code Amendment, a Rezone (by City), and change to the R-T
park Disign Guidelines. All of these four documents prohibit housing in the

R-T Park. This "Clean-Up" is being substituted for the requirement that an

Applicant follows the formal Rezone Application process which requires

rp."iul studies on impacts, and careful consideration to any "changes in zone

or uses that could adversely affect the adjoining properly as to value or

precedent, or will be detrimental to the area." The City has not provided

00024-0000\794550.1 248

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



G ILMORE . MAGNE S S . JRNTSST,
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATI()N

City of Clovis
Dept. of Planning & Developments Services

June 19,2024
Page2

neighbors with a study on this project's direct effect on their property value

or detrimental impacts. This "Clean-Up" process cannot be used to bypass

the requirement of an EIR to study and reveal these impacts to the

neighborhoods, as the EIR provides protections and impact mitigations for

the neighbors.

The housing proposal requires a general plan amendment. The

City of Clovis is not in compliance with its own requirements to make such a

plan amendment. Just as two examples, the City's own policies require an

assessment of whether the public facilities, such as sewer and water, are

adequately served taking into account the project and future projects. It
should go without saying that 650 housing units has a much larger impact on

sewer needs and water usage than mixed business uses but no such analysis

has been done. The City is required to assess the impact on the jobs to

housing ratios. By eliminating the R-T Park and replacing it with housing, it
is obvious that the ratio is impacted negatively on the job side of the analysis,

but no analysis has been done. (See General Plan Land Use Element, Goal 6

- Policy 6.1B and 6.2r^)

If the City continues to move forward without an environmental

assessment, it would be in direct violation of the California Environmental

Quality Act ("CEQA") Past EIRs dating back to 1999 ate irrelevant to the

proposed project scope, and ignore the cumulative growth and impacts.

Despite the neighbors bringing many anticipated impacts to the City's
attention during each of the three 2022 neighborhood meetings, with several

more in writing, it is not the responsibility of the neighbors to attempt to

identiff the relevant impacts. Unless and until a proper EIR is done, provided

for public comment and the significant impacts addressed, the request to

change the general plan to approve 650 housing units must be rejected.

Very

cc: Clients

00024-0000\794550. I

David M. Gilmore

249

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



1

McKencie Perez

From: Scott and Lisa <sleakins@sbcglobal.net>

Sent: Friday, June 21, 2024 8:42 AM

To: McKencie Perez

Subject: [External] Comments for Planning Commission Meeting 5/27/24

Attachments: CCF06212024.pdf

Good morning Mckencie, 

  

I have attached a pdf file containing 270 signatures in opposition to the proposed R-T park rezoning to allow 

for residental construction within the R-T park.  These were gathered by individuals from the surrounding 

neighborhoods to the North, West and East of the R-T park. 

Please submit to the Commissions packet for this meeting.  Should you have any questions, please do not 

hesitate to contact me at your earliest convience. 

  

Scott Eakins 

ATTACHMENT 1
250

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



251

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



252

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



253

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



254

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



255

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



256

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



257

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



258

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



259

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



260

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



261

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



262

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



263

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



264

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



265

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



266

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



1

McKencie Perez

From: The Doswalds <doswalds@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 12:46 PM

To: McKencie Perez

Subject: Re: [External] June 27 Planning Commission Meeting

Attachments: 6-27-24 Comments ED.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Hi McKencie, 

 

Sorry this was a little later than expected.   My mother had a bad fall this morning and sustained an injury. 

 

See attached. 

 

Please confirm this will be included. 

 

Thanks, 

Eric  

 

 

 

> On Jun 24, 2024, at 10:07 AM, McKencie Perez <mckenciep@ci.clovis.ca.us> wrote: 

>  

> Good morning, 

>  

> If you would like to submit slides for the meeting, I will need them by noon on Wednesday 6/26. 

>  

> Thank you, 

>  

> McKencie Perez, MPA | Senior Planner 

> City of Clovis | Planning Division 

> 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 

> p. 559.324.2310 

> mckenciep@cityofclovis.com 

>  

>  

> -----Original Message----- 

> From: The Doswalds <doswalds@gmail.com> 

> Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 4:23 PM 

> To: McKencie Perez <mckenciep@ci.clovis.ca.us> 

> Subject: [External] June 27 Planning Commission Meeting 

>  

> Hi McKenzie, 

>  

> I plan to attend the Planning Commission Meeting on the 27th. 

>  

> If I were to submit a letter, that would need to be emailed to you no later than Saturday (5 days prior) in order to be included? 

>  

> If I were to speak and show some slides, would I email this to you maybe by next Wednesday, and they would be able to 

show them as I spoke?  Would this be a powerpoint deck then? 

>  

> Thanks, ATTACHMENT 2 267

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



2

> Eric 

> This e-mail may contain confidential and privileged material for the sole use of the intended recipient. Any review, use, 

distribution or disclosure by others is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient (or authorized to receive for the 

recipient), please contact the sender by reply e-mail and delete all copies of this message. 

268

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

25 Years of Change 
& 

New Environmental 
Impacts

269

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

Northwood Estates: 

Currently Zoned: R-1 
166 Homes in 47 ac 


3.5 DU/ac 
+/- 498 People

Existing Parcel 

Currently Zoned: R-A 
Up to 34 Homes in 19.4 ac 


1.7 DU/ac 
+/- 102 People

Proposed “Multi-Family" Parcel 

Proposed up to 25 DU/ac 
Up to 484 Apartments in 19.38 ac 


25 DU/ac 
+/- 1,455 People


This is over 7 times higher density 
than Northwood EstatesCurrent 

Zoning Proposed 
Zoning Density Non-Compatibility 270

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.






Removed… 
200’ Building Setback 

35 ft Height Limit 
100’ Open Space/Public Trail 271

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

Privacy Concerns
272

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



15 ft

36 ft

45 ft

FENCE
NEIGHBOR

Privacy Concerns 273

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Alternative Locations 
With Less Impact

274

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



1

McKencie Perez

From: Vahan Bagdasarian <vahanbag1@att.net>

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 1:37 PM

To: McKencie Perez

Subject: [External] Public Hearing June 27

I live near the intersection of Nees and Temperance and when we purchased the home, only homes 
would be built north of the Enterprise Canal. I see no reason why that should not occur. Build 
apartments south of the 168. 
 
Vahan Bagdasarian 
1341 N. Magnolia Ave 
Clovis Ca 93619 
Sent from my iPhone 

ATTACHMENT 3
275

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



1

McKencie Perez

From: David Merchen

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 4:08 PM

To: McKencie Perez

Subject: FW: [External] Planning Commission Public Comments

Hi McKencie, 

 

Here is a letter of support for the R-T Project submitted through the comment Portal. 

 

Dave 

 

 

 
Dave Merchen |  City Planner 

City of Clovis | Planning Division 
p. 559.324.2346 | c. 559.765-7509 
davidm@cityofclovis.com 

 

 

From: PC Public Comments <email@cityofclovis.com>  

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 3:54 PM 

To: David Merchen <davidm@ci.clovis.ca.us> 

Subject: [External] Planning Commission Public Comments 

 

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 2024-06-27 

Item Number: 4 

Name: Allen Keshishian Namagerdi 

Email: akeshishian@chsu.edu 

Comment: I am Allen Keshishian Namagerdi, resident of City of Clovis, Zip Code 93619. I wanted to 

share my full support for CHSU student housing project near Temperance Ave and Nees Ave. I am alumni 

of this school as well as resident of Deaville East Neighborhood in City of Clovis. I remember how my 

classmates wish to have a student housing provided by school. If student housing can be provided by 

school to students then it brings more pharmacy and medical students and in general more educated 

people to City of Clovis that can serve our community in future as a clinician and educator. 

Supporting Files (2 Max.):  

 

--- 

 

Date: June 26, 2024 

Time: 3:54 pm 

Remote IP: 50.115.197.158 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4

276

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



  

120 N. Clovis Avenue    Clovis, California 93612    (559) 325-3600 
chsu.edu 

Florence T. Dunn 
President 

fdunn@chsu.edu 
 

 
June 27, 2024 
 
City of Clovis      
Planning Commission 
1033 Fifth Street 
Clovis, CA 93612 
 
Re: Item #4, Statement Regarding Need for Student Housing Near CHSU Campus 
 
To the esteemed planning commissioners, 
 
Due to a scheduling conflict, I am not able to attend the Planning Commission meeting on Thursday, June 
27, 2024. Please accept this letter regarding our university’s official comments regarding the need for 
student housing near the California Health Sciences University (CHSU) campus.  

This fall, we will have nearly 600 students enrolled for in-person classes on campus at CHSU. With 
approximately 70% of our medical students coming from outside the Central Valley, CHSU students need 
improved access to housing. Both local and out of area students have told us they need, and have 
struggled to find, housing near our campus.  

The rigor of medical school demands that our students attend full-time courses during the week, and they 
devote much of their nights and weekends to studying. They have made it very clear that housing near 
campus would help them be successful in their studies, and the benefits include: 

- Living among other medical students who minimize distractions and respect privacy. 
- Ability to walk/bike to campus (some students cannot afford cars or fuel costs). 
- Easy access to quiet study space, at home or on campus. 
- Improved health and wellness, with access to home for showers, short sleep, or grab food. 

With an average age of 28, CHSU medical students commit to spending at least 4 years in undergraduate 
education, 4 years of medical school, and 3-7 years in residency training before dedicating their lives to 
patient care. 

We believe that medical students deserve our admiration and support for their commitment to serve 
society. We hope our Clovis community embraces the opportunity to help students have access to housing 
during this critical time in their medical education. These future physicians are critical to help alleviate the 
Central Valley’s severe physician shortage.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Florence T. Dunn     
President  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4

277

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



1

McKencie Perez

From: Brian Watt <brian.m.watt@hotmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 27, 2024 8:10 AM

To: McKencie Perez

Subject: [External] Research and Technology Park Public Hearing 

McKencie, 
 
I wanted to reach out and formally protest the Research and Technology Park changes being 
proposed regarding student and facility housing. I attended multiple meetings at Dry Creek 
Elementary back in 2022 and no one at those meetings wanted apartments. Assemi attended the first 
meeting and I asked him, student apartments will only have students in them right? He responded 
that the apartments will be held for the first 30 days for students then open to the public. I also asked 
at that time what would be the price point and he provided a number over $2000 a month. I asked the 
students he brought from his school if anyone could afford this and they all turned around. This just 
confirmed this apartment complex is just another money grab by Assemi and Granville disguised as 
doing a favor to the community by being labeled as student housing.  
 
If the college and Assemi really care about attracting students and want student housing create 
dorms that only students can live in. Why doesn’t the college focus on building the next phase of the 
college to justify the need for facility and student housing. Also what is the city doing about the need 
for a larger hospital or another hospital? The Fresno, Clovis area does not have enough beds at all 
the hospitals, these “needed” facility/student housing will just make things worse. What about CUSD, 
these additional houses and apartments will just impact my kids schools and most likely impact them 
on the next boundary change. I ask the city council members and Mayor to please listen to the people 
that elected you and NOT their largest donors Granville Homes and Assemi Group Inc.  
 
I plan to attend tonight’s meeting and speak as well.  
Thank you for your time, 
Brian Watt 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4

278

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



1

McKencie Perez

From: Corben Whitney <corbenwhitney@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 27, 2024 1:43 PM

To: McKencie Perez

Subject: [External] Public Hearing, Planning Commission- 6/27/24

Hello McKencie, 
 
My Name is Corben Whitney.  I live at 2292 Cromwell Avenue and will be affected by the proposed 
changes discussed in tonight’s meeting.  I know the meetings can get a little raucous sometimes so I 
wanted to let you know I intend to speak.  What I have to say probably won’t take my full three 
minutes but I thought it might help in giving you a timeline for the meeting. 
 
Hoping all is well, 
Corben (559) 287-2440 
 
Sent from my iPad 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4

279

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



280

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



281

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



282

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



283

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



284

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



285

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



286

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



287

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



288

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



289

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



1

McKencie Perez

From: Bernie Kraus <bernie77.kraus@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 23, 2024 3:49 PM

To: McKencie Perez

Subject: [External] Research & Technology (R-T) Park

Dear Mr. McKenzie: 
We unfortunately are unable to attend the 6/30/24 City Council Meeting and are therefore expressing 
our concerns and suggestions via this email. We live at 1396 N Magnolia Ave, Clovis. We are in a 
small Lennar tract that is bordered by Temperance on the east, Nees on the South and the Clovis 
Trail/canal on the West. The ponding basin is also to the North of us.  
We feel that the colleges themselves will be a positive impact for the city of Clovis, although many 
existing home owners will be significantly impacted by the new structures (colleges, student housing, 
faculty housing, apartments). I will leave it to those homeowners to present their concerns.  
We do have concerns regarding the triangular piece of land that is bordered by Nees, Temperance 
and the canal. I have heard that there is consideration for using this land for a convenience/gas 
station mart or more apartments. This seems rather redundant since we have the same availability at 
168 and Temperance. It would also create undo traffic on Nees which is close to Dry Creek School 
and other residential areas. It would be a commercial island surrounded by quiet residential and an 
elementary school. We would suggest this small piece be converted to a neighborhood park. This 
might be of some consolation for the residential areas being affected by this significant project. It 
would also be a big plus and destination for the increased Clovis Trail use. 
This brings me to my final and most invested topic, the Clovis Trail. I am a runner and have covered 
much of the trail and have found our stretch between Ness and the ponding basin to be the worst 
maintained of any parts of the trail. With the expected significant increased usage coming from the 
colleges and the Hospital (via a planned pedestrian bridge over 168), this stretch will become one of 
the busiest sections of the Clovis Trail. The aforementioned park would help manage some of this 
foot traffic. Much better management of the asphalt trail and trees would also be needed. The City 
must also finally come to an agreement with the Irrigation District to have the Trail extend directly 
from 168 to Nees.  
One other suggestion to handle the increased foot traffic on the trail involves the ponding basin just 
north of us. At present it is just used by the Flood Control District to act as a catch basin for excess 
rain water. It is then drained to a very minimal level in late Spring which is unfortunate since the city 
has an observatory structure and telescope on the sight to view wildlife. The only reason that the 
Flood Control District drains it to such a low level is to keep the water level within their fencing in 
order to keep kids out of the water. In speaking to the Flood Control District they would have no 
reason not to bring the fence line up to accommodate more water storage as soon as enough water is 
channeled into percolation reservoirs. This would create another opportunity for the City to put up 
several bench and shade structures to provide opportunity for trail users. This would also discourage 
the kids with motorcycles from riding up and down the slope. A full basin would also provide much 
needed water storage and water for fire suppression. 
This seems like a win for all agencies and the trail users. 
Thank you for the opportunity to voice my ideas and concerns!  
Bernie Kraus 
559-314-4240 
 
 
 
 

290

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



1

McKencie Perez

From: william hickman <diegosdaddy@yahoo.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 30, 2024 3:24 PM

To: McKencie Perez

Subject: [External] Assemi Development Meeting

Attachments: City Final.docx

Good Afternoon 
 
I would appreciate it if you could distribute these comments to the planning commission members and city council 
members as appropriate. 
 
Thank you. 
Kay Hickman 

291

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Clovis Planning Commission 
Clovis City Council 
July 30, 2024 

According to publications of the Public Policy Institute (PPI) 2024, the Business 
Insider 2024 and the LA Times 2024, over the past “three decades in California 
water overdraft has averaged nearly 2 million acre-feet per year or 13 % of net 
water use in the state. This has contributed to dry wells and declining reliability of 
drought reserve throughout the state. In addition, overdraft and overuse of water 
supply due to sprawling unchecked and unplanned or poorly planned 
urbanization in hard hit areas is causing many undesirable impacts as over 2000 
domestic wells went dry in each of the two recent droughts.  Central Valley 
counties are extremely susceptible to overdraft and water needs given the 
increase in populations”   

According to the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for a development 
of the City of Clovis, Loma Vista project years ago, the EIR states there is a 
negative effect from development on water.  They know that because of an 
extensive environmental report.  Why are not current EIR’s being demanded by 
the Planning Commission for development? I am sure given the decades of water 
problems in the proposed area of the Wilson development as well, there should 
be an EIR on water as water has always been problematic in that area.  Look at 
the folks in Shenandoah Farms down the road from the Assemi project and 
located near the Wilson project.   Located near me…Same thing. 
 
The EIR for Loma Vista states,” urban growth in the Clovis area is rapidly causing 
a negative impact on the groundwater supply. The city of Clovis has almost fully 
developed the available well field and there are currently very limited 
opportunities to construct new viable municipal wells.”  Clovis presently has 
approximately 26 wells for the entirety of the current population not counting 
Loma Vista, the proposed Wilson development, and the Assemi project which is 
located within a mile of my home.  “Additionally due to continued overdraft in the 
metropolitan area, the nominal water level in the city’s existing wells continues to 
fall…Treatment facilities and storage are needed”.  This information is from the 
Loma Vista EIR dated which sets out 2035 as a target to improve water for 
residents of Clovis, 11 years from now. 
 
The City of Clovis General Plan update dated August 7, 2014, Environmental 
Impact Report, sphere of influence there is lengthy discussion of water issues for 
the city at that time and in the future.  Water Supply Impact # 4,” The City’s Urban 
Water Management Plan states, “the potential for water consumption by 
development will result in ground water overdraft.”   Many concerns are noted.  
Development has been supported and continued unabated since this report.  The 
development for the Assemi project in the middle of established homes relies on 
out-of-date, outmoded information that while true 10 to 20 years ago, does not 
match the reality of the residents who live here. The reluctance to have additional 
information is quite puzzling. 

292

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



   

We are on a private well and have been so for the past 41 years as have our 
neighbors. Communities around these proposed developments continue to have 
vested interests in development, not because of our lifestyles but because of our 
lives.  We live here with our families.   In the spirit of community, I attended the 
Herndon-Shepherd Specific Plan meetings in the 1990’s. I asked about the effect 
on the wells in the area and who would be responsible if they went dry due to 
development in the area.   The problems were noted by the political bodies.  I 
attended the community meetings when Fresno County residents were moved 
into the City of Clovis and we became city residents.  I asked about the effect of 
the development on residents with wells and who would be responsible if they 
went dry or bad due to development.  My speech was noted by the politicians.  I 
spoke at the DeYoung community meetings to voice my concern about water and 
wells and asked who was taking responsibility if wells were depleted due to 
development? Same with Assemi who keeps moving the ball with ambiguous 
language and plans for development.  An answer is never given and here we are.  
No current EIR addresses these issues despite the fact the city population, (City-
Data.com) reveals that the population change in the City of Clovis since 2000: 
+81.9 % and, is not addressed in these EIR’s and updates that continue to be 
relied upon. I would say the public trust in governance is eroded every time issues 
such as these are presented and are ignored.  The Fresno Bee seems to think 
so as stated in the article Developers housing plan gets favorable treatment, 
November 02, 2023. 

 
There is a 40-year history of raising concerns and bringing information before 
the governing bodies. The players have changed but the lack of transparency 
in the city government remains the same.  I don’t know how many private wells 
are in the City of Clovis that could be affected. I would submit that the City 
policy makers having been advised for decades that there were water issues 
directly because of development and that is supported with the city’s own 
documents. The City of Clovis bears full responsibility for issues having to do 
with the disruption in the delivery of water to its residents and continued 
baffling and uninformed development.  

 
My thanks for your attention. 
 
Kay Hickman 
Clovis, CA. 

 

293

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



County of Fresno
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Promotion, preservation and protection of the community’s health
1221 Fulton Street /P. O. Box 11867, Fresno, CA 93775

(559) 600-3271� FAX (559) 600-7629
The County of Fresno is an Equal Employment Opportunity Employer

www.co.fresno.ca.us � www.fcdph.org

January 14, 2022
LU0021572
2604

Ricky Caperton, Deputy City Planner
City of Clovis
Planning and Development Services Department
1033 Fifth Street
Clovis, CA  93612

Dear Mr. Caperton:

PROJECT NUMBER: GPA2021-007, R2021-010, AO2021-004

General Plan Amendment GPA2021-007; Based on the existing General Plan, the R-T Park boundary
was shown incorrectly. A General Plan Amendment is needed to correct this technical inaccuracy.
Rezone Amendment R2021-010; The current land use designation for the plan area is Mixed Use –
Business Campus (MU-BC) which allows a mixture of research and technology uses, and will remain
unchanged. The corresponding zone district should be R-T; however, there are parcels within the R-T
Park area that currently maintain residential zoning. Therefore, in order to bring the zoning into
consistency with the MU-BC land use designation, a rezone is needed. Under this action, the City will
either rezone properties directly to R-T or apply an R-T Overlay zone allowing for existing residential
properties to remain residential, while also allowing for R-T Park development should those properties
choose to develop per the R-T standards. Development Code Update AO-2021-004; The clean-up
action being proposed would further define the MU-BC land use designation to allow for ancillary
residential uses, rezone approximately 79 parcels to the R-T zone district, permit ancillary residential
uses in the R-T zone district, and add design guidelines for ancillary residential uses.

APN: Multiple       ZONING:  MU-BC to R-T Park      ADDRESS: R-T Park Corridor N of SR 168

Recommended Conditions of Approval:

 Construction permits for future developments should be subject to assurance of sewer capacity of
the Regional Wastewater Treatment Facility.  Concurrence should be obtained from the California
Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB).  For more information, contact staff at (559)
445-5116.

 Construction permits for future development should be subject to assurance that the City of Clovis
community water system has the capacity and quality to serve projects.  Concurrence should be
obtained from the State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water-Southern
Branch.  For more information call (559) 447-3300.

 If future applicants propose to use and/or store hazardous materials and/or hazardous wastes,
they shall meet the requirements set forth in the California Health and Safety Code (HSC),
Division 20, Chapter 6.95, and the California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 22, Division 4.5.
Any business that handles a hazardous material or hazardous waste may be required to submit a
Hazardous Materials Business Plan pursuant to the California Health and Safety Code (HSC),

Attachment 6

294

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Ricky Caperton
January 24, 2022
GPA2021-007, R2021-010, AO2021-004
Page 2 of 2

2

Division 20, Chapter 6.95, Section 25507 (http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/). Contact the Fresno County
Hazmat Compliance Program at (559) 600-3271 for more information.

 Future projects have the potential to expose nearby residents to elevated noise levels.
Consideration should be given to your City’s municipal code.

 As a measure to protect ground water, all water wells and/or septic systems that exist or have
been abandoned within the project areas should be properly destroyed by an appropriately
licensed contractor.

 Should any underground storage tank(s) be found, the applicants shall apply for and secure an
Underground Storage Tank Removal Permit from the Fresno County Department of Public Health,
Environmental Health Division.  Contact the Fresno County Hazmat Compliance Program at (559)
600-3271 for more information.

The following comments pertain to the future demolition of existing structures:

 Should the structures have an active rodent or insect infestation, the infestation should be abated
prior to demolition of the structures in order to prevent the spread of vectors to adjacent properties.

 In the process of demolishing the existing structures, the contractor may encounter asbestos
containing construction materials and materials coated with lead-based paints.

 If asbestos containing materials are encountered, contact the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution
Control District at (559) 230-6000 for more information.

 If the structures were constructed prior to 1979 or if lead-based paint is suspected to have been
used in these structures, then prior to demolition and/or remodel work the contractor should
contact the following agencies for current regulations and requirements:

 California Department of Public Health, Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Branch, at
(510) 620-5600.

 United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 9, at (415) 947-8000.

 State of California, Industrial Relations Department, Division of Occupational Safety and
Health, Consultation Service (CAL-OSHA) at (559) 454-5302.

REVIEWED BY:

Kevin Tsuda, R.E.H.S.
Environmental Health Specialist II (559) 600-33271

cc:      Deep Sidhu- Environmental Health Division (CT. 55.12) 295

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



296

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



297

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



298

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



299

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



300

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



301

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



302

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



303

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



304

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



305

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



306

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

Attachment 7 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CEQA Guidelines 15183 – Finding of Consistency 
General Plan Amendment 2021-007, Ordinance Amendment 2021-004, and 

Rezone 2021-010 
 

Pursuant to Article 12 of the State California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines, the City of Clovis has determined that the project described below will not 
require additional environmental review.   
 
Lead Agency: City of Clovis – Planning and Development Services 

 
 

Lead Agency 
Contact: 

McKencie Perez, MPA, Senior Planner 
(559) 324-2310 
mckenciep@cityofclovis.com  
  

 

Applicant: City of Clovis 
1033 Fifth Street 
Clovis, CA 93612 
 

 

Project 
Location: 

120 separate parcels located adjacent to the north side of Highway 
168 from Armstrong Avenue to Owens Mountain Parkway. See 
attached Exhibit A, Aerial Photo, for all land included in project 
area. 
 

 

Exemption: CEQA Guidelines section 15183 – Special Situations, Projects 
consistent with a Community Plan, General Plan, or Zoning 

 

 
Project Description 

The proposed Research and Technology (R-T) Park Cleanup Project (“Project”) includes 
amendments to the City of Clovis General Plan, Zoning, Development Code, and the 
Clovis R-T Park Architectural Guidelines for approximately 333 acres of land designated 
as the Clovis R-T Park.  
 
The purpose of these amendments is to correct inconsistencies between the 
aforementioned documents and to allow for student and faculty housing per direction from 
the Clovis City Council. Each of these corrective actions is summarized below.  

 

General Plan Amendment 
The City’s existing General Plan was adopted in 2014. Based on the existing General 
Plan, the R-T Park boundary was shown incorrectly. Therefore, a general plan 

P L A N N I N G  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  

1 0 3 3  F I F T H  S T R E E T  •  C L O V I S ,  C A  9 3 6 1 2  

307

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.

mailto:mckenciep@cityofclovis.com


amendment is needed to correct this technical inaccuracy. The amendment would also 
allow campus related housing within the R-T Park per the direction of the Clovis City 
Council. 
 
Development Code Amendment  
The proposed Project would further define the MU-BC land use designation to allow for 
campus related housing uses in the R-T zone district, add development guidelines for the 
campus related housing, and create a R-T overlay zone district. The objective of these 
actions is to create and maintain consistency among the applicable plans and policies, 
while maintaining the intent of the City Council’s vision for the R-T Park. 
 
Rezone 
The current land use designation for the plan area is MU-BC (Mixed Use/Business 
Campus) which allows a range of industrial, commercial, and institutional uses, with a 
focus on research and technology uses, along with residential densities up to 25 dwelling 
units per acre.  The MU-BC designation will remain unchanged in conjunction with the 
Project. The corresponding zone district should be the R-T zone district; however, there 
are parcels within the R-T Park area that currently maintain residential zoning. Therefore, 
in order to bring the zoning into consistency with the MU-BC land use designation, a 
rezone is needed. Under this action, the City will either rezone properties directly to the 
R-T zone district or apply an R-T overlay zone district allowing for existing residential 
properties to remain residential, while also allowing for R-T Park development should 
those properties choose to develop per the R-T development standards. 
 

Environmental Determination 

Pursuant to Article 12 of the CEQA Guidelines, the Project is exempt from additional 
environmental review in accordance with section 15183. For projects that are “consistent 
with the development density established by existing zoning, community plan or general 
plan policies for which an EIR was certified shall not require additional environmental 
review, except as might be necessary to examine whether there are project-specific 
significant effects which are peculiar to the project or its site.” Further, CEQA Guidelines 
state that “if an impact is not peculiar to the parcel or to the project, has been addressed 
as a significant effect in the prior EIR, or can be substantially mitigated by the imposition 
of uniformly applied development policies or standards, then an additional EIR need not 
be prepared for the project solely on the basis of that impact.” If no additional mitigation 
measures are required to reduce project specific impacts to a less than significant level, 
other than those required in the prior EIR, then the section 15183 exemption applies.  
 

Evidence for Exemption 
The establishment of the full plan area underwent environmental review on two separate 
occasions to consider the full approximately 333 acres designated to the R-T Park. The 
first ±188 acres of land designated for the R-T Park was approved and the Final EIR 
certified by the Clovis City Council in June 1999. The R-T Park Expansion, which added 
approximately 153 acres (known as Phase III), was approved in conjunction with the 
certification of a separate EIR in August 2009. Additionally, an EIR was certified for the 

308

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



General Plan in 2014, which considered the environmental impacts of densities up to 25 
dwelling units per acre within the underlying MU-BC land use designation. 
 
The proposed amendments associated with this Project do not effectuate any physical 
change to the environment, but rather allow the R-T Park to develop the way the General 
Plan intended. The proposed General Plan and Development Code text changes also 
clarify the City’s policy interpretation as to the allowance for campus-related housing in 
conjunction with a university. The following points provide additional support for the 
project’s reliance on the section 15183 exemption: 
 

 The entire Project area that is potentially affected by the proposed Project 
(approximately 333 acres) is designated as MU-BC within the 2014 Clovis General 
Plan. The proposal does not include a change from the existing MU-BC land use 
designation to any other land use designation. 

 

 Though the City took actions in 2001 and 2009 to establish the comprehensive 
boundary of the “Clovis R-T Park”, the 2014 General Plan showed only a portion 
of the total area within the “focus area” identified for the R-T Park. The proposed 
Project actions would modify the boundary of the General Plan focus area to 
include the entire R-T Park as previously adopted by the Council, clarifying the 
Council’s intent to apply R-T development standards and criteria to this area.  
These standards and criteria do not exceed the intensity of the underlying MU-BC 
land use designation and were previously evaluated by the City. 
 

 The MU-BC land use designation establishes criteria for the maximum intensity of 
development including a non-residential floor area ratio of 4.0 and a residential 
density of up to 25 units per acre. No changes to these criteria are proposed. 
 

 The R-T zone district is compatible with the MU-BC land use designation and by 
the City’s previous designation of the affected area as the “Clovis R-T Park”, R-T 
is the intended zoning for the Project area. The rezoning of properties to the R-T 
zone district or R-T overlay zone district will implement the General Plan, as well 
as the City’s previous actions to establish the Clovis R-T Park in 1999 and 2009, 
as described above. 
 

 The existing MU-BC land use designation and the R-T zone district allow the 
development of schools, special education, and training facilities (including 
colleges and universities), through the approval of an administrative use permit 
(AUP). 
 

 As demonstrated through the City’s approval of AUP2016-009, which included a 
student housing component, and the City’s more recent approval of the California 
Health Sciences University memorandum of understanding from January of 2021, 
the City has determined that university-affiliated housing may be included as an 
ancillary use within an overall university campus. 
 

309

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 The proposed Project will confirm the City’s previous determinations regarding the 
allowance for university-affiliated housing and will clarify the process used to 
consider and approve such projects.  

 
While future development within the R-T Park could result in potential environmental 
effects, approving the proposed amendments themselves will not, because the proposed 
amendments do not, in and of themselves, apply to any physical development or use. To 
the extent that individual projects are proposed in the future, including but not limited to 
an administrative use permit (AUP) for an expanded CHSU campus, those projects will 
be assessed and required to comply with the provisions of CEQA. Increases in intensity 
and density will be reviewed at the time of project submission and mitigated accordingly. 
The Project amendments merely create a framework that achieves consistency between 
the City’s planning documents as they relate to the R-T Park and clarify the City’s policy 
previous interpretations. As such, the proposed amendments will permit future 
applications to apply for development within the plan area but will not intensify existing 
uses at the time the proposed amendments are approved. 
 
Projects within the plan area will require discretionary or ministerial review and will require 
the appropriate land use applications. Discretionary projects will be evaluated pursuant 
to the requirements of CEQA, and the appropriate level of environmental review will be 
completed when the scope and impacts of each individual application are known. 
 
Based on these factors, the City may determine that the proposed Project amendments 
are consistent with the City’s General Plan and that potential impacts associated with the 
project were evaluated in the EIR’s prepared in conjunction with the 2001 and 2009 
actions to establish the R-T Park and the 2014 General Plan EIR.  No impacts peculiar to 
the Project, or impacts not previously evaluated, have been identified. Therefore, the 
proposed amendments for the R-T Park Cleanup are exempt from CEQA pursuant to a 
Finding of Consistency with the City’s General Plan set forth in section 15183 of the CEQA 
Guidelines.  

 
Date:  June 27, 2024 
 
Prepared By: McKencie Perez, MPA 
 
Submitted By: McKencie Perez, MPA, Senior Planner 
 City of Clovis Planning & Development Services 
 (559) 324-2310 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

310

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



Exhibit A 
 

 

311

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.


	Top
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.	GSD - Transit Proclamation for Lomeli and Contreras 240819
	GSD - Lomeli and Contreras Proclamation

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.	ADM - August 12, 2024 Minutes
	ADM - August 12, 2024 Minutes

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.	FIN - Investment Report March 2024 240819
	FIN - Investment Report March 2024 SR
	FIN - Investment Report March ATT 1 Dist of Investments
	FIN - Investment Report March ATT 2 Monthly Inv Trans
	FIN - Investment Report March ATT 3 Cert of Deposit
	FIN - Investment Report March ATT 4 Municipal Securities
	FIN - Investment Report March ATT 5 Corporate Securities
	FIN - Investment Report March ATT 6 Treasury Rates

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.	FIN - Treasurer's Report March 2024 240819
	FIN - Treasurer's Report March 2024 SR
	FIN - Treasurer's Report March ATT 1 Cash Balances
	FIN - Treasurer's Report March ATT 2 Inv Activity
	FIN - Treasurer's Report March ATT 3 Orig Maturities

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.	FIN - Investment Report April 2024 240819
	FIN - Investment Report April 2024 SR
	FIN - Investment Report April ATT 1 Dist of Investments
	FIN - Investment Report April ATT 2 Monthly Inv Trans
	FIN - Investment Report April ATT 3 Cert of Deposit
	FIN - Investment Report April ATT 4 Municipal Securities
	FIN - Investment Report April ATT 5 Corporate Securities
	FIN - Investment Report April ATT 6 Treasury Rates

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.	FIN - Treasurer's Report April 2024 240819
	FIN - Treasurer's Report April 2024 SR
	FIN - Treasurer's Report April ATT 1 Cash Balances
	FIN - Treasurer's Report April ATT 2 Inv Activity
	FIN - Treasurer's Report April ATT 3 Orig Maturities

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.	GSD - Caltrans STP Grant - Resolutions 240819
	GSD - Caltrans RGA - Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant FY24-25 SR
	GSD - Caltrans RGA - Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant FY24-25 ATT 1 Res 24-___ Authorization
	GSD - Caltrans RGA - Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant FY24-25 ATT 2 Res 24-___ Budget Amendment

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.	GSD - Retiree Health Plan Renewal 240819
	GSD - Retiree Health Plan Renewal SR
	GSD - Retiree Health Plan Renewal  ATT 1 Res

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.	GSD- Emcor Contract Extension 240819
	GSD - Emcor Contract Extension SR
	GSD - Emcor Contract Extension ATT 1 First Amendment
	GSD - Emcor Contract Extension ATT 2 Original Contract

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.	PD - ABC Grant Budget Amendment
	PD - ABC Grant Budget Amendment SR
	PD - ABC Grant Budget Amendment ATT 1 - Res
	PD - ABC Grant Budget Amendment ATT 2 - Grant Agreement

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.	PUD - Tarpey Village Water Meter Project 240819
	PUD - Tarpey Meter Installation 218 SR
	PUD - Tarpey Meter Installation 218 ATT 1 Vicinity Map

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.	PDS - Behymer-Sunnyside Southwest Reorganization Annexation Agreement  240819
	PDS - Behymer-Sunnyside Southwest Reorganization Annexation Agreement SR
	PDS - Behymer-Sunnyside Southwest Reorganization Annexation Agreement ATT1

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.	PDS - R-T Park Cleanup GPA2021-007, OA2021-004, R2021-010  240819
	PDS - R-T Park Cleanup GPA2021-007, OA2021-004, R2021-010 SR
	PDS - R-T Park Cleanup GPA2021-007, OA2021-004, R2021-010 ATT 1 Res. 24-___ GPA
	PDS - R-T Park Cleanup GPA2021-007, OA2021-004, R2021-010 ATT 2 Ord. 24-___ OA
	PDS - R-T Park Cleanup GPA2021-007, OA2021-004, R2021-010 ATT 3 Ord. 24-___ Rezone
	PDS - R-T Park Cleanup GPA2021-007, OA2021-004, R2021-010 ATT 3A - RezoneLegals
	PDS - R-T Park Cleanup GPA2021-007, OA2021-004, R2021-010 ATT 4 Res. 24-___ Guidelines
	PDS - R-T Park Cleanup GPA2021-007, OA2021-004, R2021-010 ATT 5 - Letters from Community
	PDS - R-T Park Cleanup GPA2021-007, OA2021-004, R2021-010 ATT 6 Comments from Dept and Agencies
	PDS - R-T Park Cleanup GPA2021-007, OA2021-004, R2021-010 ATT 7 Environmental Document

	Bottom








